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'f his information .will be made available in alternative formats upon request. To request an agenda in an
alternative format, please call the Clerk of the Board at least two working days prior to the meeting to ensure
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Board prior to the meeting and are to be returned at the end of the meeting.

ACTION
RECOMMENDED

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda

2.

RollCall

Approval of Minutes - October 24,2013

Public Comments - Limited to five speakers with three minutes per speaker. Others
will be heard after Board Discussion items. lf you have a report to present, please
give your copies to the Clerk of the Board,

MTS Committees for 2014 (Sharon Coonev)
Action would appoint an Ad Hoc Nominating Committee to make recommendations
to the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the Board to serve as
Vice-Chair, Chair Pro-Tem and on MTS and non-MTS committees for 2014.

3.

4.
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CONSENT ITEMS

6.

Oclober 22,2013
Action would: (1) receive the San Diego and lmperial Valley Railroad (SD&|V),
Pacific Southwest Railway Museum Association (Museum), and Pacific lmperial
Railroad, lnc. (PlR) quarterly reports for information; and (2) ratify actions taken by
the SD&AE Board at its quarterly meeting on October 22,2013.

7.

Schedule
Action would adopt lhe 2014 Executive Committee and Board of Directors meeting
schedule.

8. lnvestment Report - September 2013
Action would receive a report for information.

9. State Lobbvinq Services - Contract Award
Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)to: 1) execute MTS Doc.
No. G1644.0-14 with Smith, Watts and Martinez, LLC, for the provision of State
Lobbying Services for a three (3)-year base period, and two (2) one-year optional
terms exercisable at MTS' sole determination, for a total of five years; and 2)
exercise each option Vear at the CEO's discretion.

10. Medical Provider Services - Contract Award
Action would authorize the CEO to 1) execute MTS Doc. No. G1514.0-13, with U.S.
HealthWorks for the provision of Medical Provider Services for a three (3) year base
period, and two (2) one-year optionalterms at the MTS's sole determination, for a
total of five (5) years; and 2) exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.

11.
Purchase

Action would authorize the CEO to execute MTS Doc. No. G1665.0-14 with CDW-G
for the purchase of MC75A Enterprise Digital Assistants (EDA's), Biometric
Fingerprint Readers, zebra RW420 Mobile and GX420 Desktop printers,
Rechargeable Batteries and Charging Stations and 3 years of Maintenance for the
EDA's and Printers.

12. Ultrasonic Rail-Testinq Services - Contract Award
Action would authorize the CEO to execute MTS Doc. No. L1 1 15.0-13 with Nordco
Rail Services LLC, for the provision of ultrasonic rail-testing services for five years
beginning on January 1, 2014, and ending on December 31 , 20.18.

13. Wireless lnfrastructure Proiect Phase 2 - Sole Source Contract Award
Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to issue a purchase order
to AT&T DataComm, lnc,, on a sole-source basis, for the provision of equipment
and professional installation services for Phase 2 of the MTS's Wireless
I nfrastructu re Project.

Receive/
Ratify

Adopt

lnformation

Approve

Approve

Approve
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CONSENT ITEMS - CONTINUED

14. Printinq of Timetables - Contract Award
Action would authorize the CEO to: (1) execute MTS Doc. No. G1534.0-13 with AAA
Printing Company for services for the printing of MTS timetables, for a five-year base
period with 2 one-year terms (for a total of 7 years) exercisable at MTS's exclusive
determination; and (2) exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion,

15. Proposed Revisions to MTS Policv No. 41 - Sionature Authoritv
Action would approve the proposed revisions to MTS Policy No. 41 - Signature
Authority.

CLOSED SESSION

24 a. CLOSED SESSION - CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant
to Calfiornia Government Code Section 54957.6
Aqencv-Desionated Representative: Jeff Stumbo
Emplovee Orqanization: lnternational Brotherhood of ElectricalWorkers, Local465

b. CLOSED SESSION - CoONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY
NEGOI-IATORS Pursuant to Calfiornia Government Code Section 54956.8
Propertv: Assessor Parcel No. 550 550-500-23, City of San Diego; 555-01 1-17, ,

City of National City; 571-090-12, City of Chula Vista; 576-523-04, City of Lemon
Grove;
Aoencv Neqotiátors: Paul Jablonski, Chief Executive Officer, Karen Landers,
General Counsel; and Tim Allison, Manager of Real Estate Assets;
Neqotiatinq Parties: Union Pacific Railroad;
Under Negqtiatiqn: Price and Terms of Payment

c. CLOSED SESSION - CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL ANTICIPATED
LITIGATION Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to California Government
Code Section 54956.9(b) (One Potential Case)

Oral Report of FinalActions Taken in Closed Session

NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS

25. None.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

30. None.

REPORT ITEMS

45.
Caporicci of Pun & McGeadv)
Action would receive the Fiscal Year 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(cAFR).

46. Semiannual Securitv Report (Januarv throuqh June 20131 (Bill Burkel
Action would receive a report for information.
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47.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

Operations Budoet Status Reoort for September 2013 (Mike Thompson)
Action would receive the MTS operations budget status report for September 2013.

Chairman's Reoort

Audit Oversiqht Committee Chairman's Report

Chief Executive Officer's Report

Board Member Communications

Additional Public Comments Not on the Aqenda
lf the limit of 5 speakers is exceeded under No. 3 (Public Comments) on this
agenda, additional speakers will be taken at this time. lf you have a report to
present, please furnish a copy to the Clerk of the Board. Subjects of previous
hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under Public Comments.

Next Meetinq Date: December 12,2013

Adiournment

65.

66.

lnformation

lnformation

lnformation

lnformation
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MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM (MTS)

1255 lmperialAvenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA92101

October 24,2013

MINUTES

BOARD MEETING

1. Roll Call

Chairman Mathis called the Board meeting to order at 9:01a.m. A roll call sheet listing
Board member attendance is attached.

2. Approval of Minutes

Mr. Ovrom moved to approve the minutes of the October 10, 2013, MTS Board of
Directors meeting. Mr. Ewin seconded the motion, and the vote was 9 to 0 in favor with
Messrs. Alvarez, Minto, Roberts and Meses. Bragg, Emerald, Zapf absent.

Mr. Jablonski stated that Cliff Telfer, MTS's Chief Financial Officer was retiring. After a
national search and extensive interviews, Larry Marinesi, MTS's Director of Financial
Planning & Analysis, was appointed as the new Chief Financial Officer of MTS.

3. Public Comments

None.

CONSENT ITEMS

6. lnvestment Report - Auoust 2013

Action would receive a report for information.

7. Transit Smart Cards - Contract Award

Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) io 
"r".ut" 

MTS Doc. No.
L1162.0-14 with ASK-int TAG LLC, for the purchase of Transit Smart Cards.

8. Fleetwatch Svstem Software Uporade - Sole Source

Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute MTS Doc. No.
80604.0-14 with S & A Systems on a sole-source basis for a software system upgrade
of the MTS's FLEETWATCH Fluid Management System.

Action on Consent ltem 6 throuoh I
Mr. Ovrom moved to approve Consent ltems 6 through 8. Mr. Gastil seconded the



Board of Directors Meeting 10124113 Minutes
Page 2 of 5

motion, and the vote was 11 to 0 in favor with Messrs. Alvarez, Minto, Roberts and Ms.
Emerald absent.

61.

Mr. Ewin provided a report on the status of the Audit and stated he had received positive
feedback regarding the MTS and the process.

NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS

25. None.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

30. Bus Shelter Advertisino - Contract Award

Mr. Jablonski advised it was time to refresh the shelters, many of which are 20+ years
old with MTS buying the shelters thereby saving capital. He introduced Rob Schupp,
Director of Marketing. Mr. Schupp reviewed the bus shelter advertising contract award.
He discussed shelter seryices, shelter facts and provided images of existing shelters at
various locations. He reviewed the contract history, the bus shelters services RFP, bus
shelter services responses, the Clear Channel Outdoor contract, MTS shelter purchases
and gave a staff recommendation.

Ms. Bragg asked Mr. Schupp if the shelters would include lighting and he answered that
they would.

Ms. Cole asked about the type of advertising on the shelters and if guns, alcohol and ,

controversial topics would be banned. Mr. Jablonski discussed the advertising policy
and Federal Court cases advising MTS excludes tobacco, alcohol and other offensive
items from being advertised on MTS's bus shelters. Mr. Mathis stated MTS also
conducts its advertising practices under the advertising policy of the City of San Diego.

Ms. Rios asked if the cities gained revenue and Mr. Schupp stated the Memorandums of
Understanding would be updated within each City to outline the particulars.

Ms. Zapf asked if advertising would be strictly commercial or if a portion of advertising
could be set aside for, or reduced pricing provided for Non-Profit programs. Mr.
Jablonski stated the issue with non-profit organizations is that they can potentially be
controversial. MTS provides non-profit organizations with advertising when there is an
established partnership in place, for example, when the advertising drives citizens to a
particular community event. lf advertising is afforded to non-profits as a general rule, a
negative precedent could possibly be established whereby if advertising is afforded to
one particular non-profit organization all non-profit organizations may expect the same
advertising rights. Karen Landers, General Counsel stated that MTS is trying to prevent
its advertising being looked at as a free speech forum as this could potentially open the
doors for the advertising of controversial and offensive issues.

Mr. Gastil stated that he believes there is current public service advertising MTS's buses
and asked how bus shelter advertisings differ from advertising on MTS's buses. Mr.
Schupp advised he would look into this to see if MTS vehicle advertisements violate the
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policy. Ms. Landers advised she believed these particular advertisements on MTS's
buses are sponsored by the San Diego Health and Human Services agency which is a
public partner with MTS.

Action Taken

Ms. Zapf moved to authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to: (1) execute MTS
Doc, No. 80596.0-13 with Clear Channel Outdoor, lnc., as a revenue contract for bus
shelter advertising services for a five-year base period with 5 one-year option terms (for
a total of 10 years); and (2) exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.. Mr. Ewin
seconded the motion, and the vote was 11 to 0 in favor with Messrs. Alvarez, Minto,
Roberts and Ms. Emerald absent.

REPORT ITEMS

45. Year-End Operations Report

Denis Desmond, Senior Transportation Planner, reviewed the evaluation criteria,
passenger counts including average weekday and per in-service hour. He discussed
on-time performance, mean distance between failures, preventable accidents per
100,000 miles, comments per 100,000 passengers, in-service hours, peak-vehicle
requirements, fare box recovery ratio, subsidy per passenger and FY2013 routes of
note. Wayne Terry, Chief Operating Officer-Rail, reviewed the FY2013 trolley highlights
including train accidents, special events service, Siemens S70US LRV procurement,
wheel scan system, car wash replacement project, traction power substation project,
bridge inspections, master concessionaire services, Green Line extension, Orange Line
low-floor, Blue Line rehabilitation and centralized train control - train tracking. Bill
Spraul, Chief Operating Officer-Transit, discussed the FY2013 transit services highlights
including ridership, financial management/sustainability, service quality, bus purchases
and procurements, South Bay maintenance facility expansion, East County maintenance
facility expansion and provided additional highlights.

Mr. Gastil asked regarding the number of accidents on buses. Mr. Spraul advised there
has been an overall reduction in accidents. Mr. Jablonski stated that often bus accidents
are not the fault of MTS drivers, but rather due to non-observant drivers, etc.
Preventable accidents are the ones in MTS's control and there are internal procedures in
place to prevent such accidents. Mr. Spraul stated that preventability is a very high
standard MTS applies to its fleet.

Ms. Bragg asked Mr. Jablonski regarding fare box recovery and how MTS is working to
increase fare box recovery. Mr. Jablonski advised the fare box recovery ratio is how
much of the total cost is recovered by passengers who put fare in the fare box and it is
43o/o for the entire system, roughly 39% on the bus side and 59% on the rail side with
MTS being number one in the country. He discussed MTS's services, resources and
performance and stated many gains have been made over the last decade.

Ms. Zapf asked regarding subsidy per passenger. Mr. Desmond answered that rural
ridership includes a couple dozen of passengers riding per day vs. urban ridership where
over ten thousand ride per day, therefore it is based on ridership in category instead of
an average. Ms. Zapf asked if MTS is looking to bring down the higher subsidies. Mr.
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Desmond responded certain routes will always have higher subsidies and costs per
passenger than the other categories and each route is evaluated individually within their
respective category and based on how they are doing compared to other routes it is
decided if adjustments need to be made. Ms. Zapf asked what percent the Federal
Government pays with regard to subsidies. Mr. Jablonski said it was largely TDA (state
sales tax), Federal subsidies, Transnet and State money. Ms. Zapf asked if these
funding sources were stable. Mr. Jablonski stated he believes the Federal amounts are
stable. ïDA is subject to fluctuation of sales tax and Congress controls the Federal and
STA money which has been stable under Governor Brown. Mr. Jablonski stated rural
service was reviewed in the past and with there being very high ridership subsidy and
MTS has since revamped the entire rural route system.

Action Taken

No action taken. Taken as an informational item.

46. 2014 Bus Rapid Proiect lmplementation and Maior Service Chanoes

Mr. Desmond discussed Rapid implementation and 2014 major service change
proposals including three new routes, related service changes, rider outreach, major
changes, Mid-City Rapid and Mid-City impacts. He provided a map of the proposed new
trial express route and reviewed the l-15 Rapid, current routes 844,845 and 20 and l-15
BRT recommendations, current route 964 and l-15 BRT recommendations, current
premium express map, premium express recommendations, other routes, and the
timeline. Ms. Cooney stated the goals were to make these changes cost neutral.

Ms. Bragg commented with regard to trolley outreach. She advised that she takes the
trolley five days a week during her work commute and any time there is an
announcement from the driver, the riders are listening and become engaged with each
other in conversation. She stated that she appreciates that the announcements are in
both Spanish and English. She commented that MTS's best outreach is that being done
on the system itself and requested that MTS continue this type of outreach, plan for it
and do more of it on the trolley. Mr. Desmond responded that MTS's Planning staff have
been out riding various routes recently and speaking to the drivers who can help relay
information to the riders.

Action Taken

No action taken. Taken as an informational item.

47 . Operations Budoet Status Report for Auoust 2013

Mike Thompson provided a financial review of the comparison to budget -August 31,
2013 - FY2014 including operating revenue, personal and outside costs, total operating
revenue less expenses and on-going concerns.

Action Taken

No action taken. Taken as an informational item.
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MEETTNG OF (DATE):

RECESS:

CLOSED SESSION:

PUBLIC HEARING:

METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ROLL CALL

October 24.2013 CALL TO ORDER (TIME): 9:01 a.m.

ORDINANCES ADOPTED: N/A ADJOURN:

BOARD MEMBER

N/A RECONVENE:

ALVAREZ
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REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM

1. INSTRUCTIONS
This Request to Speak form
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not
on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yieldinq of time is

PLEASE SUBM|T rHtS COMPLETED I_OEU IAND YOUR WRtrrEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISC JSSION OF YOUR ITEM

Metropolitan Transit System

allowed. da items maV not aqain be add
General Public Comments.

PLEASE PRINT

DATE

AGENDA ITEM NO.

ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED

Name

Address

Telephone

Organization Represented

Subject of Your Remarks

W
ø

Regarding Agenda ltem No.

Uoil. 14 ^ 1o t3

Your Comments Present a
Position of:

-t o tt ,{)

TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Heariñg.

DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to
a particular agenda item.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes
Public Comment Agenda ltem. Additional speakers w¡lt Oe heard at the end of the
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L
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REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM

1. INSTRUCTIONS
This Request to Speak form
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not

PLEASE SUBM|T rHts coMpLETED l_oBryr IAND YOUR WRtrrEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISC JSSION OF YOUR ITEM

Metropolitan Transit System

on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yieldinq of time is
allowed.
General Public Comments.

PLEASE PRINT
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AGENDA ITEM NO.

ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED
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Organization Represented

Subject of Your Remarks

E
E

Regarding Agenda ltem No.

Your Comments Present a
Position of:

2.

I

TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Hearíñg.

DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to
a particular agenda item.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes

.Public 
Comment Agenda ltem. Additional speakers will be heard at the end of the
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REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM

PLEASE SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED FORM (AND YOUR WRITTEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISCUSSION OF YOUR ITEM

INSTRUCTIONS
This Request to Speak form
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not
on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yielding of time is

Metropolitan Transit System

allowed. Subiects of previous hearinqs or aqenda items may not aqain be addressed under
General Public Comments.

PLEASE PRINT

DATE

AGENDA ITEM NO.

ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED

Name

Address

Telephone

Organization Represented

Subject of Your Remarks

I I /¡i1.

Regarding Agenda ltem No.

l'\'\ilir\

Your Comments Present a
Position of:

tr 1lt

TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Hearing.

DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to
a particular agenda item.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes
each, under the Public Comment Agenda ltem. Additional speakers will be heard at the end of the
Board's Agenda.
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REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM

PLEASE SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED FORM (AND YOUR WRITTEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISCUSSION OF YOUR ITEM

INSTRUCTIONS
This Request to Speak form
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not
on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yielding of time is

Metropolitan Transit System

General Public Comments.

PLEASE PRIN

DATE

AGENDA ITEM NO.

ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED

Name

Address

Telephone

Organ ization Represented

Subject of Your Remarks

ø

w

Regarding Agenda ltem No.

Your Comments Present a
Position of:

TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Hearing.

DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to
a particular agenda item.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes
each, under the Public Comment Agenda ltem. Additional speakers will be heard at the end of the
Board's Agenda.
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1255 lmperialAvenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 ¡ FAX (6191234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

APPOINTMENT OF AD HOC NOMINATING COMMITTEE FOR RECOMMENDING
APPOTNTMENTS TO MTS COMMTTTEES FOR 2014 (SHARON COONEY)

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors appoint an Ad Hoc Nominating Committee to make
recommendations to the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the Board
to serve as Vice-Chair, Chair Pro-Tem and on MTS and non-MTS committees for 2014.

Budoet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

Each year, the Board makes appointments to various committees (pursuant to MTS
Board Policy No. 22 - Rules of Procedure for the Metropolitan Transit System)
(Attachment A), including the Budget Development Committee, Ad Hoc Public Security
Committee, Audit Oversight Committee, Executive Committee, Joint Committee on
Regional Transit (JCRT), Taxicab Committee, Los Angeles-San Diego Rail Corridor
Agency (LOSSAN), and the Accessible Services Advisory Committee (ASAC). The
Executive Committee membership is governed by MTS Board Policy 22.8. The
Executive Committee appoints the representative to the San Diego Association of
Governments (SANDAG) Transportation Committee. Attachment B is a table of
committee appointments for 2013.

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No.

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 r (619) 231-1466 o www.sdmts.com

Motropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a Calilornla publ¡c agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp,, San Diego Trolley, lnc,, San Dl6go and Arlzona Eastern Railway Company
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MTS Board Policy No. 22 specifies that on or before the Board's first meeting in
November, the Board shall appoint less than a quorum of members to an Ad Hoc
Nominating Committee. Last year's Ad Hoc Nominating Committee included Board
members Mathis, Roberts, Cunningham, and Ewin.

The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall review the list of MTS committees and make
recommendations to the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the Board
to serve on each committee. The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee is also tasked with
reviewing the list of outside boards and/or committees and making recommendations to
the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the Board to represent MTS on
each outside board or committee, except for the Board representative appointed to the
SANDAG Transportation Committee, which is appointed by the Executive Committee.

The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee forwards its recommendations for appointments of
officers and committee members on or before the first Board meeting in January.

The election procedures to appoint an Ad Hoc Nominating Committee pursuant to
Robert's Rules of Order are as follows:

1. The Chairman

2. The Chairman
second.

3.

4.

5.

o.

7.

The Chairman closes the nominations.

The Chairman invites the candidate(s) to address the Board for three minutes.

The Chairman asks for any Board discussion.

The Chairman calls for the vote on each motion for each candidate.

A vote is taken on the motion(s) for each candidate based upon the order in
which they were nominated. The vote continues until a candidate is elected,

of the Board opens the agenda item,

requests nominations from the floor. Nominations do not require a

Paul Cl

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Board Policy 22
B. Table of MTS Committees for 2013
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1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 921 01 -7 490
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FAx619t234-3407

Board Approval: 12111108

SUBJECT:

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE METROPOLTTAN TRANSTT SYSTEM (MTS)

PURPOSE:

To define and clariff Board Rules of Procedure and incorporate them in Board Policy.

BACKGROUND:

ln 1977, the Board adopted Rules of Procedure by resolution and from time to time
amendments have been adopted. The Rules shall be contained in Board Policy for ease
of reference and periodic updating.

22.1

22.1.1 Membership in this Board is established by Division 11, Chapter 1,

Section 120050 through 120051.6 of the California Public Utilities
Code.

Policies and Procedures

Att. A, A{14,11114113

No. 22

22.1.2 The Board consists of 15 members selected as follows:

a. One member of the County of San Diego Board of
Supervisors appointed by the Board of Supervisors.

b. Four members of the City Gouncil of the City of San Diego,
one of whom may be the mayor, appointed by the City
Council.

c. One member of each city council appointed individually by
the City Councils of the Cities of Chula Vista, Coronado,
ElCajon, lmperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove,
NationalCity, Poway, and Santee.

C,íy of San ttiogo, Clty ot Sþteo, añd lha Coùrnly ol gân O¡ogo.
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221.3

d. One person, a resident of San Diego County, elected by a
two{hirds vote of the Board, a quorum being present, who
shall serve as chairperson of the Board.

Any person who is a member of the Board may be appointed by
his or her appointing authority to continue to serve as a member of
the Board after the termination of his or her term of office for a
period not to exceed four years after the date of termination of his
or her term of elected office.

Alternate members of the Board shall be appointed as follows:

a. The County of San Diego Board of Supervisors shall
appoint any other county supervisor who qualifies for
appointment to serve as an alternate member.

b. The City Council of the City of San Diego shall appoint a
member of the City Council not already appointed to serve
as an alternate member.

c. The City Councils of the Cities of Chula Vista, Coronado,
ElCajon, lmperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove,
National City, Poway, and Santee shall each individually
appoint a member of their respective city councils not
already appointed to serve as an alternate member.

This Board shall exercise all powers authorized by the laws of the
State of California.

Only the duly selected official representative, or in his or her
absence his or her duly selected alternate, shall be entitled to
represent a member agency in the deliberations of the Board.

Names of the official representatives and alternates shall be
communicated in writing to the Board by each participating
member agency and shall thereafter be annually communicated or
reaffTrmed prior to the February meeting of the Board and at such
other times as changes in representation are made by member
agencies.

The Board shall have the authority to appoint committees or
subcommittees and may provide for the appointment of alternates
to these committees or subcommittees.

Standing committees shall be appointed by the Board as may be
required to carry out general and continuing functions and shall be
abolished only upon specific action by the Board.

Ad hoc specialized subcommittees may be appointed by the
Board as the need arises to accomplish specific tasks. Upon
completion of its assignment, each ad hoc subcommittee shall
disband.
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22.1.11 Board members serving on such subcommittees shall be
compensated as provided by Board ordinance. The Chief
Executive Offlcer is authorized to enter into agreements
to compensate individuals who were Board members at the time
of their appointments to such subcommittees and who continue to
serve on such subcommittees after their terms of office as Board
members, subject to the same limitations as exist for
compensation of Board members, and subject to replacement
by the Board.

22.2 Meetinqs

22.2.1 On or before the first regular meeting of the Board in December of
each year, the Board shall adopt a schedule of its meetings by
date, time, and location for the coming year. The Board shall
conduct at least one regular meeting in each of the subsequent
twelve months. The schedule of the meetings shall be published
in the local newspaper of general circulation prior to the next
regular meeting.

The Board may, when necessary, change the time and place of
regular meetings. Notice of such change shall be posted pursuant
to the Ralph M. Brown Act.

The Clerk of the Board shall forward written notice of the annual
schedule of regular meetings and any changes thereto stating the
dates, times, and locations to each member's agency and to the
respective members and alternates of the Board and the standing
committees,

Special meetings may be called and noticed under the provisions
of the Ralph M. Brown Act as applicable and, specifically,
Section 54956 of the California Government Code, The call and
notice shall be posted in an area accessible to the public at least
24 hours prior to the meeting.

Special meetings normally shall be called by a majority of the
Board or Executive Committee only upon a finding that
extraordinary circumstances require Board action prior to the next
scheduled Board meeting, such as to discuss a work stoppage or
significant litigation, or that a special meeting is necessary to hold
a workshop, a joint meeting with another agency, or for other
special purposes at a future date beyond the next Board meeting.
The Chair may call such meetings only when such extraordinary
circumstances arise after the last Board or Executive Committee
meeting and Board action is required prior to the next regularly
scheduled Board or Executive Committee meeting.

A majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum
for the transaction of business, and all official acts of the Board
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22.2.2

Att. A, A14,11114113

22.2.3

22.2.4

22.2.5

A-3



22.2.6

shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of
the Board.

Parliamentary procedure at all meetings shall be governed by
Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised except as othenruise
modified herein.

Prior to each regular meeting, the Clerk of the Board shall forward
a copy of the agenda to each member in accordance with the
schedule adopted by the Board. The agendas shall also be
mailed to each person or entity previously requesting such in
writing. The Clerk shall post the agenda in an area accessible to
the public at least 72 hours before the meeting in accordance with
the Ralph M. Brown Act. Agenda materials shall be available as
public record in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act and,
specifically, Section 54957.5 of the California Government Code.

The Board may take action on items of business not appearing on
the posted agenda in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act.

Requests for Board action may be initiated by any member of the
Board or any staff officer.

Communication requests may be initiated by an individual and
submitted to the Clerk by letter or on forms provided by the Clerk
and must state the subject matter and the action which the writer
wishes the Board to take. The Clerk shall review all
communication requests so received and shall list them on the
Board's docket under those items which the Clerk deems to be
proper areas of discussion or action by the Board. When a
Communications item is listed on the docket, it is not debatable
and must be referred to an appropriate committee, other public
agency, or to staff to prepare a report or response.

Any permanent rule of the Board as set forth herein and unless
otherwise established by law may be suspended temporarily by a
two-thirds vote of the members present.

22.2.7

22.2.8

22.2.9

22.2.10
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22.2.11

22.3 Amendments

22.3.1

22.3.2

22.3.3

The Board shall be responsible for making allamendments to
these rules.

Proposed amendments may be originated by the Board, or any
member of such, or by the Chief Executive Officer.

Each proposed amendment shall be considered by the Board and
a copy thereof forwarded by the Clerk of the Board to the official
representative of each member agency.
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22.4 Ordinances

22.4.1

22.4.2

22.4.3

Every ordinance shall be signed by the Chairman of the Board
and attested by the Clerk of the Board.

On the passage of all ordinances, the votes of the several
members of the Board shall be entered on the minutes.

Ordinances shall not be passed within five days of their
introduction nor at other than a regular meeting or at an adjourned
regular meeting. However, an urgency ordinance may be passed
immediately upon introduction either at a regular or special
meeting. Except when, after reading the title, further reading is
waived by regular motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board
members present, all ordinances shall be read in full either at the
time of introduction or passage. When ordinances, other than
urgency ordinances, are altered after introduction, they shall be
passed only at a regular or at an adjourned regular meeting held
at least five days after alteration. Corrections of typographical or
clerical errors are not alterations within the meaning of this
section.

The Clerk of the Board shall cause a proposed ordinance or
proposed amendment to an ordinance, and any ordinance
adopted by the Board, to be published at least once, in a
newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the
Board's area of jurisdiction.

The publication of an ordinance, as required by subdivision, may
be satisfied by either of the following actions:

a. The Board may publish a summary of a proposed
ordinance or proposed amendment to an ordinance. The
summary shall be prepared by the Clerk of the Board and
General Counsel. The summary shall be published and a
certified copy of the full text of the proposed ordinance or
proposed amendment shall be posted in the office of the
Clerk of the Board at least five (5) days prior to the Board
meeting at which the proposed ordinance or amendment is
to be adopted. Within 15 days after adoption of the
ordinance or amendment, the Board shall publish a
summary of the ordinance or amendment with the names
of those Board members voting for and against the
ordinance or amendment, and the Clerk of the Board shall
post in the office of the clerk a certified copy of the full text
of the adopted ordinance or amendment along with the
names of those Board members voting for and against the
ordinance or amendment.

b. lf the person designated by the Board determines that it is
not feasible to prepare a fair and adequate summary of the
proposed ordinance or amendment, and if the Board so
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orders, a display advertisement of at lease one-quarter of
a page in a newspaper of general circulation in the Board's
area of jurisdiction shall be published at least fìve (5) days
prior to the Board meeting at which the proposed
ordinance or amendment is to be adopted. Within 15 days
after adoption of the ordinance or amendment, a display
advertisement of at least one-quarter of a page shall be
published. The advertisement shall indicate the general
nature of, and prove information regarding, the adopted
ordinance or amendment, including information sufficient
to enable the public to obtain copy of the complete text of
the ordinance or amendment and the name of those Board
members voting for and against the ordinance amendment.

22.4.6 Ordinances shall take effect thirty days after their fìnal passage.
An ordinance takes effect immediately, if it is an ordinance for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or safety,
containing a declaration of the facts constituting the urgency and
is passed by a four-fifths vote of the Board.

22.5 Public Comment

22.5.1 At a public hearing of the Board, persons wishing to provide
comment and testimony shall be permitted to address the Board
after submitting a written request to speak to the Clerk identiffing
the person and the subject agenda item. The Chairman may limit
the time for each presentation and may permit additional time to
speakers representing a group of individuals or organizations to
avoid duplicative testimony. Ordinarily, each speaker will be
allowed no more than three minutes.

22.5.2 Persons wishing to comment on agenda items other than a public
hearing must submit a written request to speak in advance to the
Clerk identifying the person and the subject agenda item.
Comments must be limited to issues relevant to the particular
agenda item. The Chairman may limit the time for each
presentation and may permit additionaltime to speakers
representing a group of individuals or organizations to avoid
duplicative testimony. Ordinarily, each speaker will be allowed no
more than three minutes.

22.5.3 Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be permitted on
items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board. Persons wishing to comment must
submit a written request in advance to the Clerk identifoing the
person and subject matter. The Chairman may limit the time for
each speaker. Ordinarily, each speaker will be allowed no more
than three minutes.

Att. A, A14,11114113
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22.6 Chairperson

Prior to the expiration of a Chairperson's term, the Executive Committee shall
make a recommendation to the Board on whether to reelect the current
Chairpersion. ln the event that the Board does not reelect a chairperson, or in
the event of a vacancy in the position of Chairperson, the Executive Committee
shall create an ad hoc nominating committee that shall, by whatever means it
deems appropriate, recommend to the Board a candidate or candidates for the
position of Chairperson. The Board shall then vote to elect a Chairperson.

22.7 Election of Board Officers and Aooointments to Committees

22.7.1 On or before the Board's first meeting in November, the Board
shall appoint less than a quorum of members to an Ad Hoc
Nominating Committee. The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall
review the list of MTS committees and make recommendations to
the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the
Board or former Board members to serve on each MTS
committee.

22.7.2 The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall also review the list of
outside boards and/or committees and make recommendations to
the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the
Board to represent MTS on each outside board or committee,
except for the Board representative appointed to the San Diego
Association of Governments (SANDAG) Transportation
Committee, which shall be appointed by the Executive Committee.

22.7.3 The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall also make a
recommendation to the Board with respect to the appointment of
the Vice Chairman and the Chair Pro Tem and any other board
officers.

22.7.4 The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall forward its
recommendations for appointments of officers and committee
members on or before the first Board meeting in January.

22.7.5 At its first meeting in January, the Board shall elect a Vice
Chairman and a Chair Pro Tem from amongst its members, The
Vice Chairman shall preside in the absence of the Chairman. ln
the event of the absence or inability to act by the Chairman and
Vice Chairman, the Chair Pro Tem shall preside.

22.7.6 The Board shall then vote on the recommendations made by the
Ad Hoc Nominating Committee with respect to all other committee
appointments.

22.7.7 ln the event that a Board member vacates his or her position on
the Board, at the next meeting, the Chairperson shalltake
nominations from the floor to fill any opening in any Committee
positions vacated by that Board member.

-7-
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22.8 ExecutiveCommittee

22.8.1 The Executive Committee of the Board shall consist of the
Chairman, the Vice Chairman (if he or she is not already a voting
member) a member from the County of San Diego, a member
from the City of San Diego, the Transportation Committee
Representative (if he or she is not already a voting member), one
member who represents the cities of Chula Vista, National City,
Coronado, and lmperial Beach (the "South Bay Cities'
representative"), and one member who represents the cities of
Lemon Grove, La Mesa, El Cajon, Poway, and Santee (the "East
County Cities' representative"). The South Bay Cities'
representative and the East County Cities' representative shall
serve as members of the Executive Committee for a term of two
years each. The terms of these two members shall be staggered
so as to avoid replacement of both members at the same time.

22.8.2 The East County and South Bay representatives shall serve in the
following order:

East County: ElCajon, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, Santee, Poway-
each serving a two-year term,

South Bay: Chula Vista, Coronado, lmperial Beach, National
City-each serving a two-year term; however, the representative
must have been the primary Board member for two years in order
to serve as the Executive Committee representative. ln the event
that the South Bay representative has not been the primary Board
member for two years, the rotation schedule shall be adjusted so
that the next city in the rotation serves as the representative, and
the city whose member has not yet served two years as the
primary Board member would serve the term immediately
thereafter; i.e., if lmperial Beach lacked two years of experience,
National City would serve first, then lmperial Beach and then the
rotation would continue on as set forth above. The requirement
for two years of service as the primary Board member shall only
apply to the South Bay represenative.

After each member has served as either the East County or
South Bay representative, the rotation schedule shall repeat.

22.8.3 The alternates to the Executive Committee members shall be as
follows:

22.8.3.1 The alternate for the County of San Diego shall be
the alternate appointed by the County of San Diego
to serve as the alternate for the Board.

2.8.3.2 The alternate for the City of San Diego shall be
selected from amongst the three remaining City of
San Diego Board members.
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2.8.3.3 The alternates for the East County Cities' and the
South Bay Cities' representatives shall be the
representative from the city that is next in the
rotation order set forth in section 22.8.3 above (for
example, if the City of El Cajon is currently the
primary Executive Committee member, then the
City of La Mesa member shall be the alternate
Executive Committee member). Alternates shall be
appointed for a term of two years or such lesser
term as necessary to coincide with the term of the
member for whom the alternate is appointed.

The Vice Chairman shall attend each Executive Committee
meeting as a voting member. The Vice Chairman shall serve as
the alternate to the Chairman in his or her absence and as a
second alternate at large for any of the Executive Committee
representatives and shall be a voting member when serving in this
capacity.

On or before its first meeting in January, the Executive Committee
shall appoint one of its members to serve as the representative
and one of its members to serve as the alternate to the San Diego
Association of Governments (SANDAG) Transportation
Committee to serve for a term of one year. ln the event that the
Executive Committee feels a member of the Board who does not
serve on the Executive Committee is their preferred representative
or alternate for the SANDAG Transportation Committee, the
Executive Committee shall have the ability to select the
representative or alternate from the full Board. ln that instance,
the SANDAG Transportation Committee representative, or the
alternate in his or her absence, shall attend the Executive
Committee meetings as a voting member.

The primary purpose of the Executive Committee shall be to
review and recommend consent items for the agenda of the next
MTS Board of Directors meeting; add or delete items as
appropriate; and provide input and direction on emerging policies,
plans, and issues, in advance, for Board consideration. The
Executive Committee shall have the authority to create ad hoc
subcommittees for purposes of carrying out its duties and
responsibilities.

Three members shallconstitute a quorum of the Executive
Committee, and a majority vote of the members present shall be
required to approve any item. ln the absence of a quorum, the
Chairman may review and recommend consent items for the
agenda, establish the order of items, and add or delete items.

The Executive Committee shalladopt operating procedures as are
necessary for the conduct of its business.
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22.9 Audit Oversight Committee

22.9.1 The Audit Oversight Committee shall be comprised of the same
members that make up the Executive Committee. The Chairman
of the Audit Oversight Committee shall be appointed from
amongst its members at the first meeting held during each
calendar year. The Chairman of the Audit Oversight Committee
shall be another member other than the member who serves as
the Executive Committee Chairman. Additional members of the
MTS Board may be appointed on an annual basis at the first MTS
Board meeting in January at the discretion of the MTS Board. The
Board may appoint individuals who are not members of the Board
to serve as non-voting advisory members to the Audit Oversight
Committee.

No additional compensation shall be paid to the members of the
Audit Oversight Committee unless a meeting takes place on a day
other than a regularly scheduled MTS Board meeting or MTS
Executive Committee meeting. Compensation shall be paid to any
additional members of the MTS Board who are appointed to serve
on the Audit Oversight Committee meeting. No compensation
shall be paid to any non-voting advisory member appointed by the
MTS Board.

The primary duties and responsibilities of the Audit Oversight
Committee shall be to ensure that management is maintaining a
comprehensive framework of internal control, to ensure that
management's fìnancial reporting practices are assessed
objectively, and to determine to its own satisfaction that the
financial statements are properly audited and that any problems
disclosed in the course of the audit are properly resolved.

The tasks to be performed by the Audit Oversight Committee shall
be as follows:

a. Review the appropriate scope of the annual independent
audit and any other audit the committee feels is
appropriate.

b. Review the appropriate scope of nonaudit services to be
performed by the independent auditor.

c. Oversee the procurement of outside auditor services with
final approval by the Board.

d. Review and oversee the preparation of annual financial
statements, the annual financial reporting process, internal
controls, and independent auditors using an appropriate
degree of professional skepticism.

e. Assess the performance of any independent auditors.

_10_
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f. Provide a forum for MTS internalauditors to report
findings.

g. Provide at least an annualwritten and oral report to the
Board on how the committee discharged its duties and
responsibilities.

h. Establish a procedure for receipt, retention, and treatment
of complaints regarding accounting, internal controls, or
auditing matters.

The annual scheduled functions to be performed by the Audit
Oversight Committee shall be as follows:

a, ln June of each year or as soon as reasonably practicable,
review the independent audit engagement letter.

b. ln March or April of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, establish a plan for review of the audits with
independent auditor.

c. ln September of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, receive report on the status of any audit(s).

d. ln October of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, receive a report on the preliminary audit
findings.

e. ln December of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, receive a report and provide feedback on
financialand compliance statements to Board, and provide
the annual report to the Board on the committee's
activities.

f. ln March of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, review the management letter and
management's response to the letter.

On a periodic basis the Audit Oversight Committee shall perform
the following functions:

a. Establish procedure for handling complaints.

b. Receive reports from MTS internal auditor.

c. Report to the Board in addition to annual report.

d. Review the appropriate scope of any nonaudit services
recommended for performance by the independent auditor.

e. Review the procurement of independent auditor services
and make a recommendation to the Board.
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f. Request procurement of outside independent adviso(s)
with Board concurrence.

g. Meet with the independent auditor without MTS
management present.

At a minimum, the Audit Oversight Committee shall ask the
following questions of MTS Staff, the lnternalAuditor and/or the
independent auditors:

a. What is the name of the audit firm performing the audit,
and how long has such firm been under contract to
perform such audits?

b. Was the audit performed in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards (AICPA GAAS standards)or
generally accepted government-auditing standards (GAO
GAGAS)? lf not, why?

c. Has the independent auditor(s) prepared an unqualified
opinion regarding the financial statements? lf not, what
type of opinion was issued and why?

d. Was the audit performed independently? The Audit
Oversight Committee should ask how the audit firm
maintained its independence during the course of the
audit.

e. The Audit Oversight Committee should have the
independent audito(s) describe, in general, the audit
procedures performed.

f. The Audit Oversight Committee should have the
independent audito(s) discuss whether any new
accounting principles were adopted, whether any changes
were made, or whether the independent auditor(s)
recommends any changes in the accounting policies used
or their application. ln particular, the relevant issue is
whether the audit applied best or merely permissible
principles.

g. The Audit Oversight Committee should have the
independent audito(s) describe any significant accounting
adjustments affecting the financial statements (prior year
as well as current year).

h. Did the independent audito(s) encounter any difficulties in

dealing with management in performing the audit, including
whether there were any disagreements with management
regarding any accruals, estimates, reserves, or accounting
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principles? Did the independent auditor(s) have the full
cooperation of MTS management and staff?

i. The Audit Oversight Committee should ask the audit firm
about the quality of the component unit's accounting,
internal controls, and the competency of staff. Did the
independent auditor(s) issue a management letter? What
nonmaterialweaknesses or reportable conditions has the
independent audito(s) noted?

j. Were there any accounting issues on which the audit firm
sought the advice of other audit firms or regulatory bodies?

k. The Audit Oversight Committee should ask the audit firm
whether there are new pronouncements and/or areas of
potential financial risk affecting future financial statements
of which the Audit Oversight Committee should be aware.

22.9.8 Three members shall constitute a quorum of the Audit Oversight
Committee, and a majority vote of the members present shall be
required to approve any item. ln the absence of a quorum, the
Chairman may review and recommend consent items for the
agenda, establish the order of items, and add or delete items.

22.9.9 The Audit Oversight Gommittee shall adopt operating procedures
as are necessary for the conduct of its business.

22.10 Board Member Standards of Conduct

22.10.1 The purpose of this policy is to emphasize that each Board
member occupies a position of public trust that demands the
highest moral and ethical standard of conduct.

22.10.2 This policy shall be supplemental and in addition to the Conflict of
lnterest Code of the Board and is not intended to supersede such
Code or any provisions thereof.

2210.3 Board members shall not engage in any business or transaction or
have a financial or other personal interest, actual, potential, or
apparent, which is incompatible with the proper discharge of his or
her official duties or would tend to impair his or her independence
of judgment or action in the performance of such duties. Such
business, transaction, or interest shall constitute a conflict of
interest.

22.10.4 No Board member shall engage in any enterprise or activity that
shall result in any of the following:

a. Using the prestige or influence of the Board office for
private gain or advantage of the member or another
person.
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b. Using time, facilities, equipment, or supplies of the Board
for the private gain or advantage of the member or another
person.

c. Using offTcial information not available to the general public
for private gain or advantage of the member or another
person.

d. Receiving or accepting money or other consideration from
anyone other than the Board for the performance of acts
done in the regular course of duty.

e. Receiving or accepting, directly or indirectly, any gift or
favor from any one doing business with the Board under
circumstances from which it could reasonably be inferred
that such was intended to influence such person in such
person's duties or as a reward for official action.

f. Soliciting any gift or favor in such person's official capacity,
either directly or indirectly, when such solicitation might
reasonably be inferred as to have a potential effect on
such person's duties or decision, or when the individual's
position as a Board member would in any way influence
the decision of the person being solicited.

g. Engaging in or accepting private employment or rendering
services for private interest, direct or indirect, which may
conflict with such person's responsibility or duty, or which,
because of that person's position, may influence a decision
to the benefit of the organization in which such person has
an interest.

lf a Board member has an actual, potential, or apparent conflict of
interest in the subject of an agenda item, and the Board will make
a decision regarding this agenda item during an open session
meeting, the Board member must recuse himself or herself or, in
the case of uncertainty, request a binding determination from the
Board's General Counsel. lf the Board member has a conflict, he
or she may observe, but not participate, in the decision-making
process.

lf a Board member has an actual, potential, or apparent conflict of
interest in the subject of an agenda item to be discussed during a
closed session meeting, the Board member shall be disqualified
and not present during such discussion so as not to make,
participate in making, or in any way attempt to use his or her
official position to influence the discussion or decision. ln such
case, the Board member must recuse himself or herself or, in the
case of uncertainty, request a binding determination from the
Board's General Counsel. ln accordance with the Brown Act, the
Board member would be entitled to any information that is publicly
reported. The Board member would not, however, be privy to any
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22.10.7

confidential or privileged information or communications pertaining
to the closed session agenda item.

No Board member shall disclose to any person, other than
members of the Board and other Board staff designated to handle
such confidential matters, the content or substance of any
information presented or discussed during a closed session
meeting unless the Board authorizes such disclosure by the
affirmative vote by a majority of the Board.

No Board member may disclose confidentialor privileged
information or communications to any person other than a Board
member, General Counselto the Board, or other Board staff
designated to handle such matters, unless disclosure is mandated
by law or the Board authorizes such disclosure by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the Board.

A Board member shall not be privy to confldential or privileged
information or communications concerning threatened,
anticipated, or actual litigation affecting the Board where the
Board member has an actual, potential, or apparent conflict of
interest. ln the case of uncertainty as to whether a conflict of
interest exists, the Board's General Counsel shall issue a binding
determination.

No Board member shall represent a position on an issue to be the
Board's unless the Board has formally adopted such position at a
public meeting.

Any violation of this policy shall constitute official misconduct if
determined by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Board in
an open and public meeting. The Board may elect to censure the
Board member and the violation may be subject to criminal and/or
civil penalties as provided for by applicable law.

22.10.8

22.10.9
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2OI3 SLATE OF MTS COMMITTEES AND OUTSIDE AGENCY APPOINTMENTS

Accessible Services Advisory Committee
(ASAc)

Lorie Bragg - Chair

I trärry Mätnis -öoñim¡ttêe"nepreseriiãñä
I Ron Roberts - Alternate

l"Ëinie Ewn r óorìrniteönepredäìtat-ivò 
"'

i Harry Mathis - Committee Representative

lBôild or öîreciöid

Budget Development Committee

Ron Roberts - County Representative
(Altemate:Greg Cox)

Todd Gloria- City of San Diego Representative

(Alternate: Marti Emerald)

Al Ovrom- South Bay Representative
(Alternate: Lorie Bragg)

Jim Cunningham - East County Representative
(Altemate: Bob McClellan)

Executive Committee

i irñän

I Chairman
I

I Pro Tem

Joint Committee on Regional Transit
(JCRT)

Los Angeles - San Diego Rail Corridor
Agency (LOSSAN)

SANDAG Board

snruoÁc neöìoñà Þrànri¡nö ømrñittt;è 
-

SAN DAG Transportation Committee*

Harry Mathis - Chair

Ron Roberts - County Representative- Vice Chair
(Altemate:Greg Cox)

Todd Gloria- City of San Diego Representative
(Alternate: Marti Emerald)

Al Ovrom- South Bay Representative
(Altemate: Lorie Bragg)

Revised on 01117113

I iãx¡óan õômm¡lieá
I
ì

-"" 
ILôiizâpi:ñaii 

"*
i aob VcClellan - Alternate

j Härry luatnis - Âovisory Representative

r Ron Roberts - Alternate

i Mona Rios - Committee Representative

f Al Ovrom- Alternate

| úarry Mathis - Advisory Representative

I Al Ovrom - Alternate



1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 ¡ FAX (61e)234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

SAN DIEGO AND ARIZONA EASTERN (SD&AE) RAILWAY COMPANY QUARTERLY
REPORTS AND RATIFICATION OF ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE SD&AE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AT ITS MEETING ON OCTOBER22,2013

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors:

1. receive the San Diego and lmperial Valley Railroad (SD&|V), Pacific Southwest
Railway Museum Association (Museum), and Pacific lmperial Railroad, lnc. (PlR)
quarterly reports (Attachment A) for information; and

2. ratify actions taken by the SD&AE Board at its quarterly meeting on October 22,
2013.

Budget lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to the Agreement for Operation of Freight Rail Services, SD&IV, Museum, and
PIR have provided operations reports during the third quarter of 2013 (Attachment A).

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No. 6

Key Staff Contact: Karen Landers, 61 9.557.451 2, Karen. Landers@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. SD&AE Meeting Agenda & Materials (Board Only Due to Volume)

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000, San Diego, CA 921 01 -7490 o (619) 231 -1466 . www.sdmts.com

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a Galifornia public agency comprised of San Diego Translt Corp., San Díego Trolley, lnc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
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BOARD OI' DIf,.ßCTON,S

sRÄD OYrt.f, CHA.IRPEf, SON

MATT DOMEN

IAUL JABLONSru

OFFICERS

&lUL !¡{ÛLONSXI¡ PRESIDENT

MATT DOMBN, SBCRBTAI{Y

ÉN¡N DUNN, 'TRËÀSIJRËR

LEGAL COUNSIL
rAREN IáNDB8s

Executive Committee Room
James R. Mills Building

'1255 lmperial Avenue, 1Oth Floor

This information will be made available in alternative formats upon request. To request
an agenda in an alternative format, please call the Clerk of the Board at least five working
days prior to the meeting to ensure availability, Assistive Listening Devices (ALDs) are
avaifable from the Clerk of the Board prior to the meeting and are to be returned at the
end of the meeting.

ACTION
RECOMMENDED

1 . Aporoval of the Minutes of Julv 16. 2013 Approve

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company

Board of Directors Meetíng

October 22,2013

9:00 a.m.

AGENDA

Action would approve the SD&AE Railway Company Minutes of
July'16,20'13.

2. Statement of Railwav Finances lErin Dunn)
Action would receive a report for information.

Att. A, At 6,11t14t13

3.
Operations lMatt Domen)
Action would receive a report for information,

Report on Pacific Southwest Railwav Museum (Diana Hyatt)
Action would receive a report for information.

Reoort on the DesçÍt Line (Chas McHaffie)
Action would receive a report for information.

Real Prooert)¡ Matters lTim Allison)

a.
Action would receive a report for information.

b, License Aqreement with Cox Communications. lnc,
Action would approve issuing a license to Cox
Gommunications, lnc, for a proposed underground fiber-
optics utility crossing under SD&AE tracks located at
milepost 9.6 on the Coronado Branch Line in Chula Vista.

c. Underqround Sewer Main Easement
Action would approve an easement to the City of La Mesa for
a proposed underground B-inch High-Density Polyethylene
Pipe (HDPE) trunk sewer pipeline.

4.

5.

b.

Receive

Receive

Receive

Receive

Receive

Approve

Approve

A-1



lKaren landers)
Act¡on would approve the 2014 SD&AE Board of Directors meeting
schedule.

8. Board Member Communications

9. Public Comments

10. Next Meeting Date
The next meeting of the SD&AE Railway Company Board of
Directors is scheduled on January 14,2014 (Upon approval of Al
No.7)

11. Adjournment

Att. A, At 6, 11t',t4t13

Approve
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MINUTES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF THE
SAN DIEGO & ARIZONA EASTERN RA]LWAY COMPANY

July 16, 2013

A meeting of the Board of Dlrectors of the San Diego & Arizona Eastern (SD&AE) Railway Company, a
Nevada corporation, was held at 1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, California 92101, on
July 16, 2013, at 9:00 a.m,

The followlng persons, constituting the Board of Dlrec'tors, were present: Brad Ovltt, Matt Domen, and

PaulJablonskl. Also in attendance were members from:

San Dlego Metropolltan Translt System: Tlm Allison, Karen Landers, Wayne Terry,
Tom Lynch

Paclfic Southwest Rallway Museum: Dlana Hyatt
Paclfio lmperial Railroad, lnc.: Ernest Dahlman, Chas McHaffie, Sheila LeMire

Burlington Northern Santa Fe: John Hoegemeier

1. Aporoval of Minutes

Mr. Jablonsklmoved to approve the Minutes of the April 16, 2013, SD&AE Railway Board of
Dlrectors meeting, Mr. Domen seoonded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.

Mr. Ovltt offered hls congratulatlons to Mr. Domen who was promoted from Assistant General
Manager to General Manager of SD&IV.

Statement of Railwav Flnances

Tom Lynch, MTS Controtler, presented the report for Llnda Mugengo (who was-unable to attend

the meetlng). The flnancial statement forthe second quarter o12013 was distributed at the

meeting (attached).

Actlon Taken

Mr. Jablonskl moved recelve a report for information. Mr. Dornen seconded the motion, and it

was unanlmously approved.

Karen Landers added that there was also an action to forward a recommendatlon to the MTS

Board of Dtrectors to elect Erin Dunn, MTS Assistant Finance Manager, ag Treagurer to replace

Linda Musengo (who is retiring), Ms. Landers stated that Ms. Dunn will be assumlng the
position of MiS F¡nance Manãger. Mr, Lynoh reported that Ms. Dunn is a CPA and is very well

qualified,

Aotion Taken

Mr. Domen moved to forward a recommendation to the MTS Board of Dlrectors to eleot Erin Dunn

as SD&AE Treasurer to replace the posltlon being vacated by Linda Musengo. Mr. Ovitt

seconded the motlon, and it was unanimously approved.
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SD&AE Rallway company Board Meeting Minutes July 16, 2013

3.

Matt Domen reviewed the report of activities for the second quarter of 2013 (attached to the
agenda item).

Actlon Taken

Mr. Jablonski moved to receive the report for information. Mr. Domen seconded the motion,
and it was unanimously approved,

4. Reoort on Pacific Southwest Rallwav Museum Operations

Dlana Hyatt reviewed the second quarter of 2013 report (attaohed to the agenda item).

Action Taken

Mr. Jablonski moved to receive the report for information. Mr. Domen seconded the motlon,
and it was unanimously approved.

5. Report on the Desert Line

A written report (attached) was not submltted in tlme for the meetlng. Chas McHaffie stated that
milestones (for the Desert Llne) that are timely today lnclude the half-million-dollar fee paid (by
PIR) ln June (to MTS). The proposals for J. L, Patterson to do bridge inspections have been
signed and paid. Watkins Environmental and Watkins Construction have been retained to
operate the construction program on the Desert Line.

Mr. McHaffie reported that PIR is in negotiations with Pacific lmperial Railroad de Mexico to
consolidate the operating lease with Mexican buslness authorltles. Mr. McHaffie will report back
at the next meeting regarding the success of that endeavor.

Ms. Landers stated that PIR's report must be submitted prior to the meeting. She reiterated that
the meeting schedule and due dates are preset, and reports should be submitted without
promptlng. Ms. Landers added that she does not want to have to make this request at every
meeting and expects these reports well ln advance of the meetings. Mr. McHaffie agreed and
stated that he would send the updated report to the clerk via e-mail right afterthe meeting.

Mr. Jablonski asked about the schedule for Desert Line rehabilitation. Mr. McHaffie responded
that weed clearing wlll begln next week, and payment will be made thls week to Watkins
Construc{ion, Tlm Alllson added that he has not received any rlght of entry permit requests from
Watkins Construction. Mr. Allison stated that last week, he prompted Damon Barone (Chief
Operatlng Officer) of Watklns Construction to get a rlght of entry appllcation submitted for
Watkins to work on the line and that no one other than PIR employees should be out there
working without a permlt.

Mr. Jablonski asked for clarification of the priorities of work on the Desert Line. Mr. McHaffie
responded that weed abatement is the top priority due to fire risks. Sheila LeMire added that in
order to run the ultrasound machines on the line to test the ties and rail, the line must be cleared
of brush before repair work can commence. lt was noted that PIR is responsible for 70 miles of
line, and the Museum is responslble for 6 mlles,

Mr. Allison reported that there was a kickoff meeting at Don Stoecklein's office last week with
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J. L. Patterson representatives and Damon Barone of Watkins Construction (hereinafter refened
to as'contractors"). A baseline schedule willbe modified and resubmitted, whlch will show allof
the differentwork servlces. The contractors are golng to clearthe gauge so they can run the
ultrasound rnachine and process the entlre llne. Mr. Allison stated the contractors have
contacted the Federal Rallroad Admlnistration (FRA) and Californla Publlc Utilities Commisslon
(CPUC) regarding the proposed work so they can get onboard prlor to commencement.
Mr. Alllson added that he feels that J. L. Patterson has a good handle on the duties.

Wayne Terry clarified for Mr. Jablonskl that a private contractor ls hired to perform the
ultrasound on the Desert Llne ralls. Mr. Allison added that Fred Byle, MTS Superlntendent of
Wayside Malntenance, is available es a resource.

Mr. Jablonskl requested e copy of PIR's schedule for work on the Desert Line. Mr. McHaffle
clarified for Mr. Ovitt that the schedule for brush clearing begins next week (a right of entry
permit will be requlred).

Action Taken

Mr. Ovitt moved to recelve the report for lnformation. Mr. Jablonski seconded the motion, and it
was unanimously approved.

6. RealPropertvMatters

6a. Summarv of SD&AE Documents lssued Since Apdl 16. 2013

Slnce the Aprll 16, 2013, SD&AE Rallway Company Board of Directors meeting, the
documents described below have been processed by staff.

5200-13-559: Right of Entry Permit to SDG&E for a transformer removal at the
Lemon Grove Depot In the City of Lemon Grove.

o 5200-13-562: Right of Entry Permlt to Navy Reglon Southwestforthe Bay
Bridge RunMalk.

o 5200-13-563: Easement to SDG&E for power service to a newtraction power
substation at Seaward Avenue in the Clty of San Diego.

S200-13-564: Easement to SDG&E for power servlce to a newtractlon power
suUstat¡on at Z7ü Street in the City of San Diego.

5200-13-565: Easement to SDG&E for power service to a new traction power
substatlon at Market Creek Plaza ln the Clty of San Dlego.

Easement to SDG&E for power service to a new tractlon power
3h Street in the City of San Diego.

S200-13-568: Right of.Entry Permit to PAR Electrical Contractors lnc. for electric
facilities removal at24s Street in the City of San Diego.

S200-13-569: Rlght of Entry Permit to the City of La Mesa forthe La Mesa Flag
Day Parade.

-3-
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5200-13-570: Right of Entry Permlt to COMM22 Famlly Houslng L.P. to
construct resldential housing al24h Street in the City of San Diego.

S200-13-571: Easement to SDG&E for power service to a new tractlon power
substatlon at Palm Avenue ln the Clty of San Diego.

3200-13-572: Right of Entry Permit to Flatiron West, lnc. to construct the Blue
Line Low-Floor Station lmprovements prdect.

5200-13-577: Right of Entry Permit to Aguine Engineering for general land
surveying on SD&AE right-of-way.

S200-13-578: Rlght of Entry Permlt to the San Diego County Bicycle Coalition
for the Bike the Bay fun bike rlde.

3200-13-579: Right of Entry Permlt to SDG&E for pole removaland overhead
wlre transfer at Moss Street ln the Clty of Chula Msta.

Action Taken

Mr. Ovitt moved to receive the report for information. Mr. Jablonskl seconded the
motion, and it was unanimously approved.

Easements for an At€rade Crossino at the U.S./Mexico Border in San Ysidro

Tim Allison showed an overhead of the proposed easement to the Department of
Homsland Security (DHS) for a commonly used eccess road (by DHS and the U.S.
Border Patrol) at the south llne on the San Ysidro border known as the Durand Gate.
Mr. Alllson explalned that the Board previously authorized two slmilar easements on the
Desert Line to access the border fence. He revlewed the overhead and explalned the
layout of the area.

Mr. Allison explalned that the San Diego Association of Govemments (SANDAG) is
requesting a qult clalm deed from the U.S. Govemment for property near Beyer in
relatlon to the San Ysidro lntermodalYard Expansion Project. DHS wants to make sure
that this easement is in place. Mr. Allison and Ms. Landers have been working on the
language for the lndemnlflcatlon to address the U,S. Government'E issues.

Mr. Allison clarlfled for Mr. Jablonski that thls request wlll be ln additlon to the other two
easements. Ms. Landers clarified that this request is tied up with the San Ysidro
lntermodal Yard Project, whlch may not be able to move forward unless some of the
issues are resolved.

Discussion ensued regarding the layout of the easement. Mr. Ovitt clarified that
although the easement has been accessed for yeaß, we will now get compensation for
its use. Ms. Landers added that lt's the indemnifioation that will have the most value as
the easement fees are fairly nominal. Ms. Landers stated that she recommends belng
cooperative in grantlng the easement agreement.

6b.
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Mr. Domen stated that the Baja Rallroad ls going to replaoe the rail between the border
fences. He reported that the Border Patrol cemented overthe ralls years ago without
permission, and now lt needs to be repalred. Mr. Domen asked who will pay for that
expense. Mr. Jablonsklstated that the Border Patrol should be required to make a
legltimate track crosslng. Mr. Allison agreed, and conversatlon contlnued about needed
lmprovements to the easement.

Ms. Landers added that the tlme ls now to have thls discussion (before granting the
easement). lt was agreed that terms would be lncluded in the language requiring repairs
lf there ls any damage to the easement, Ms. Landers explained that the U.S.
Government says it can't agree to a contract that's not already appropriated by
Congress and states that you have to file a federal tort clalm for liabllity claims outside of
its contract.

Afterdiscussion regarding the property and the upooming improvement project, it was
agreed that property-{lne research of the proposed easement area should be conduc-ted
to determlne ownershlp, and lmprovements or damage repalr by DHS should be
incorporated into the permanent easement agreement. Mr. Alllson willschedule a
meetlng wlth DHS to address these lssues. He added that there will also be an at-grade
construction and maintenence agreement.

Actlon Taken

Mr. Jablonski moved to approve issuing an easementto the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security (DHS) for an atgrade crossing over SD&AE tracks located at the
U.S./Mexlco border in San Ysldro contlngent upon resolutlon of the terms of crossing-
improvement criterla. Mr. Domen seconded the motion, and it was unanimously
approved.

7. Board Member Communicatlons

8.

There were no Board member communicatlons.

Public Comments

a

Mr. LaSalle stated that Donald Stoeckleln (of PIR) made a presentatlon a fEw weeks ago
at Toyota and sald that the Desert Llne will be operable in January 2O14lo move cargo
to the maquiladoras. Mr. LaSalle added that businesses in lÛlexlco are interested but
won't slgn on until the SD&AE Board approves the contract. He added that they are also
concerned about the security of the cargo headed for the maqulladoras and the numbEr
of mllestones requlred in the contrac't. He asked for confirmation by the SD&AE Board
of the January 2014 start date.

Mr. Jablonskl responded that the January 2014 start date ls not llsted as a mllestone in
the contract between SD&AE and PlR. He added that PIR can keep its deadlines and
mlleetones, but he ls not golng to speak for PlR. Mr. Jablonskl stated that the SD&AE
Board will hold PIR to its contractual schedule. Mr. Jablonski reported that test trains
and limited service aren't scheduled to start until around March or April 2014.
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Mr. Jablonski explained that from the SD&AE Board's standpoint as owners leasing to
PlR, the focus is on the safety of operating the Desert Line, which includes bridge and
track inspections, and that security is another issue. Ms. Landers added that PIR is
required to have a plan with the Border Patrol and customs and has to meet all of the
terms of the contract before operating. Ms. Landers added that if PIR is able to
complete the milestones ahead of schedule, there should not be a problem. She
clarified that MTS will receive the reports from the construction managers and the
inspectors, and if necessary, will conduct additional inspections. Mr. Jablonski added
that MTS will review the plans for deficiencies or otherwise accept them as satisfactory if
there are no deficiencies.

Ms. Landers clarified for Mr. LaSalle that the miles-per-hour standard for train operations
is set by the FRA. Mr. Jablonskiadded that Class 1 is set at 10 or 15 miles per hour.
He stated that he feels that it is not the FRA's long-term intent to have the line operating
at that speed, He stated that the Class 1 speed is a reasonable objective initially
because the line hasn't been operated in a long time, and a lot has to happen on the
Mexico side (to address tunnel damage across the border and other issues).

Mr. LaSalle inquired as to when the damaged tunnel will be repaired. He stated that
representatives from ADMICARGA will not invest in repairing the tunnel until a start date is
set for operations. Ms. Landers responded that PIR staff reported today that they are
beginning work on the Desert Line on the U.S. side next week. Mr. Jablonski added that it
will depend upon PIR's completion of milestones in the schedule.

Mr. LaSalle informed the Board that his organization would send a letter to memorialize
its safety and security concerns.

Next Meetino Date

The next meeting of the SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors is on October 15, 2013.

Adiournment

The meeting was adjourned at 9:37 a.m.

9.

10.

Attachments: Statement of Railway Finances (handout at meeting)
PIR's Periodic Report (2nd Quafter)

-6-
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San Dlego and Arlzona Eastem (SD&AE)
Railway Company

Board of Dlrectors Meetlng

, 
July 16,2013

SUBJECT:

STATEMENT OF RAILWAY FINANCES

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Board of Dlrectors reoelve a financial report for four quarters ended
June30,2013.

Budoet lmoaot

None.

DISCUSSION:

Attaohed are the unaudlted flnanclal results for four quarters of flscal years 2013 and
2012, whlch lncludes the perlods ended June 2013 and 2012. These statemonts are
subJect to adjustmentfor depreclatlon and other revenue or expense items that may
occur durlng the annualfinancial audlt to be completed before the end of December
2013.

The ounent year-todate lncome ls $638,878 favorable to budget due to sale of property
resultlng ln a$642,214 unbudgeted galn on sale. Revenue for the SD&IV frelght fee was
not recelved during the year but has been accrued as a recelvable as of June 30,2013.
SD&AE has reoeived $500,000 from Paclfic lmperial Rallroad ln payment of the flrst
lnstallment under the Desert Llne Lease and Operating Agreement dated December 20,
2012, Addltlonal payments ln accordance wlth the lease schedule wlll be due
semiannually untll llmlted operations begln after whlch payments wlll be due quarterly.
The lnitial payment wlll be recognlzed as of July 1,2013. Management, ln consultatlon
wlth the audltors, wlllanalyze the lease terms to determine when the lease payments
should be recognlzed; as a result, subsequent adJustment to the June 30, 2013, flnanolal
statements may be requlred.

lncome has increased by S684,129 oompared to the same perlod last year due to the
property sale clted above and a slgnifìcant increase ln Right of Entry permits. Flnally,
SD&AE recelved $683 from the Secretary of State related to checks sent to us ln 1995
that were never cashed.

Expenses are $15,051 unfavorable to budget due to increased personnel costs and fees
paid to PGH Wong for englneerlng servlces, both related to increased Rlght of Entry

Hondout of meeting

Agenda ltem No. 2

Att. A, At 6,'t'U't4t13
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permlts actlvity; and $4,733 pald'to RL Banks for oonsultlng seMces related to the Desert
Llne profeot.

Expenses have lnoreased by $28,255 over the same perlod last year due to a $20,156
lncrease ln personnelcosts and a $29,728lncrease ln Outside SeMces as stated above.
Net lncome for FYl3 was $650,560 compared to a net loss of $(5,313) for the same
perlod lnñ( 12.

Attachment: SD&AE Operatlng Statement 4th Quarter FY 13

Atr. A, At 6,11t14t13
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Lease inqne
Other income
SD&IV 1% freightfee
Gain on sale of property

Total revenue
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O¡tside services
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Net lncome{loss)
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Att. A, Ar 6,11t14t13

.Ittne go, 201g

The periodic report to the SD&AE Railway Company is produced quarterly by the

Pacific lmperial Railroad for the SD&AE Board, in fulfillment of contractual
requirements and to document activity in the restoration of the line to regional

service along with its ongoing improvement for future generations.

PER.TOÐTC REPTRT-

A-'.t2



Pacific Imperial Railroad

Second Quarter 2tr13

I. GOVERNMENTAL

IT. DESIERÎ LINE

rrl. REPORTABT,E TNJLTRTES / ACCTDENTS /
ENYIRONMENTAL INCIDENTS¡

fV. ITIARKETING

V. EREIGHTACTTVITY

Vf. MTS OPERATINGAGREEMENT REQUIREMEr{TS

CONTENTS

Att. A, At 6, 11t14t13
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I. G{OVERNMEÌ\ÍTAL

a. No developments during this quarter.

rI. DESERT LINE STATUS

a. Reconslruction plan

l. Inspecdons - pIR received a proposal to pmvide bridge

inspecüon, Bridge Management program, Track Inspection and

Tunnel Inspection from J.L. patterson &Associates, Inc. pIR

accepted the proposal and is now worHng with J.L. pattercon to

provide initial repairs to the Desert Line to enable operations of

freþht seruice.

ii. constmction PIR has executed an agneement with watkins

Environmental, Inc. wherein Watkins Environmental, Inc. shall

perform the necessary repairs on the Desert Line, as determined by

the J.L. Patterson inspection(s).

b. Flnancing Pla¡¡ - PIR is continuing its fundraising efforts througb the

CEO Ernie Dahlman and is considering agreements with other investment

bankers.

III. REPORTABLE

TNJURIES/ACCTDENTS/ETWIRONMENTAL TNCIDENTS

a. There have not been any reportable accidents.

b. There have not been any reportable injuries.

c. Ihere have not been any reportable environmental incidents.

fV. IIIARKETING

Att. A, At 6,11t14t13
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a. PIR finalized its Marketing Plan by utilizing information gathered Ín

surveys generated from the numerous Maquiladora manufacturers. In

May zorg, PIR implemented aspects of the marketing campaign outlined

in the Marketing Plan.

V, FREIGITT AqIÏ\¡TTT

a. Currently PIR has not commenced rerrenue generation pending

completion of the Inspections and Consh¡ction above.

VT. MTS OPERATINGAGREEMENT REQI,IIREMENTS

a. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Desert Line læase and Operating

Agreement between PIR, San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railways

Company and the San Diego Metropolitan Ttansit System, the following

Performance Milestone Requirements fell within First Quarter:

i. Business Pla¡r. Submittal of Business Plan to SD&AE wÍthin go

days from tlre effective date of theAgreement; and

1. PIR Timelysubmitted the Business Plan on January r9,

2O13

ü. Reconstruction Plan. Desert Line Reconstruction Plan

submitted to MIS within 9o days of the effestive date of the

Agreement.

1. PIRTimeþsubmittedthe Reconstruction Plan on March zo,

2013.

Att. A, Al 6,'t1t't4t13



San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company

Board of Directors Meeting

October 22,2013

SUBJECT:

STATEMENT OF RAILWAY FINANCES

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors receive a financial report for the
quarter ended September 30, 2013.

Budqet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

Attached are the financial results for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, which include the
periods ended September 30, 2013, and2012.

The current year-todate income is $250,000 favorable to budget primarily due to the
Desert Line lease revenue not being in the original budget. lncome has increased by

$253,000 compared to the same period last year-again primarily due to the Desert Line
lease. Expenses are $1,100 unfavorable to budget due to an unfavorable variance in
personnel costs offset by favorable risk management costs and the timing of expenses
for outside services, Expenses have increased by $3,400 over the same period last year
primarily due to the increase in personnel costs. The net income for the first quarter of
FY 14 was $251 ,215 compared to net income of $1 ,498 for the same period in FY 13.

Agenda ltem No, 2

Att. A, Al 6, 11t14t',t3

Attachment: SD&AE Operating Statement 1st Quarter FY 14
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Revenue
Right of entry permits
Lease income
Desert Line Lease Revenue
SD&IV 1% freightfee

Totalrevenue

Expense
Personnel costs
Outside services
Energy costs
Risk management
Misc operating expenses
Depreciation

Total expense

Net lncome(loss)

SD&AE operat¡ng statement FY2014-13

Q12014 Budget Varlance

$ 13,250 $ 7,500 5,750
13,091 20,001 (6,920)

250,000 - 250,000
9,704 8,751 953

Allocated interest earnings - estimated
Operating profiU(loss)

286,035

30,685
515

3,336
2-84

36,252

21,715
5,042

6,925

':u

Att. A, At 6,11t14t13

Ql 2013 Varlance

34,820

g 251,215

249,783

(8,970)
4,527

3,489
(1 58)

13,400
19,563

33,708 (1,1121

-$ 2,544_ 248,671

(150)
(6,482)

250,000
9,704

253,072

(5,50ô)
(515)

2,416
250

32,963

25,1_79

5,752
u-,0

1,000
25',1,215

31,465 (3,355)

_$.1399- _24e,717

A-17



San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company

Board of Directors Meeting

October 22,2013

SUBJECT:

REPORT ON SAN DIEGO AND IMPERIAL VALLEY (SD&|V) RATLROAD OPERATIONS

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Board of Directors receive a report for information.

Budoet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

An oral report will be given during the meeting.

Agenda ltem No.

Attachment: Periodic Report for the 3rd Quarter of 2013

Att. A, At 6, 11t14t13
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SD&AE lloard
C/O MTS
1255 lmpcrial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Dicgo, California 92101

Periodic Report
In accordance with Section 20 of the Agreement for Operational Freight Service and
Control through Management of the San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
activities of interest fo¡ the 3rd Quarter of 2013 are listed as follows:

I Oüore. ¡ nalrorr¡äg cõr'tprðt

Att. A, At 6, 11t14t13

Labor

At tlre encl of September 30,2013 the San Diego & Imperial Railroad had 9
employees:

October 3,2013

1 General Manager

I Asst. Trainmaster

I Manager - Marketing & Salcs

I Office Manager

I Mechanical Manager

I Roadmaster

I Maintenance of Way Employee

2 T rain Service Employees

A-19



Att. A, At 6, 11t14t13

Marketing

Volume in the 2nd Quarter declined 77o as compared to20L2. Bridge traffic
had a 9Vo decrease, primarily driven by a decrease in LPG traffic to
ConocoPhillips and Texas Gas and Oil. Traffic terminating or originating on
the SDIY was virtually flat compared to this time last year.

Reportable Iqi uries/Environmental

Days through year to date, Sept 30, 2013, there were no FRA Reportable injuries or
environmental incidents on the SDIV Railroad.

Days FRA Reportable Injury Free: 6024

4. Summary of Freight

Total rall carloads that
moved by SDIY Rail
Servlce in the quarter.

Total railroad carloads
Termlnatl ng/Orlglnatlng
Mexlco In the quarter.

Total rallroad carloads
Termlnatl ng/Origlnating El
Calon, San Dlego, National
Glty, San Ysldro, Callfornia
ln the quarter.

Total customers directly
served by SDIY in the
quarter

2013

Reglonal Truck trlps that
SDIY Railroad Service
replaced ln the quarter

1219

985

Respectfully,

Matt Domen

General Manager

2012

2U

1305

1077

10

2011

228

976

3657

667

9

309

3915

1l

2928

A-20



Agenda ltem No. 4

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company

Board of Directors Meeting

October 22,2013

SUBJECT:

REPORT ON PACIFIC SOUTHWEST RAILWAY MUSEUM

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Board of Directors receive a report for information.

Budoet lmoact

None,

DISCUSSION:

A report will be presented during the meeting,

Attachment: Quarterly Report

Att. A, At 6,',t1t14t't3
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October ll,20l3

Faeifia $outhwest ßailway Museum
&a Mssa Depot 4Ê08 fiebs Drlvg [a MsEa, C[ 9lg4l glg4BSZtTB

SD&AE Boa¡d
c/o Metropolitan Trar¡sit System
1255Imperial Avenue, Suit€ 1000
SanDiego, CA 92101

Re: Third Quarter,2013

Dear SD&AE Board:

Dwing the third quarter of 2013, utilizing all volunteer cre$rs, the Pacific Southwest Railway
Museum ran26 passenger trains carrying 1,254 passengers with no FRA reportable accidents o¡
injuries. This is the fi¡st srunmer season where the museum chose to operate on Satrndays and
was closed on Sundays th¡ougb Labor Day. Total income from SD&AE property for fti¡d
quarter, 2013 was $26,538, a check for $531 will follow under s€,pamte cover. By comparison,
PSRM canied:

1,012 passengers during the third quarter of 2012
1,294 passengers ùring the third qtarter of 2011
1,468 passengen during the third quarter of 2010

During the third quarter, ¡outine üack maintenanco continued with weed abate,ment, the
installation of gauge rods, tighte,ning ofrail joints and double spiking tie plates in various
looatíons. The wide brick pathway from the Campo Depot to the public restroom building has

'been completed. Grading of roadways and surrounding property continue. The transfer ofthe
Camp Lockett veterinary hospital bam property east of the Depot has been finelized and the
property is now in the name of PSRM. The museum is actively seeking amningadjushent to
accommodate future expansion plans in which the Campo Depot will become the focal point of
the museum's facility.

Sincerely,

Att. A, At 6, 11t14t13

Diana Hyatt

A Federel Tax ExemDt 501 [c] g caluornla lÍon-Proflt CorDoratlon wstw.Dtrm.org
A-22



Agenda ltem No. 5

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company

Board of Dlreclors Meeting

October 22,2013

SUBJECT:

REPORT ON THE DESERT LINE

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Board of Directors receive a report for information.

Budoet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

A report will be presented during the meeting.

Atr. A, At 6,',t'lt'14t13

Attachment: Quarterly Report
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Att. A, At 6, 11t',t4t13

.w re,t F M.l,^ü;-r

Septernber Bo, 2013

The periodic report to the SD&AE Railway Company is produced quarterly by the

Pacific lmperial Railroad for the SD&AE Board, in fulfillment of contractual

requirements and to document activity in the restoration of the line to regional

service along with its ongoing improvement for future generations.

PERIODIC REPORT



Pacific Imperial Railroad

Third Quarter 2ot3

I. GO\TERNMENTAL

II. DESERT LINE

III. REPORTABLE INJIIRIES / ACCIDEIIüTS /
ETVlNRONMENTAL INCIDENTS

CONTENTS

fv.

v.

VI.

IT,IARI(BTING

FREIGHTACTIVTTY

MTS OPERATING AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS
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I. GOVERNMENTAL

a. No developments during this quarter.

DESERT LINE STATUS

a. Reconstruction Plan

i. Inspections - On June r4th, zot1, PIR executed a Services

Agreement with J.L. Patterson & Associates, Inc. (Jlf¡. Phase one

of JLP's workto be performed under the Services Agreement began

on August 19ü and continued to progress into the earþ weeks of

September 2otg. Balfour Beatty Rail, Inc. (BBR) has been

subcontracted by JLP to clear sand, dirt and other debris from the

tracks between Division and Campo, California. BBR is a rail

infrastruch¡re contractor specializing in construction and

maintenance services for the public and private railroad markets

and they will be continuing to clear the track throughout September

2o1g upon which phase two of JLP's services will begin.

ií. TrackTesting- JLP subcontracted Holland Company, LP which

is an acknowledged leader in the world market for track testing and

has been engineering rail solutions since 1985. Holland Company

will be conducting the strength testing of the mainline between

Division and Plaster City, California. Following the strength

testing, an additional subcontractor to JLP, Nordco Rail Services,

will be performing rail flaw detection from Division to Plaster Cþ,

CA on the mainline tracks. Nordco Rail Services is a field leader in

rr.

A-26



ultrasonic non-destructive testing equipment (NDT). During the

various track clearing and testing phase, JLP will be developing the

PIR Bridge Management Plan and will be performing a complete

inspection of all 57 bridges and 17 tunnels along the 7o mile Desert

Line.

iii. Construction- PIR has executed an agreement with Watkins

Environmental, Inc. wherein Watkins Environmental, Inc. shall

perform the necessary repairs on the Desert Line, as determined by

the J.L. Patterson inspection(s) and track testing.

b. Financing Plan

PIR is continuing its fundraising efforts through the CEO Ernie Dahlman

and is considering agreements with other investment bankers.

III. REPORTABLE

TNJURTES/ACCTDENTS/ENyTRONMENTAL TNCTDENTS

a. There have not been any reportable accidents.

b. There have not been any reportable injuries.

c. There have not been any reportable environmental incidents.

fV. MARIGTING

a. PIR finalized its Marketing Plan by utilizing information gathered in

surveys generated from the numerous Maquiladora manufacturers. In

May zor3, PIR implemented aspects of the marketing campaign outlined

in the Marketing Plan.

V. FREIGHTACTTVITY

A-27



a. Currently PIR has not commenced revenue generation pending

completion of the Inspections and Construction above.

VI. MTS OPERATINGAGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS

a. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Desert Line Lease and Operating

Agreement between PIR, San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railways

Company and the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System, the following

Performance Milestone Requirements fell within First Quarter:

i. Business Plan. Submittal of Business Plan to SD&AE within 3o

days from the effective date of the Agreement; and

1. PIR Timely submitted the Business Plan on January 19,

2013

ii. Reconstruction Plan. Desert Line Reconstruction Plan

submittedto MTS within 9o days of the effective date of the

Agreement.

1. PIR Timely submitted the Reconstruction Plan on March zo,

2013.

Att. A, At 6, 1
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Agenda ltem No. 6a
San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)

Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 22,2013

SUBJECT:

SUMMARY OF SD&AE DOCUMENTS ISSUED SINCE JULY 16,2013

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors receive a report for information.

Budqet lmoact

None.

DISCUSSION:

Since the July 16, 2013, SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors meeting, the
documents described below have been processed by staff.

S200-13-575: Right of Entry Permit to RVM Construction, lnc. to construct an
underground sewer pipeline at Moss Street in the City of Chula Vista.

S200-13-576: Right of Entry Permit to Kimley-Horn Associates, lnc. for
engineering investigations to support various San Diego Association of
Governments (SAN DAG) projects.

5200-13-580: Right of Entry Permit to J.L. Patterson & Associates, lnc, for
engineering support to reconstruct the Desert Line.

3200-14-581: Right of Entry Permit to Watkins Environmental, lnc. for
engineering support to reconstruct the Desert Line.

Atr. A, At 6, 1'U14t13
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San Diego and Arizona Eastem (SD&AE)
Railway Company

Board of Directors Meeting

October 22,2013

SUBJECT:

LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH COX COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors approve issuing a license to
Cox Communications, lnc. for a proposed underground fiber-optics utility crossing under
SD&AE tracks located at milepost 9.6 on the Coronado Branch Line in Chula Vista.

Budoet lmpact

lf approved, the initial income to SD&AE would be $1,500 per year. Cox Communications,
lnc. would also reimburse MTS for processing fees incurred in preparing and processing the
license.

DISCUSSION:

Cox Communioations, lnc. is requesting a license for an underground fíber-optics utility
crossing under SD&AE tracks located at milepost 9.6 on the Coronado Branch Line. The
site is located along the 1100 block of Bay Boulevard just north of Palomar Street in

Chula Vista. The underground crossing would serve Cox customers located al1'120,
1'124, and 1128 Bay Boulevard, Chula Vista. (See attachment of the proposed project.)

Attachment: Proposed Project

Agenda ltem No. 6b

Att. A, At 6,11t14t't3
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PLANS ÊY: D¡RECTþN DRITIING (FOR CASINGS I2' IN O¡AMEÌER OR T.ESSì
A, THIS METIJOD GONSISfS OF UITLIZINE SPEclAtlZED DRI.T¡NG EQUIP¡'ENf TO

BORE A SMALL DIAMETER PILOTIIOLÉALôNG1HE OESIREO AUGNMENT USING
A MÉCHANICAL CUTNNG HEAO vvIIH HIGI.i-PRESSURE BE¡¡ÎONITE SLURRY TO
REr,lovÉ niÉ ûJt?NGs. TllE oRttr stRtNG ts 

^ovAl{cÉ 
wflH THE sENfôNtTE

SLURRY PUMPEO THROUGR fHE SÍRING IO THE CU'¡-'IÑG HEAD AÌID THEN
FORC€D AACX ALONG fHÉ STRING, CAßRY|NG THE CUTÍINGS BACK TO THE
SURFAC€ FOR RÉI,IOVAL AFTER THE CLN-NNG HEAO REAC}€S ÌHE FAR SIOE
OF IHÊ CROSSING. If IS REMOVED AND A REAMER wlII A OI,AI.iETER WDER
llrAN IHE CUTIING HEAD) IS ATTACHED TO THE I.€AD END OF IHE DRILL
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Agenda ttem No, 6C
San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)

Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 22,2013

SUBJECT:

UNDERGROUND SEWER MAIN EASEMENT

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors approve an easement to the City
of La Mesa for a proposed underground 8-inch High-Density Polyethylene Pipe (HDPE)
trunk sewer pipeline.

Budoet lmpact

lf approved, the initial income to SD&AE would be a one-time fee based on an appraisal
from an MA|-certified appraiser. The City of La Mesa would also reimburse MTS for
processing fees incuned in preparing and processing the easement.

DISCUSSION:

The City of La Mesa requests the issuance of an easement for an underground 8-inch
HDPE trunk sewer pipeline that will run parallelwith SD&AE tracks for 160.80 feet and
connect to an existing sewer main. The location of the 8-inch HDPE pipe would be
located along SD&AE tracks at approximate milepost 14.6 between the Amaya Trolley
Station and State Route 125in the City of La Mesa. The 8-inch HDPE pipe would serve
as an upgrade to the City of La Mesa's system, An exhibit of the proposed project is
attached.

Attachment: ProposedProject

Att. A, At 6, 11t',t4t't3
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San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company

Board of Directors Meeting

October 22,2013

SUBJECT:

APPROVAL OF THE 2014 SD&AE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING SCHEDULE

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Board of Directors approve the2014 SD&AE Board of Directors meeting
schedule.

Budoet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

The SD&AE Board of Directors customarily meets once each quarter to discuss business
and receive reports from its contract operators. The following meeting schedule is
recommended for 2014:

Tuesday, January 14,2014 9:00 a.m. (Fourth Quarter 2013 Reports)
Tuesday, April 15, 2014 9:00 a.m. (First Quarte¡ 2014 Reports)
Tuesday, July 15,2014 9:00 a.m. (Second Quarter 2014 Reports)
Tuesday, October 21',2014 9:00 a.m. (Third Quarter 2014 Reports)

Upon approval of the above meeting dates, additional information regarding materials
due dates and meil-outs are as follows:

Materials Due to Clerk Materials Mailed

Friday, January 3,2014 Wednesday, January 8,2014
Friday, Apn!4,2014 Wednesday, April 9,2014
Thursday, July 3",2014 Wednesday, July 9,2Q14
Friday,October'40,2014 Wednesday,OctoberlS,2Ol4

Agenda ltem No.

Att, A, At 6,1',1t14t13

Ïo accommodate APTA Annual Conference on 10112t14-1}t15/14
" Due to July 4 holiday
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1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000
San Díego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 ¡ FAX (619)234-3407

Agenda ltem No.

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

ADOPTION OF THE 2014 MTS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND BOARD OF
DIRECTORS MEETING SCHEDULE

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors adopt the 2014 Executive Committee and Board of Directors
meeting schedule (Attachment A).

Budoet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

The MTS Board of Directors annually adopts its meeting schedule for the next calendar
year. Attachment A is the proposed 2014 Executive Committee and Board of Directors
meeting schedule for MTS.

The meeting schedule reflects Executive Committee and Board of Directors meetings
throughout the 2014 calendar year. Meetings are generally scheduled to occur on the
second and third Thursdays of the month with the exception of September, November,
and December. The schedule has been modified during these months to avoid of
conflicts with city council legislative recesses; the League of California Cities Annual
Meeting; and Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays.

Metropolitan Transit System

Paul

7

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, sharon.coonev@sdmts.com

Attachment: 4.2014 MTS Executive Committee and Board of Directors Meeting Schedule

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 o (619) 23'l -1466 . www.sdmts.com

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a Californle publ¡c agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Oiego Trolley, lnc,, San Ol€go and Arizona Eastern Hailway Company

ffiffiffiffi



1255 lmperial Averrue, SLlite 1000
San Diego, cA 92101-7490
(61 9) 23 1 -1 466 . FAX (61 s) 234-3407

Ë

2014
METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

JOINT BOARD OF DIRËCTORS AND
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETINGS

James R. Mills Building
1255 Imperial Avenue, 1Oth Floor

ilfl

JH *:l;;" 
"t'

iq!¡-i.i I \
.fr,...*.*:';r'

January I

Febrqary 13

llllarch 13

Aprill0

May S

June'12

July l0

August 7'

September 11 n

Octoher 2

.October 
¡3

Novemher 13

December4

Metropolitan Tiansit SYstem

fit ill tffi

Att. A, At 7,11114113

January 1t¡

February 20

March 20 (Finance WorkshoP|

April 17 (Finance WorkshoPf

May 15 {Finance Workshop}

June 19

a I

* The League of California Cities is holding the 2014 Annlral Conference & Expo Septembet 3-5.
Meetings in September have boen scheduled accordingly.

* The APTA 2-014 Ânnuai nreeling will be October 12-15.

2014 MlS BOARD & EC MEETTNG BoHEDULF - | .:,.;..t
.lr l:''

1255 frnperial Avenue, Suite 1000,san Diego, OA 92101 .7490 . (61S) 231-1466 . w|v,r.stlmts.ùrr¡ 'í:ì ' !'t;.i

I

July f 7

August {4

September 18*

Õctober I
oitober so

November 20

Oecemher f.{



1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466. FAX (619)234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

INVESTMENT REPORT- SEPTEMBER 2013

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors receive a report for information.

Budqet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

Attachment A comprises a report of MTS investments es of September 30, 2013. The
combined total of all investments has decreased from $234.3 million to $221.7 million in
the current month. This $12.6 million decrease is attributable to expenditure of $10.9
million for the acquisition of capital assets as well as normal timing differences in other
payments and receipts.

The first column provides details about investments restricted for capital improvement
projects and debt service, which are related to the 1995 lease and leaseback
transactions. The funds restricted for debt service are structured investments with fixed
returns that will not vary with market fluctuations if held to maturity. These investments
are held in trust and will not be liquidated in advance of the scheduled maturities.

The second column, unrestricted investments, reports the working capital for MTS
operations allowing payments for employee payroll and vendors' goods and services.

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No. g

Paul

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. lnvestment Report for September 2013

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 r (619) 231-1466 o wwwsdmts.com
Meùopolitan Translt Systom (MTS) ¡s a Callfornia public agency comprised ol San Diego Transit Corp,, San Dlego Trolley, lnc., San Diego and Afizona Eastern Railway Company
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

JP Morgan Chase - concentration account

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash - Restricted for Capital Support

US Bank - retention trust account

San Diego County Investment Pool

Proposition lB TSGP grant funds

Total Cash - Restricted for Capital Support

Investments - Working Capital

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Total Investments - Working Capital

Investments - Restricted for Debt Service

US Bank - Treasury Strips - market value

(Par value 539,47 4,000)

Rabobank -

Payment Undertaking Agreement

Total Investments Restricted for Debt Service

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Investment Report
September 30' 2013

Restricted

I 8, I 55,040

I 8,155,040

8, I 48,605

Att. A, Al 8,

Total cash and investments $ 148,246,658 $ 73,485,407 S 221,732'065

N/A* - Per trust agreements, interest earned on retention aççount is allocated to trust beneficiary (contractor)

Unrestricted

12,120,602

11t14t13

36,349,368

3,971,997

36,349,368

Average
rate of

Total return

8,990

8,990

54,504,408

39,278,t25

78,692,891

8,148,605

3,ggo,gg7

12,129,592

37,127,049

54,504,408

37,127,049

117.971.0t6

37.t27.049

0.00%

37,127,049

- 39,278,125

N/A *

78,692,891

117,971,016

0.257%

7.690/o



1255 lmperialAvenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 r FAX (6'ts)234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

STATE LOBBYING SERVICES - CONTRACT AWARD

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to:

1. execute MTS Doc, No. G1644.0-14 (in substantially the same format as
Attachment A) with Smith, Watts and Martinez, LLC, for the provision of State
Lobbying Services for a three (3)-year base period, and two (2) one-year optional
terms exercisable et MTS' sole determination, for a total of five years; and

2. exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.

Budqet lmpact

The total cost of this agreement is a not-to-exceed $168,600, broken down as follows:

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No.

Base Year 1 $33,000
Base Year 2 $33,000
Base Year 3 $33,000
Option Year 1 $34,800
Option Year 2 $34,800

I

Total $168,600

Funding will be covered under the annual budget under account number 0902 - General.

1255 lmperial Avenue, Su¡te 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 o (619) 231-1466. www.sdmts.com

Melropolitan Translt Systém (MTS) ls a Callfornla public agency comprised of San Ol€go Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, lnc., San Dlego and Adzone Eastern Ra¡lway Company
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DISCUSSION:

MTS Policy No. 52 governing the acquisition of goods and services requires a formal
competitive process for procurements exceeding $1 00,000,

On August 20, 2013 MTS released a Request for Proposals (RFP). Public
announcements were made through five newspapers of general circulation and sent
directly to potential Proposers.

' A single proposal was received from the incumbent, Smith, Watts and Martinez, LLC on
the proposal due date of September 25, 2013. To ascertain that the Solicitation was
properly published and to ensure that its contents were not restrictive firms who were
invited but did not propose were canvassed. The results indicated that neither the RFP
nor MTS' procurement processes played a role in the decision to not respond.

Using available procurement history and pricing data from other transit agencies a price
analysis was held to ensure the price tendered were fair and reasonable. Of the five
agencies sampled, MTS's proposed price was the lowest and, thus, deemed fair and
reasonable.

An evaluation committee was convened and scored the Proposal on the following:

Proposer's Qualifications 35o/o

Staffing, Organization, and Management Plan 35o/o

Work Plan 1Oo/o

Cost 2Oo/o

A Best and Final Offer (BAFO) was then requested. The BAFO was further reduced by
the Proposer by another $71,400 for the life of the Agreement.

Based on the evaluation committee's analysis of the technical proposal, their
negotiations with the Proposer, and evaluation of the BAFO Smith, Watts, and Martinez
LLC's offer is reasonably priced and offers terms advantageous to the MTS.

Therefore, staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) to

1. execute MTS Doc. No. G1644.0-14 (in substantially the same format as
Attachment A) with Smith, Watts and Martinez, LLC, for the provision of State
Lobbying Services for a three (3)-year base period, and two (2) one-year
optional terms exercisable at MTS' sole determination, for a total of five
years; and

2. exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.

Total

Paul C.
Chief Execu

Key Statf Contact:

Attachments: A.

lOOo/o

Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Standard Services Agreement

-2-



THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this day of
and between San Diego Metropolitan Transit System ("MTS'), a California
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor":

Name: Smith. Watts & Martinez. LLC Address: 1111L Street

Form of Business: Partnership Sacramento, CA 95814

(Corporation, partnership, sole proprietor, etc.)
Telephone: (916) 446-5508

ATTACHMENT A
STANDARD SERVICES AGREEMENT

Authorized person to sign contracts:

The attached Standard Conditions are part of this Agreement. The Contractor agrees to furnish to
MTS services and materials, as follows:

Provide State Lobbying services as set forth in the Scope of Work (attached as Exhibit A), Smith, Watts & Martinez's cost
proposal (attached as Exhibit B) and in accordance with the Standard Services Agreement, including Standard Conditions
Services (attached as Exhibit C).

This contract term is for up to a five (5) year period (3-year base and two (2) one-year options exercisable at MTS's sole
discretion. Base period shallbe effective January '1,2014 through December 31,2016 and option years shallbe effective
January 1,2017 through December 31, 2018.

Payment terms shall be net 30 days from invoice date. The total cost of this contract shall not exceed $99,000 for the base
years and $69,600 for the option years, for a total not to exceed $168,600 without the express written consent of MTS.

Att. A, Al g, 11114113

G1644.0-14
CONTRACT NUMBER

50902
FrLE NUMBER(S)

Mark Walts Princioal

2013, in the State of California by
public agency, and the following,

Name

By:
Chief Executive Officer

Approved as to form:

AMOUNT ENCUMBERED
Base years (1, 2 and 3)
Option vears (4 and 5)
Total

Office of General Counsel

Title

Bv:
Chief Financial Officer

( _ total pages, each bearing contract number)

$99,000
$69,600
$168.600

Firm:

By:

Title:

Signature

50902

FISCAL YEAR

FY14-FY19

Date

SA-SERVtCES REVTSED (REV 6-13)
DATE



1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 . FAX (619) 234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

MEDICAL PROVIDER SERVICES - CONTRACT AWARD

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to

1. execute MTS Doc. No. G1514.0-13 (in substantially the same format as
Attachment A), with U.S. HealthWorks for the provision of Medical Provider
Services for a three (3) year base period, and two (2) one-year optional terms at
the MTS's sole determination, for a total of five (5) years; and

2. exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.

Budqet lmpact

The total cost of this agreement is a not{o-exceed $338,013.95 of which $197,580.24
will provide coverage for the three base years, based on the number of tests anticipated
to occur within those years and $140,433.71 will cover the two option years, also based
on the number of tests anticipated to occur within the period. The total amount includes
a ten (10) percent contingency to allow for additional medical services on an as needed
basis. The funding will be covered in the Human Resources Department's annual
operating budget under account numbers 711-53410 and 711-53420.

DISCUSSION:

MTS Policy No. 52 governing the acquisition of goods and services requires a formal
competitive- process for procurements exceeding $1 00,000.

On February 19, 2013, MTS released a Request for Proposals (RFP). Federal
regulations dictate that MTS must require all employees to complete a medical
evaluation prior to beginning employment. While the requirements are more stringent for
driving and safety-sensitive positions, these regulations promote safety and efficiency in

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No. 10

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 r (619) 231-1466. www.sdmts.com
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both the field and office environments. The purpose of the RFP is to ensure that MTS
receives the best possible economic value and quality health care from its medical
provider.

Two proposals were received on the due date of April 11, 2013 from U.S. HealthWorks
and Kaiser-On-The-Job. Both were deemed responsive to the requirements of the RFP
and have sufficient resources to responsibly perform under a contract. A cost summary
including the comparison of the rates offered by each are found in Attachment (B).

A selection committee consisting of representatives from various MTS departments
rated the proposals on the following criteria:

1. Proposer's Qualifications and Experience 2Oo/o

2. Work Plan 30o/o

3. Cost & Price 50o/o

Total 
-1OOo/o

Based on the evaluation panel's analysis of the technical proposal, negotiations, and
evaluation of price, the U.S. HealthWorks proposal was determined to be the offer that
best meets the requirements of the RFP and tendered the more advantageous terms to
the MTS.

Therefore, staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) to

1. execute MTS Doc. No. G1514.0-13 (in substantially the same format as
Attachment A) with U.S. HealthWorks for the provision of Medical Provider
Services for a three (3) year base period, two (2) one-year optional terms at
the MTS' sole determination, for a total of five (5) years; and

2. exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.

Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com

Attachments: A. Draft MTS Doc, G1514.0-13
B. Cost Summary
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CONTRACT NUMBER
oPS 960.2

FrLE NUMBER(S)

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this day of 2013, in the State of California by and
between San Diego Metropolitan Transit System ('MTS"), a California public agency, and the following, hereinafter
referred to as "Contractor":

Name: US Healthworks MedicalGrouo. PC Address: 5575 Ruffin Rd--€uttellQ

Form of Business: Partnership
(Corporation, partnership, sole proprietor, etc.)

STANDARD SERVICES AGREEMENT

Authorized person to sign contracts:

The attached Standard Gonditions are part of this agreement. The Contractor agrees to furnish to MTS
services, as follows:

Provide Medical Provider Services as set forth in the MTS Scope of Work (attached as Exhibit A), US Healthworks
Medical Group, PC, Best and Final Offer (BAFO) dated 7110113 (attached as Exhibit B) in accordance with the
Standard Services Agreement, including Standard Conditions Services (attached as Exhibit C).

The contract term is for up to a 5 year period (3-year base with two 1-year options exercisable at MTS'sole
discretion). BaseperiodshallbeeffectiveDecember"l,2013throughNovember30,20l6andoptionyearsshall
be effective December 1,20'16 through November 30, 2018.

Payment terms shall be net 30 days from invoice date. The total cost of this contract shall not exceed $197,580.24
for the base years and $140,433.71 for the option years, for a total not to exceed $338,013.95 without the express
written consent of MTS.

Telephone:

Kathleen Marchelti

Att. A, At 10, 11114113

Name

G1514.0-13

San Dieoo. CA92123

Approved as to form:

Chief Executive Officer

By:

858-492-5443

OUNT ENCUMBERED

Office of General Counsel

$197,580.24 - Base years
$'l 40,433.7 I - Option vears
S338 013 95 - Total

ReoionalVP

Chief Financial Officer

(_ total pages, each bearing contract number)

Title

Firm:

By:

711-53410t711-53420

Signature

FISCAL YEAR

FY14-19



Breolh Alcohol Tesl

Att. B, At 10, 11t14t13
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exponded exoms)
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1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 r FAX (619)234-3407

Agenda ltem No.

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

MTS CODE COMPLIANCE eFORCE RECORDS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (RMS) -
HARDWARE PURCHASE

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute MTS
Doc. No. G1665.0-14 (in substantially the same format as Attachment A) with CDW-G
for the purchase of MC75A Enterprise Digital Assistants (EDA's), Biometric Fingerprint
Readers, Zebra RW420 Mobile and GX420 Desktop Printers, Rechargeable Batteries
and Charging Stations and 3 years of Maintenance for the EDA's and Printers.

Budqet lmpact

The total cost of the new Code Compliance RMS, including three years of system
maintenance is $189,379.32 and is broken down as follows:

Metropolitan Transit System

EDA's, Fingerprint Readers, Printers, Charqers, Batteries
3-vear Warrantv, Maintenance and Technical Support
shi
Taxes

pptnq

TOTAL:

11

& Handlinq

This purchase would be funded
amount of $169,861.32 andFY 14
$19,518.00.

CIP 11322(approved in FY 14 CCI Handheld Units)
3-Year Service & Support FY 14 Operations Account 661-53910)

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490. (619) 231-1466 . www.sdmts.com

TOTAL:

Melropolitan Translt Systsm (MTS) is a Californla public ag€ncy comprls€d of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, lnc., San Dlego and Arlzona Eastern Raìlway Company

by FY 14 CIP 11322 (CCl Handheld Units) in the
lT Operations (Account #661-53910) in the amount of

$157.279.00
$19.518.00
$0.00
$12,582.32
s189.379.32

$169.861.32
$ 19,518.00
$189,379.32
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DISCUSSION:

On April 18,2013, the Board of Directors authorized the sole source contract award for
MTS' Code Compliance Records Management System to lntellichoice lnc. (doing
business as eFORCE), The purpose of this purchase is to better support MTS' fare and
law enforcement activities by replacing the existing obsolescent TransitWatch system
which is outdated and unmaintainable.

The purchase of these EDA's, Fingerprint Readers, Printers and ancillary hardware is in
support of this initiative and would provide the hardware components of the new system
supporting the fare and law enforcement activities of Code Compliance staff,

The stated equipment is being acquired through the use of the Federal Government's
General Services Administration's (GSA's) Cooperative Purchasing Program, Federal
Supply Schedule 70, lnformation Technology Contracts. This schedule is commonly
referred to as "GSA Schedule 70" ot "lT Schedule 70."

The FTA's Best Practices Procurement Manual (BPPM) also references the authority to
purchase information technology equipment in the discussion section of Chapter 1.3.3.5,
Inter-Governmental Agreements, Joint Procurements, Piggybacking.

ln addition to following this procedure, MTS staff also obtained lndependent Cost
Estimates from one or more other companies to ensure that prices were fair and
reasonable. All prices exceeded those quoted by CDW-G.

Paul C.

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com

Attachments: A. Draft MTS Doc. No. G1665.0-14
B. CDW-G Quote
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CONTRACT NUMBER
ctP 1 1322. OPS 53910

FtLE NUMBER(S)

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this day of 2013, in the State of California by and
between San Diego Metropolitan Transit System ('MTS'), a California public agency, and the following, hereinafter
referred to as "Contractor":

Name: CDW Government. LLC.

Form of Business: Corporation
(Corporation, partnership, sole proprietor, etc.)

STANDARD PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT

Authorized person to sign contracts: Tara Barbieri Director. Proqram Manaoement-Contracts
Name Title

The attached Standard Gonditions are paÉ of this agreement. The Contractor agrees to furnish to MTS
the following:

Motorola MC75A Enterprise DigitalAssistants, printers, batteries, cradles, chargers, maintenance services as
descríbed in CDW-G Quotation No. DSWR964, dated October 7,2013 under GSA Schedule No. GS-35F-0195J,
(attached as Exhibit A), the MTS Standard Procurement Agreement, Standard Conditions (attached as Exhibit B),
and the Federal Requirements (attached as Exhibit C).

This is a firm-fixed price contract for a total not to exceed $189,379.32.

Att. A, Al 11, 11114113

Address:

Approved as to form:

G1665.0-14

Telephone:

230 N Milwaukee Ave.

Chief Executive Officer

By:

Vernon Hills ll 60061

877-603-6330

Office of General Counsel

$169,861.32
$19.518.00

Chief Financial Officer Date

( total pages, each bearing contract number)

MBERED BUDGET I

11322-0200
661 -5391 0

Signature

FISCAL YEAR

FY14
FY14



BILL TO:
SAN DIEGO TRANSIT
,I255 IMPERIAL AVE STE lOOO

Accounls Payable
sAN D|EGO , CA 92r01-7490

Customer Phone #61 9.238.01 00

SHIP TO:
SAN DIEGO TRANSIT CORP
Atlentlon To: GARY DEXTER
100 16TH ST

sAN DTEGO , CA 92101-7694
contâcr: GARY DEXTER 619.238.0100

Customer P.O. # OSWR964 OUOTE

JON CACIOPPO 877.603.6330

SYMBOL MC75A8 TERM WLP.VZIBB/CAM/256
Mrg#: MC7SA8-P4FSWQRA9WR
Contract: MARKET

SYMEOL BIOMETRIC FINGERPRINT READER
Mfg#: MCTXFPR4IR
Contract: MARKET

SYMBOL 4 SLOT CRADLE F/ MCTO/MC7s
Mfg#: CRD7X00401CES
Contracl: MARKET

SYMBOL 4 SLOT BATTERY CHARGER
Mfg#: SAC7X00400CES
Conlract: MARKET

SYMBOL 3YR SVC F/START BRON MC75
Mfg#: SSB-MC75XX-30
Conlract: MARKET

Electronlc dlstrlbutlon - NO MEDIA
ZEBRA RW42O 4'B/IA/ DT 203 USB SER BT

Mfg#: R4D-0UBA000N{0
Conlracl: MARKET

ZEBRA RW 420 POWER STATION KIT
Mfg#:4K186181
Contract: MARKET

ZEBRA RW42O FOUR CELL LI.ION BATT
Mfg#:4K17463{05
Conlract: MARKET

ZEBRA 2YR STD PLUS WTY COMP RW42O

Mfg#: ZA0-RW41-2C0
Conlract: MARKET

ZEBRA GX42O TT 2O3DPI USB/SER/ENET
Mfg#: GX42-102410{00
Conlract: MARKET

ZEBRA2YRZEBRACARE DEPOT EXT WTY
Mf9#: ZAO€SER-2CO
Contract: MARKET

SYMBOL .I.5X LI-ION BATT 36OOMAH

Mfg#: BTRY-MC7XEA800
Contract: MARKET

230665

QUOTE NO. AGCOUNT NO.

AIT - Deferred, 3-5 Dayg

Att. B, At 11, 11t14t13

742538

1791',t 1

DATE

TERMS EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

-

UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

2,045.00

425.00

270.00

18s.00

265.00

ô79.00

319.00

88.00

164.00

519.00

71.00

57.00

92,025.00

19,'t 25.00

3,780.00

2,590.00

1l,925.00

30,555.00

4,46ô.00

616,00

7,380.00

1,557.00

213.00

2,565.00

_SPEC|AL TNSTRUCTTONS
GSA CONTRACT# GS-35F{1 95J

u 5 currÊn(y

B-1



CDW Gov€rnment
230 North Mllwaukee Ave.
Vernon Hllls, lL 60061 Fax: 847.37f.8831

@
Please remlt payment lo:
CoW Government
75 Rsmittance Dr¡v€
Sulle 1515
Chlcago, lL 60675-1515

This quote is Sales and Service ProJects at
http//www.cd les.asp
For more info B-2



1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 9210'l-7490
(619) 231-1466 . FAX (619) 234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

ULTRASONIC RAIL-TESTING SERVICES - CONTRACT AWARD

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute MTS
Doc, No, 11115.0-13 (in substantially the same format as Attachment A) with Nordco
Rail Services LLC, for the provision of ultrasonic rail-testing services for five years
beginning on January 1 ,2014, and ending on December 31 , 2018.

Budoet lmpact

The total cost of this engagement would not exceed $230,713.07 and is broken down as
follows:

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No. 12

January 1,2014 - December 31,2014) $ 42,208.00
January 1,2015 - December 31, 2015) $ 44,498.40
January 1,2016 - December 31,2016) $ 45,583.32
January 1,2017 - December 31 ,2017) $ 47,967.49
January 1,2018 - December 31 ,2018) $ 50.455.86

Total g 230,713.07

This procurement would be funded annually under MTS Rail Operations Account No.
371-53710.

'1255 lmp€r¡al Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 . (619) 231-1466 . www.sdmts.com



DISCUSSION:

MTS Policy No. 52 governing procurement of services requires a formal competitive
process for procurements exceeding $100,000. On July 12,2013, staff released a
Request for Proposals (RFP). On September 9, 2013, three proposals were received
from Nordco Rail Services, Hezog Services, and Sperry Rail Services. Allwere
determined responsive and responsible. An evaluation committee of staff from various
MTS departments met and rated the proposals. The ratings were based on the following
criteria:

1.

2.
3.
4.

Company Background and Technical Experience 30o/o

Proposed Staffing, Firm Organization, & Management Plan 20o/o

Work Plan and Equipment 2Oo/o

Cost/Price 3Oo/"

Total: 100oro

The Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) requires that MTS conduct a full-system rail
test every 12 months. Due to the age of the rail lines, MTS conducts additional tests
each year on its Blue, Orange, and Green Lines. Ultrasonic railtesting is critical to
ensuring MTS's safe operations as raildefects can lead to derailments.

The contract would require testing of the rail lines, including all freight crossovers, yard
leads, and spurs. Tests would be done during nonoperating hoursnenerally between
12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. A test vehicle is also required to work around any active
freight operations during this period.

The evaluation team analyzed the technical proposals, held discussions and
negotiations, and evaluated price proposals. lt concluded that Nordco Rail Services'
proposal presents the best overall value to MTS.

Therefore, statf is requesting that the MTS Board of Directors authorize the CEO to
execute MTS Doc. No. L1115.0-13 (in substantially the same format as Attachment A)
with Nordco Rail Services LLC, for the provision of ultrasonic rail-testing services for
five-years beginning on January 1,2014, and ending on December 31, 2018.

Chief Executivè

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.4513, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com

Attachments: A. Draft MTS Doc. L1115.0-13
B. Cost Summary

-¿-



THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this day of
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System ("MTS'), a California public
referred to as "Contractor":

Name: Nordco RailServices. LLC Address:

Form of Business: Corporation
(Corporation, Partnership, Sole Proprietor, etc.)

Authorized person to sign contracts:

DRAFT

STANDARD SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR

U LTRASONIC RAI L TESTING

The attached Standard Gonditions are part of this agreement. The Contractor agrees to furnish MTS services and
materials, as follows:

Ultrasonic Rail Testing Services, as specified in the Technical Specifications (attached as Exhibit A), the Bid
Summary (attached as Exhibit B), and the Standard Conditions Services (attached as Exhibit C), and the
Federal Requirements (attached as Exhibit D).

The contract term is for five (5) year period and shall be effective January 1, 2014, through December 31 ,

2018. Payment terms shall be net 30 days from invoice date.

The total amount of this contract shall not exceed $230.713.07 including all applicable sales taxes and
mobilization and transportation costs.

L1 1 15.0-13
CONTRACT NUMBER

oPS 970.2
FrLE/PO NUMBER(S)

SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

.lill Shafer

Att. A, 4t 12,11t14t13

agency, and the following contractor, hereinafter
2014, in the state of California by and between

Name

Paul C. Jablonski, Chief Executive Otficer

Approved as to form:

Telephone:

1328 Southwest Market

Lees Summit MO 64081

By

414 766 2483

Office of General Counsel

AMOUNT ENCUMBERED

s230.713.07

Sales Manaoer

Chief Financial Officer

( total pages, each bearing contract number)

Title

CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZATION

BUDGET ITEM

371-53710

Signature

FISCAL YEAR

FY14- FY 18

A-1



1255 lmperialAvenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 . FAX (619) 234-3407

ULTRASONIC RAIL TESTING SERVICES RFP
MTS DOC. NO. Ll1l5.0-13

COST SUMMARY

NORDCO RA'I SERVICES, LLC

Metropolitan Trans¡t System

HERZOG SERVICES

FIRM/PROPOSER

SPERRY RAIL SERVICES

Att. B, 4112,11114113

cosT

8230,713.07

$408,704.48

$418,000.00

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 o (619) 231-1466 o www.sdmts.com

Metropolltan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, lnc., San Diego and Ar¡zona Eastern Railway Company
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1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466. FAX (619l,234-3407

Agenda ltem No,

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

WIRELESS INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT PHASE 2 _ SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT
AWARD

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to issue a
purchase order to AT&T DataComm, lnc., on a sole-source basis, for the provision of
equipment and professional installation services for Phase 2 of the MTS's Wireless
I nfrastructure Project.

Budoet lmpact

The total cost of this Agreement is a not-to-exceed amount of $169,678.01 broken down
as follows:

Equipment: $111,343.65
Sales Tax (8%) $ 8,907.49
FreighUDelivery Charge: $ 2.226.87
Subtotat 6j22,4T8.01

Professional Services: $ 47,200.00

TOTAI : $169-678-0l

Metropolitan Transit System

DISCUSSION:

13

This project is funded by Proposition 1B under MTS Capital lmprovement Program (ClP)
project number 11341.

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 r (619) 231 -1466 . www.sdmts.com

This recommended sole source award is under the County of Merced's Fast Open
Contract Utilization Services (FOCUS) Contract Number 2009177.

Meùopolilan Translt Systsm (MTS) ls a Callfornla public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., Ssn Diego Trolley, lnc., San Dlego and Adzona Eastern Raìlway Company
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Over the past several years, MTS has installed a number of systems that rely on a

variety of wireless components and capabilities to upload and download configuration
data, passenger data, fare data, video data, and the like, ln all cases, the wireless
component for each of these systems was implemented as a stand-alone "island" of
wireless coverage for that specific system only. The proliferation of these wireless
coverage "islands" has resulted in coverage conflicts, difficulty in managing wireless
infrastructure, and inability to leverage established wireless coverage for other purposes.

The Wireless lnfrastructure Project will unify these wireless coverage "islands" into a
coherent and integrated wireless infrastructure which will enable MTS to properly
manage the wireless infrastructure and systems and to leverage wireless components
and coverage for all systems in use at MTS.

For easier project management, the Project was divided in three (3) phases (Discovery,
Pilot Program, and lmplementation) with the material needs of each phase dictated by
the nature and extent of work completed in the preceding phase.

ln September 2013, MTS initiated Phase 1 of the project. lt included the development
and design of a proof of concept, as well es, a survey of possible pilot sites. Phase 1 is
now complete.

Phase 2 provides for consolidation of the existing wireless infrastructure in high-
availability mode, and calls for the installation and testing of wireless functionalities at
121¡' & lmperial, Kearny Mesa Division, and one pilot trolley station.

This sole source award is recommended due to the highly technical nature of MTS'
requirements. While a separately held competitive procurement was possible it carries a
risk that a selected contractor, outside of AT&T, will lack the familiarity, and therefore,
the technical expertise to effectively assist MTS achieve its end goals, Similarly, a
selected contractor, other than AT&T, may elect to supply equipment not necessarily
compatible with those installed in Phase 1, resulting in a hybrid system. ln both cases
MTS can expect to incur significant additional costs if it is to have a fully productive
wireless system in place.

Therefore, staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) to issue a purchase order to AT&T DataComm, lnc., on a sole-source
basis, for the provision of equipment and professional installation services for Phase 2 of
the MTS' Wireless lnfrastructure Project.

Paul Cl

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com
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1255 fmperialAvenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 . FAX (6191234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

PRINTING OF TIMETABLES - CONTRACT AWARD

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors author¡ze the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to:

1. execute MTS Doc, No. G1534.0-13 (in substantially the same format as
Attachment A) with AAA Printing Company for services for the printing of MTS
timetables, for a five-year base period with 2 one-year option terms (for a total of
7 years) exercisable at MTS's exclusive determination; and

2. exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.

Budoet lmpact

The total cost of this contract would not exceed $1,098,720.06 and is broken down as
follows:

Total: $1,098,720.06

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No. 14

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92'101-7490 o (619) 231-1466 ¡ www.sdmts.com
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The annual costs are based on estimated usage quantities of timetables for various MTS
routes. Annualfunding would fall under MTS's bus and rail operations account
902-53730 using local funding.

DISCUSSION:

MTS Policy No. 52 governing procurement of goods and services requires a formal
competitive-bidding process for procurements exceeding $1 00,000.

On June 21,2013, staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP). This solicitation
combined timetable requirements for MTS bus operations, Access and Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) services, and rail operations. Timetables contain fare information,
arrival times at certain stops, and a map of each route. The timetables are printed in
both English and Spanish.

On August 7, 2013, seven proposals were received from the proposers listed below in
response to the RFP. Of these, L & L Printers was deemed nonresponsive for failing to
follow the RFP instructions (Section A. Proposal Content, Requirements and Format).

1. AAA Printing Company, El Cajon, CÊ.92021
2. All Source, Lake Arrowhead, CP.92352
3. Golden State Graphics, San Marcos, CA 92069
4. L & L Printers, Carlsbad, CA 92011
5, Mailing US, dba Note Pads lnc., Anaheim, CA 92807
6. Neb-Cal, San Diego, CA92121
7. Pacific Graphics, City of lndustry, C491744

A selection committee consisting of representatives from various MTS departments met
and rated the proposals. The ratings were based on the following criteria:

1.

2.
3.
4.
5.

Qualifications and Project Experience of Firm or Staff 25o/o

Contractor Responsiveness and Flexibility 15o/o

Quality of Printing and Samples 20o/o

Proposed Methodology and Approach to Work 15o/o

Cost/Price 25%
Total: 100o/o

Based on the evaluation panel's analysis of the technical proposal, discussions,
negotiations, and evaluation of price, MTS staff has determined that AAA Printing
Company's proposal represents the best overall value of fulfilling MTS's requirements as
outlined in the RFP.

While cost was only one criterion considered in the selection, it should be noted that
AAA Printing Company, the recommended firm (which is also the incumbent), has
proposed a $38,136.52 per year (or 2Oo/o) cost reduction over its original proposal for
printing timetables.

-2-



Therefore, staff is requesting that the MTS Board of Directors authorize the CEO to:

1. execute MTS Doc. No. G1534.0-13 (in substantially the seme format as
Attachment A) with AAA Printing Company for printing services for a five-year
base period with 2 one-year option terms (for a total of 7 years); and

2. exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.

Paul C.

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, Sharon.Coonev(ôsdmts.com

Attachments: A. Draft MTS Doc, G1534.0-13
B. Cost Summary

-3-



FrLE NUMBER(S)

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this day of 2013, in the State of California by and
between San Diego Metropolitan Transit System ('MTS'), a California public agency, and the following, hereinafter
referred to as "Contractor":

Name:

Form of Business: Sole Proorietor
(Corporation, partnership, sole proprietor, etc.)

AAA Printino Comnanv

STANDARD PROCU REMENT AGREEMENT

Authorized person to sign contracts: David Bueltel Owner
Name Title

DRAFT

The attached Standard Conditions are part of this agreement. The Gontractor agrees to furnish to MTS
goods and services, as follows:

Provide printing of timetables as set forth in the MTS Scope of Work (attached as Exhibit A), AAA Printing
Company's Proposal dated October 25, 2013 (attached as Exhibit B), in accordance with the Standard
Procurement Agreement, including Standard Conditions Procurement (attached as Exhibit C).

The contract term is for up to a7-year period (S-year base with two 1-year options exercisable at MTS's sole
discretion). Base period shall be effective December 1,2013, through November 30, 2018, and Option Years I

and llshall be effective December 1,2018, through November 30,2020. Paymentterms shallbe net 30 days from
invoice date.

The totalcontract cost shall be $764,416.211or the base period and $334,303.85 for the option years for a totalof
$1,098,720.06.

Att. A, 4114,11114113

G1534 0-13
CONTRACT NUMBER

Address: 1315 Broadway

El Caion, CA 92021

Approved as to

Telephone: 619.447 .7468

Chief Executive Officer

By:

AMOUNT ENCUMBERED
$764,416.21 - Base Period
$334,303.85 - Option Years I & ll
S'l O98 72ñ 06 - Total

Office of General Counsel

Chief Financial Officer

(_ total pages, each bearing contract number)

BUDGET I

902-53730

Signature

FISCAL YEAR

FYs 13-20

A-1



1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 . FAX (619) 234-3407

PRINTING OF TIMETABLES RFP
MTS DOC. NO. G1534.0-13

COST SUMMARY

AAA PRINTING COMPANY

Metropolitan Trans¡t System

NEB-CAL

FIRM/PROPOSER

PACIFIC GRAPHICS

L&LPRINIERS*

Att. B, Al 14,11114113

GOLDEN STATE GRAPHICS

MAILING US, DBA NOTE PADS INC.

ALL SOURCE

*Nonresponsive Proposer

COST

$l,098,720.06

$1 ,171 ,788.50

$1 ,551 ,919.55

$1,920,888.

$2,439,104.26

1 255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000, San Diego, CA 92101 -7490 o (61 9) 231 -1466 . www.sdmts.com

$3,753,643.68

01

Motropol¡lan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transìt Corp., San Diego Trollsy, lnc., San 0iego and Ar¡zona Eastern Bailway Company

$5,065,291.80
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1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 . FAX (6'19) 234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

PROPOSED REVISIONS TO MTS POLICY NO. 41 _ SIGNATURE AUTHORITY

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors approve the proposed revisions to MTS Policy No. 41 -
Signature Authority (Attachment A).

Budqet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

MTS staff is proposing minor changes to Board Policy No. 41, MTS Signature Authority.
The purposed changes are as follows:

1. To include the Director of Financial Planning and Analysis as an authorized
signer for check and wire disbursements up to $10,000.

2. ln the CEO's absence, to include the Chief of Statf as an authorized signer for all
checks, purchase requisitions, contracts, and documents.

3. ln the Procurement Manager's absence, to include the Director of Financial
Planning and Analysis and the Controller as authorized signers to execute
purchase orders and contracts falling within the Procurement Manager's
signature authority,

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No. 1 5

Paul

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9,557.451 3, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Proposed Revisions to Policy No. 41

1 255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000, San Diego, CA 92101 -7490 . (61 9) 231 -1466 . www.sdmts.com



1255 lmperial Avenue, SuÍte 1000
San Diego, CA 9210'l-7490
(619) 231-1466 . FAX (619) 234-3407

SUBJECT:

PURPOSE:

To establish guidelines and procedures for authorized signatories relating to check
processing (including wire transfers) and MTS documents (purchase requisitions,
contracts, agreements, payment vouchers), The policies below relate to MTS,
San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC), and San Diego Trolley, lnc. (SDTI).

BACKGROUND:

MTS, SDTC, and SDTI maintain a number of checking accounts in various approved
financial institutions. To ensure adequate internal controls, signing of checks and
execution of wire transfers isare restricted to authorized personnel only. This policy
weuld establishes guidelines and procedures for obtaining appropriate approval. ln
addition, this policy establishes guidelines and procedures for delegating authority to
execute MTS documents, including contracts and agreements, on behalf of the Chief
Executive Officer in his or her absence.

POLICY:

41.1 Authorized Siqnatories for Disbursements

Authorized signatures for disbursements are: the Finance Manager, Controller,
Director of Financial Planninq and Analvsis. Chief Operatien€lfl Officer -
Bus/Rail, Chief Financial Officer, Chief of Staff, General Counsel, and Chief
Executive Officer.

One signature is required for check and wire transfer disbursements under
$2,000. This signature can be a facsimile signature. Two signatures are
required for all checks and wire transfer disbursements over $2,000, One of
these can be a facsimile signature. A listing of all facsimile checks must be
reviewed and approved by an authorized check signer. For checks and wire
transfer disbursements over $10,000, the second signature SHALL NOT BE the
Finance Manager, e+Controller, or Director of Fin
Checks and wire transfer disbursements over $25,000 require that one of the

1255 lmperlal Avenue, Sulte 1000, San Dlego, CA 92101-7499 . þ19) 231-1466'www.sdmts.com

Board Approval: 11J1€,11€1 111412013

SIGNATURE AUTHORITY

Policies and Procedures No.

Metropolitan Transit System

Att. A, Al 15, 11114113
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Att. A, Al 15, 11114113

signatures be that of the Chief of Staff, General Counsel, Chief Financial Officer,
or Chief Executive Officer.

The listing below summarizes the above as to effective levels of check-signing
authority:

Finance Manager To $ 10'000
Controller To $ 10,000
Director of Financial Planninq & Analvsis To $ 10'000
Chief Operatiens¡g Officer - Bus/Rail To $ 25,000
Chief Financial Officer Over $ 25,000
Chief of Staff Over $ 25,000
GeneralCounsel Over $ 25,000
Chief Executive Officer Over $ 25,000

41.2 Authorized Sionatories on Purchase Requisitions

Authorized signatures for purchase requisitions are Supervisors, Managers,
Directors, Chief Operatieflsng Officer - Bus/Rail, Chief Financial Officer, Chief of
Staff, General Counsel, and Chief Executive Officer.

Manager/Supervisor To $ 3,000
Directors To $ 5,000
Chief Operatien€ruI Officer - Bus/Rail To $ 50,000
Chief Financial Officer To $ 50,000
Chief of Staff To $ 50,000
Generalcounsel To $ 50,000
Chief Executive Officer Over $ 50,000

41.3 Purchase Orders

Upon completion of the procurement process (i.e. Board approval of a formal
contract, staff approval of a purchase order), the Manager of Procurement may
execute the EllìBse-Purchase Order which shall be transmitted to the vendor.

41.4 Authorized Sionatories on Contracts and Documents

Authorized signatures for Contracts and Documents are Supervisors, Managers,
Directors, Chief Operatiens¡g Officer - Bus/Rail, Chief Financial Officer, Chief of
Staff, General Counsel, and Chief Executive Officer.

All approval levels must be contained within and be consistent with overall Board

of Directors approval levels. The approval levels are as follows:

Manager/Supervisor
Directors
Chief Operatien€¡g Officer - Bus/Rail
Chief Financial Officer
Chief of Staff
GeneralCounsel
Chief Executive Officer

To
To
To
To
To
To
Up To

-2-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

3,000
5,000

50,000
50,000
50,000
50,000

100,000
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Att. A, Al 15, 11114113

Board of Directors approval is required for all contracts over $100,000.

41.5 Authorized Sionatories for the Clerk of the Board

ln the Clerk of the Board's absence, the Assistant Clerk of the Board is
authorized to execute documents as may be required to certifv actions of the
Board.

41.6
PavmentiPavment Vouchers

Authorized signatures for payment veuehers and eheek reqsestsRequest for
Pay.ment/Pavment Vouchers are Supervisors, Managers, Directors, Chief
Operatiens¡g Officer - Bus/Rail, Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel, and
Chief Executive Officer.

All approval levels must be contained within and be consistent with overall Board
of Directors approval levels. The approval levels are as follows:

Manager/Supervisor To $ 3,000
Directors To $ 5,000
Chief Operatiens¡g Officer - Bus/Rail To $ 50,000
Chief FinancialOfficer To $ 50,000
GeneralCounsel To $ 50,000
Chief Executive Officer Over $ 50,000

41.7 Authorized Siqnatories for Absences

ln the CEO's absence, General Counsel, Chief of Staff. or the CEO's designee is
authorized to execute all checks, purchase requisitions, contracts, and
documents as necessary, so long as prior approval is given by the CEO.

ln the Procurement Manager's absence, the Chief Financial Officer, the General
Counsel

is authorized to execute Purchase
orders and contracts falling within the Procurement Manager's signature
authority.

This original Policy was adopted on 2113192.
Policy revised on 8111194.
Policy revised on 1129104.
Policy revised on 2123106.
Policy revised on 11118110.
Policv revised on 1 1 /1 4/1 3.

-3- A-3



1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 . FAX (619)234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

FtscAL YEAR 2013 COMPREHENSTVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (ERIN DUNN
AND GARY CAPORICCI OF PUN & MCGEADY)

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors receive the Fiscal Year 2013 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR).

Budoet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

MTS staff and auditors Pun & McGeady will present the Fiscal Year 2013 CAFR.

Gary Caporicci of Pun & McGeady will present a brief overview of new Government
Accounting Standards Board Statements.

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No. 45

Paul C.

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Board Only Due to Volume)

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 921 01-7490 o (619) 231 -1466 o www.sdmts.com
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1255 lmperial Avenue, Sulte 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619)231-1466 r FA¡\ (619) 234-3/107

Board of Directors and Transit Riders
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

The comprehensive annual financial report of the San Diego Metropoliøn Transit System (MTS) for the fiscal years
ended June 30,2013 and 2012 is hereby submitted. Responsibilþ for both the accuracy of the data" and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. The MTS Boa¡d of
Directors has established an Audit Oversight Committee to provide an additional level of scrutiny to the preparation of
the annual financial report. Management of MTS is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
sFusture designed to ensure that the assets of MTS are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America (U.S. CAAP). The internal conûol shucture is designeà to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives a¡e met. The concept of reasonable asiuran"e
recognizes that (l) the cost of a conhol should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. As management, we assert tha! to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

State st¿tutes require an annual audit by independent ce¡tified public accountants. The firm of Pun & McGeady LLp,
Certified Public Acoountants, has been retained to meet this requirement. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of MTS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statement; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that MTS'
financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30,2013 and 2012 are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with U.S. GAAP. The independent auditors' report is presented as the first component of the financiat
section of this report.

The independent audit also was designed to meet the requirements of a broader, federally mandated "single Audit', to
meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements required the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal contols and
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. The reports related specifically to the Single Audit
are issued under separate cover.

U.S. GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of tansmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in corfunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediæely
following the report of the independent auditors.

Metropolitan Transit System

1255 lmperialAvenue, Sulte 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7499 r (619) 231-1466 | wwwsdmts.com
Motropolllon Trsnsit Syslom (MTS) is a Calltornla publlc ag€rþy comprlsed of San 0logo Tramít Corp., S€n Dl€go Trollsy, lnc., San Dl€go 6nd &izona Eastern Railway Company
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REPORTING ENTITY

The San Diego Metropolitan Transit System was created effective January 26,1976 to provide the policy setting and

overall management coordination of the public transportation system in the San Diego metropolitan service area. This
service area encompasses approximately 2.3 million people residing in a 570 square mile area of San Diego County,
including the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City,
Poway, Santee, and San Diego and the unincorporated area of the County of San Diego.

MTS' mission statement, adopted by the Board of Directors, is to enhance the personal mobility of San Diego
metropolitan area residents and visitors by:

o Obtaining maximum benefit for every dollar spent.
o Being the community's major public transportation advocate.
¡ Increasing public transportation usage per capita.
. Taking a customer-oriented approach.
o Offering high-quality public transpoftation services.
. Responding to the community's socioeconomic interests.

California law establishes the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) as the planning agency for San

Diego County. The responsibility and decision-making for all transportation-related planning, programming and

development activities occurs within SANDAG's nine-member Transportation Committee. Approved transportation
plans and programs are subsequently executed by SANDAG staff. Within this structure MTS and the North County
Transit District (NCTD) focus primarily on operating activities.

MTS is effectively an umbrella agency. MTS owns the assets of San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI) and San Diego Transit
Corporation (SDTC), the area's two largest transit operators. These two transit units were formed under California law
as not-for-profit public corporations and function as operating subsidiaries of MTS. SDTI and SDTC are considered
component units and are blended component units for financial reporting purposes. SDTI operates three Light Rail
Transit (LRT) routes: the Blue Line from the America Plaza Station to San Ysidro at the International Border, the
Orange Line from the Santa Fe Depot through Centre City and then east to El Cajon Transit Center, and the Green

Line from the l2th and Imperial Transit Center Bayside platform to Santee. During FY20l3, MTS accomplished
significant changes to the configuration ofeach operating line to achieve greater effìciency and meet the transit need of
a greater number of people. SDTI operates on a total of 54.3 miles of track. SDTC operates 27 routes with an active
fleet of260 buses.

The relationship between MTS and the transit operating subsidiaries, SDTI and SDTC, is formally established through
operating agreements and MTS-adopted corporate policies. These agreements and corporate policies speci$ the roles
and responsibilities of each of the organizations and outline the procedures in numerous functional areas including
auditing and budgeting, fare setting, marketing and public information, revenue-producing advertising, service
contracts, and programming of federal, state and local subsidies. The MTS Board of Directors has the policy-setting
responsibility for the operation and development of MTS' transit operating subsidiaries as well as for the planning and

approval of capital expenditures by or on behalf of these entities. The day-to-day operating functions, labor matters
and maintenance of facilities are managed by the individual transit operators. MTS has centralized and consolidated
Security, Planning, Human Resources, Finance, Information Technology, Stores, and Purchasing for MTS and all
subsidiaries.

In addition to the bus routes operated by SDTC, MTS is financially accountable for the operation of certain other bus

routes. MTS contracts with outside parties for the operation of 70 fixed-route bus lines and paratransit services with an

active fleet of 427 buses. The contracts require full operation and maintenance ofthe bus services. Contract services

are accounted for in the Contracted Services Fund for financial reporting purposes.



MTS owns the San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company (SD&AE), a not-for-profit railroad holding
company entrusted with assets which include 108 miles of rail line and over 2,000 acres of property. MTS has a

contract with the San Diego and Imperial Valley Railway Co. (SDIV) for the operation of freight rail services over the
SD&AE rail line. MTS provides no subsidy to SDIV, but does receive a poftion of its gross revenue. SD&AE is
considered a component unit and a blended component unit for financial reporting purposes. In December 2012,
SD&AE entered into a 99-year lease and operating agreement with Pacific Imperial Railroad, Inc. (PIR) over the 70-
mile Desert Line freight right of way in East San Diego County. The agreement provides specific performance
milestones for the first 5 years of the term, with a minimum of $l million in annual revenue required. The agreement
may be terminated if PIR fails to meet the specified milestones. If PIR meets all milestones and commences freight
operations along the Desert Line, MTS's revenue will increase over time to l1Yo of gross freight revenue.

MTS also is financially accountable for the operation of Taxicab Administration services, which includes regulating
the issuance of taxi and jitney service permits in the Cities of San Diego, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon
Grove, Poway, and Santee.

The MTS Board of Directors is comprised of l5 members with four appointed from the San Diego City Council, one
appointed from the San Diego County Board of Supervisors, one appointed from each city council of Chula Vista,
Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, and Santee, and one member of
the public elected by other Board members to serve as Chairman.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The San Diego region continues to show moderate recovery from the economic downturn that has affected all parts of
the nation since 2008, fueled by increased military spending and moderate improvements in tourism, biotech
industries, healthcare and housing construction. San Diego's gross regional product (GRP), the total value of the
region's economy, has been forecasted to reach $180.1 billion in2012 and $187.6 billion in2013, increasing from the
$172.6 billion earned in 2011. Unemployment has declined in San Diego County and compares favorably to the
unemployment rate in California and the national average. Sales tax receipts have grown in the current year as have
sales tax related revenues.

The principal local source of operating subsidy for MTS' transit programs is Transportation Development Act (TDA)
funding. One-fourth percent ofthe local sales tax in each California county is dedicated to transportation purposes.

On a local level, area voters approved a one-half cent transportation sales tax in 1987, calledTransNe¡. One-third of
the sales tax proceeds is allocated for transit purposes which is further divided between MTS and North County Transit
District (MTS' counterpart in North San Diego County) based on the proportion of the population within the area of
each jurisdiction. Prior to FY 2004, 80% of the TransNet funds had to be used for expansion of the light rail system.
The remaining20% could be used for operations after funding a reduced price pass program for seniors, disabled, and
youth, which is capped at $5.5 million. As a result of operating budget pressures, the ratio was changed in June 2003
so that up to 40Yo ofthe TransNet program can be used for operations (increased from2}Yo). The original TransNet
sales tax expired in 2008, and a reauthorization measure was approved by voters in November2}04 extending the
TrqnsNet sales tax for 40 additional years.

Long-term Financial Planning

The long-term goal of MTS is to fund operations solely with recurring revenues. The economy has continued to make
small improvements over the past 5 years, but has yet to recover fully from the economic downtum. Sales tax receipts
throughout California have continued to increase resulting in increased subsidy revenue available to MTS from both
TDA and TransNet funds. MTS continues to monitor its costs and initiate additional revenue programs, and has

initiated restoration of some service reduced in prior years. In response to significant pressure from growing pension
and benefits liabilities, MTS has made pension reform a priority. As of fiscal year2013, all employees now contribute
towards their defìned benefit pension plans, and all new members of the Amalgamated Transit Union will participate
in a defined contribution retirement plan.

As directed by the MTS Board of Directors, MTS plans to bring its contingency reserve balance from 10.0% of the
operating budget up to 12.5o/o over the next three years.
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MTS also established a capital reserve to begin planning for the replacement of 52 SD 100 light rail vehicles that are I 8

years old.

Major Initiatives

In addition to the challenge of aligning operating cost with recurring revenues, MTS is also committed to keeping its
capital infrastructure in a state of good repair. During flrscal year 2013, MTS continued its ongoing programs to
upgrade its bus fleet and light rail vehicles. As of June 30,2013, MTS accepted delivery of 54 new low-floor vehicles
as part of the Trolley Renewal project, with the fìnal I I to arrive during fiscal year 2014. In addition, two bus
maintenance facilities, in East County and South Bay, are in the process of being expanded and upgraded.

MTS partners with SANDAG on many regional capital projects to enhance the public transit system. This includes
three "Rapid" bus projects in the San Diego region. These routes will operate high-frequency, limited stop service to
higher-amenity stations utilizing new, articulated buses. Two of the "Rapid" bus projects are currently under
construction with an anticipated in-service date in the middle of calendar year 2014. The third project is in the final
development phase.

The Mid-Coast extension of the trolley system is another regional project; it is curently in the preliminary engineering
phase. When complete, this extension will span 1l miles between Old Town and north University City. Construction
on the Mid-Coast extension is scheduled to begin in calendar year 2016 and is anticipated to open for revenue service
in calendar year 2018.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to MTS for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012. This was the seventh consecutive year and the seventeenth year overall that
MTS has achieved this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement MTS must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. V/e believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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PUN & McGEADY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

San Diego, California

Report of Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
(MTS), which comprise of the statements of net position as of June 30,2013 and 2012, and the related statements
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and related notes to
the basic financial statements.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror.

Aud itor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the fìnancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of MTS as of June 30,2013 and2012, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

6265 Greenwich Drive
Suite 220

San Diego, California 92122

Phone: (858) 242-5100
Fa* (858) 242-5ISo

www.pm-llp.com



To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

San Diego, California
Page2

Other Matters

Required Supp le mentary I nformalion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress of defined benefits pension plans and other
postemployement healthcare plan be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of fìnancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. tWe have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Olher Informalion

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise MTS' basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund fìnancial
statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Olher Reporlíng Required by Governmenl Autlìling Stundards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repoft dated October 17,2013, on
our consideration of MTS' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope ofour testing ofinternal control over financial repofting and compliance and the results ofthat
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering MTS'
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ñ¿ I /t/c-6ø+1 ur
San Diego, California
October 17,2013



The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
(MTS) is intended to provide an overview of MTS' financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012. This information should be used in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, which can be found on pages i
through iv of this report.

Financial Highlights

¡ Net position, as reported in the statement of net position, totaled $1,493 million as of June 30,2013, $1,409
milfion as of June 30,2012 and $1,254 million as of June 30,201l Of this amount, $190 million was unrestricted
as of June 30,2013, $158 million was unrestricted as of June 30, 2012, and $173 million was unrestricted as of
June 30, 201l. Total net position increased by $8a million in the curent year and increased by $155 million in the
prior year. The current year increase is attributable to an increase in contributed capital offset by increases in
operating expenses and decreases in Federal, TransNet and Prop lB subsidy revenues for capital projects.

o For the year ended June 30, 2013, the combined farebox recovery ratio (the measure of the ability to recover
operating costs through fare revenue) for San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego Transit Corporation, and MTS
Contracted Services was 39.92Yo compared to 4l.05Yo for the year ended June 30, 2012 and 41.68% for the year
ended June 30,201 l. The current year decrease is due primarily to an increase in personnel costs related to the
amortization of the net pension asset.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to MTS' financial statements. MTS' financial
statements comprise two components: l) financial statements and,2) notes to financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the financial statements themselves.

Financial statements. The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of MTS'
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. In fiscal year 2013, MTS presents comparative statements
for FY20l3 andFY2012.

The statement of net posítion presents information on all of MTS' assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflow of resources with the difference between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of MTS is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are repofted as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are

reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but
unused vacation leave).

The statement of cash flows presents information showing the sources and uses of cash related to operating activities,
noncapital financing activities, capital and related fìnancing activities and investing activities. In addition, the
statement provides information about significant non-cash investing, capital and financing activities.

Since MTS' primary function is to provide transportation services to the region's citizens and recover costs through
user fees and charges, the financial statements include business-type activities. In addition, the financial statements
include not only MTS itself (frn own qs the primary government), but also two legally separate transit operators and one
legally separate freight railway, for which MTS is financially accountable: San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway
Company (SD&AE).

3
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Notes to basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning MTS' progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other
postemployment benefits to its employees.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity's financial stability. In the case of
MTS, net position was $1,493 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year and $1,409 million at the end of
FY20t2.

The largest portion of MTS' net position reflects the investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and

reduced by any outstanding bonds or other borrowings. Most of the investment in capital assets is comprised of trolley
system assets, buses, and construction-in-progress totaling $23 million, ofwhich the largest project under construction
is the procurement of 65 light rail vehicles, $16 million. Prior year construction-in-progress totaled $88 million, of
which the largest projects under construction included the procurement of 65 light rail vehicles, $66 million;
procurement of buses, $14 million; and security-related trolley car enhancements, $4 million. The capital assets that
are represented by construction-in-progress will be used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are

not available for future spending. In FY20l3, MTS transferred completed projects worth $146 million to SDTC, SDTI
and Other Contracted Services. lnFY20l2, MTS transfened completed projects worth $l5l million to SDTC, SDTI,
and Other Contracted Services.

The balance in the unrestricted component of net position increased by $32 million during the cunent year and

decreased $ I 5 million in the prior year.

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 Change June 30, 201 I Change

Currentandotherassets$316,370,757$3't7,313,773$(60,943,016)$299,353,436$77,960,337
Capital assets 1,416,260,555 1,295,206,414 121,054,141 1,198,153,827 97,052,587

Total assets 1,732,631,312 1,672,520,187 60,111,125 1,497,507,263 175,012,924

Long-term liabilities outstanding 176,376,307 193,730,156 (17,353,849) 197,238,134 (3,507,978)

Other liabilities 62,945,676 69,755,429 (6,809,753) 46,571,745 23,183,684

Total liabilities 239,321,983 263,485,585 (24,163,602\ 243,809,879 19,675,706

Net position:

Net investment in capitalassets 1,296,216,965 1,172,815,524 123,401,441 1,073,561,720 99,253,804

Restricted 7,255,404 78,378,268 (71,122,864) 7,007,293 71,370,975

Unrestricted 189,836,960 157,840,810 31,996,150 173,128,371 (15,287,561)

Totalnetposition $ 1.493.309,329 $ 1.409.034.602 $ 84.274.727 $ 1.253,697.384 -Jlll,3j12l!-

Increasesinoperatingrevenueareattributabletoanincrease,n,,o,,J,,n,ono-",,"-.",*,",*.,,-*
being charged for compass cards. Variances between FY20l3 andFY20l2 are attributable to significant decreases in
FTA, TransNel, and Prop lB funding for capital projects, and a decrease in STA revenue. The current year increase in
operating expenses is attributable to an increase in personnel costs, primarily due to the amoftization cost associated
with the net pension asset, and an increase in depreciation expense associated with the acquisition of new assets.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Revenues:

Operating revenues:

Charges for services

Other operating revenue

Nonoperating revenues:

Federal revenue

Transportation Development Act
State Transit Assistance

State revenue - other

TrqnsNet funds

Other nonoperating revenue

Total revenues

Expenses:

Operating expenses

Nonoperating expenses

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net position before

capital contributions

Capital contributions

Increase (decrease) in net position

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Managementfs l)iscussion and Analysis (Continued)

June 30, 2013 and2012

June 30,2013 June 30,2012 Change June 30, 201 I

s 90,652,522 $ 88,280,779 ß 2,371,743 $ 84,893,386 $ 3,387,393

5,906,691 5,228,636 678,055 5,308,624 (79,988)

57,733,099 71,822,863 (14,089,764) 48,814,276 23,008,597

7t,893,404 7t,538,917 354,487 61,509,431 10,029,486

9,878,189 18,981,989 (9,103,800) 15,044,930 3,937,059

5,2t3,539 84,878,549 (79,665,010) 18,520,399 66,358,150

32,275,380 75,793,217 (43,5t7,837) 19,117,834 56,675,383

14.022,580 9,644,573 4,378,007 t6,250,239 (6,605,666)

287,575,404 426,169,523 (138,594,1l9) 269,459,119 156,710,404

327,929,073 306,931,351 20,997,722 291,893,326 15,038,025

7,553,638 8,018,977 (465,339) 8,559,1 t2 (540,1351

335,482,711 314,950,328 20,532,383 300,452,438 14,497,990

(47,907,307) lll,2l9,l95 (t59,t26,502) (30,993,319) 142,212,514

132,182,034 44,118,023 88,064,01 I 26,806,292 17,311,731

Net position - beginning of year 1,409,034,602 1,253,697,384 155,337,218 1,257,884,411 (4,187,027\

Net position - end ofyear $1.493.309.329 $1.409.034.602 S 84.274.727 $1.253.697.384 $ 155.337.218

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. MTS' investment in capital assets net of depreciation as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 amounted to
$1,416 million and $1,295 million. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and
construction-in-progress. Major capital asset events during the cunent fiscal year included the following:

¡ MTS has continued its multi-year program to acquire 65 light rail vehicles for a total cost of $239 million
through the end of FY20l3. As of June 30,2013, MTS had placed 54 new trolley cars in service, 27 inthe
current year and 27 inFY2012.

o MTS continues to modernize the bus fleet. In FY20l3, 53 buses were placed into service for a total cost of $24
million.

o MTS purchased 40 new ADA buses for a total cost of $2.8 million. As of June 30, 2013, MTS had placed all
40 buses in service.

¡ Completed capital projects totaling $132 million were transferred from SANDAG to MTS and its component
units during FY2013.

Change

84,274,727 155,337,218 (7t,062,491) (4,187,027) t59,524,245



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

June 30,2013 and2012

Land

Buildings

Vehicles

Equipment & other

Construction-in-progress

Total

Additional information on MTS' capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, MTS has one capital lease obligation outstanding in the amount
of $4.2 million. In addition, MTS has two frnance obligations outstanding relating to a lease/leaseback transaction
entered into in 1995 and Pension Obligation Bonds issued in fiscal year 2005 for a total obligation of $141.1 million.
In connection with the lease/leaseback transaction, MTS placed funds on deposit, which, together with the interest
earned on the deposits, will be sufficient to cover the amounts due under the finance obligation.

The pension obligation bonds were issued in frscal year 2005 for $77.5 million to make a contribution to the SDTC
retirement plan and reduce its unfunded liability. During 2010, MTS retired l4o/o and refunded 4lYo, or $30 million, of
the bonds outstanding; this refunding was retired in FY2013. Additional information about MTS' long-term debt can

be found in Note 10 to the financial statements.

Bond Ratings

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services provided an underlying rating forthe Pension Obligation Bonds at "A" in 2013.
Additional information on MTS' long-term debt can be found in Note l0 to the financial statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of MTS' finances for all those with an interest in the
government's finances. If you have questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or need

additional financial information, visit our website at www.sdmts.com or direct inquiries to the Chief Financial Officer,
MTS, 1255 ImperialAvenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA92l0l.

CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of depreciation)

2013

$ 240,453,415 $ 240,47t,287 g 224,793,077

727,660,383 ó48,037,600 654,759,92'l

378,389,642 272,442,209 179,108,728

47,215,318 46,728,919 42,137,343

22,541,797 87,526,399 97,354,759

$ 1.4r6.260.s5s $ t.29s.206.414 $ 1.198.rs3.828
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ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments restricted for debt service payable within one year

Accounts and other receivables

Due from other governments

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total cunent assets

Noncurrent assets:

Cash and certificates ofdeposit restricted for capital support

Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects

Unamortized bond issuance cost

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Net pension asset

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to other governments

Unearned revenue

Accrued expenses

Retention payable

Due within one year:

Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims

Long-term debt

Long-term debt payable from restricted assets

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Retention payable from restricted assets

Long-term debt payable from restricted assets

Due in more than one year:

Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims

Net other postemployment benefìts obligation

Long{erm debt, due in more than one year

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2013 and2012

2013

$ 67,342,108

1,807,484

7,487,415

64,554,9t0

l7,673,252

I, I 50,754

I 60,01 5,923

12,143,571

I I 6,056,580

329,045

1,416,260,555

27,825,638

1,572,615,389

1,732,631,312

2012

$ 37,090,439

1,679,414

12,t24,112

64,126,299

17,t29,732

2,270,695

134,419,691

82,396,323

117,681,495

360,626

1,295,206,414

42,455,638

1,538, I 00,496

1,672,520,187

12,931,617

20,184,156

4,223,070

t0,t23,462
334,827

7,455,502

3,394,889

2,490,669

I,807,484

62,945,676

7 ,487 ,7 45

113,457,002

35,363,435

6,803,474

2,214,435

11,103,737

57,256

7,ogo,g23

3,036,906

2,407,049

1,679,414

4,713,23E

9,954,074

13,695,8 l3

6,435,064

n5,264,486

5, I 33,802

11,22',1,194

12,118,669

43,550,94 1

I 93,730, I 56

263,485,585

1,172,815,524

78,378,268

I 57,840,8 I 0

$ 1.409.034.602

t76,376,307

239,321,983

1,296,216,965

7,255,404

I 89,836,960

$ r.493.309.329

69.755.429

28. I 68.435



Operating revenues:

Passenger revenue

Advertising

Charter

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy costs

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)

Public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Federal revenue

Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds

State Transit Assistance (STA) funds

State revenue - other

TrqnsNet funds

Other local subsidies

Investment earnings

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal ofassets

Other expenses

Amortization of bond issuance costs

Total public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributed capital

Contributed capital, net

Changes in net position

Net Position:
Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and2012

2013

90,651,622

972,190

900

4,934,501

96,559,213

123,720,353

67,413,522

3,570,758

8,468,837

22,572,397

2,902,322

6,492,642

92,788,242

327,929,073

(23 I,369,860)

57,733,099

7l,893,404
9,878, I 89

5,213,539

32,275,380

6,951,227

6,266,933
(7,520,331)

804,420

(t,726)
(3 1,58 l)

183,462,553

(47,907,307)

132,182,034

84,274,727

1,409,034,602

$ 1.493.309,329

20t2

88,094,39 I

784,204

I 86,388

93,509,415

1t2,536,925

66,050,3t2

3,720,925

7,977,299

22,688,865

4,029,950

5,1 15,682
g4,gl1,593

306,93 1,35 I

(2t3,421,936)

71,922,963

7t,538,9t7
I 8,98 I,999

84,878,549

75,793,217

2,642,020

7,622,252

(8,013,519)

(6t9,699)
(4, I 55)

(1,303)

324,641,131

lll,21g,lg5

44,n9,023

155,337,2 l8

1,253,697,394

$ 1,409.034,602

4.444.432

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Payments for damage and injury

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Public support funds received

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Debt service costs

Property acquisition

Proceeds from disposal ofassets

Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and certificates ofdeposit restricted for capital support

Total cash and cash equivalents

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 20\2

20t3

$ 94,759,953

(122,20t,949)

(l 15,897,734)

(2,560,95 I )

(145,900,68 l)

203,981,276

203,981,276

( I 6,867,535)

(82,8 I 6,993)

1,409,694

(98,274,834\

2012

$ 93,641,105

(l 09,954,300)

(t 05,546,593)

(2,414,484\

(124,274,272\

336,075,33 I

336,075,331

(9,1 14,41 l )
(lLï,522,969)

1,493,03 I

(t26,144,349\

(40,00 1,083)

119,486,762

$ 79.48s.679

$ ó7,342,108

12,143,571

$ 79.48s,679

193

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

193

156

156

85,7 45,931

33,740,83 r

$ l 19.486.762

$ 37,090,439

82,396,323

$ n9,486^762

89.221

89,221

l0



Reconciliation of operating (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

Amortization of net pension asset

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts and other receivables

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Unearned revenue

Net other postemployment benefrts obligation

Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury and employee claims

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets fiom SANDAG

Contributions/adjustments of capital assets from outside parties

Total contributions of capital assets

Increase in fair value ofinvestments

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 20L2

2013

$ (231,369,860) $ (213,421,936)

92,788,242

I 4,630,000

(3,807,895)

(543,520)

I,l 19,941

(23,282,245)

(980,275)

2,009,635

1,577 ,144
(55,885)

2,015,037

20t2

84,8 I 1,593

6,755,000

393,602
(4,529,385)

( I 03,920)

6,792,301

(6,013,542)

(261,919)

I,ó60,389
(l 82,455)

( I 64,000)

89,147,664

$ (124.274.272\

$ 44,1 18,023

8s.469.r79

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

$ 44,1 18.023

$ 1.563,278

ll
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Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying basic financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) have been

prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (U.S. GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. The more significant of MTS' accounting
policies are described below.

A. Reportíng Entity

MTS (also known as San Diego Metropolitan Transit Development Board) was formed on January 26, 1976 by
passage ofCalifornia Senate Bill 101 to plan, construct, and operate (or let contracts to operate) exclusive public
mass transit guideways in the urbanized south coastal area of San Diego County. MTS has certain responsibilities
for near-term transportation planning and administration of federal and state transportation funds within the area

under its jurisdiction. The Board of Directors of MTS consists of l5 members composed of four appointees from
the San Diego City Council; one appointee each from the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial
Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, and Santee; one appointee from the San Diego County

Board of Supervisors; and a chairman elected by the other 14 members.

On January 1,2003, California Senate Bill 1703 (SB 1703) became effective. SB 1703 required the consolidation
of the planning and programming functions of MTS and the North San Diego County Transit District (NCTD) into
the San Diego Association of Govemments (SANDAG) in an initial transfer to take place prior to July l, 2003.

SB 1703 also required the consolidation of certain project development and construction functions of MTS and

NCTD into SANDAG in a subsequent transfer to take place prior to January 30, 2004. The initial transfer

occurred on July l, 2003, and the subsequent transfer occured on October 13, 2003. With these actions,

employees were transferred from MTS and NCTD to SANDAG, and certain planning, development, and

construction functions were also transferred. As a result, MTS' activities since the consolidation have been

focused on operating public transit systems in the urbanized area identified above. In addition to the consolidation
required by SB 1703, MTS dissolved the independent Board of Directors of San Diego Transit Corporation
(SDTC) and Board of Directors of San Diego Trolley,Inc. (SDTI). MTS now acts as the Board of Directors for all
three agencies, MTS, SDTC, and SDTL Beginning in FY2004, SDTC and SDTI are presented as blended

component units.

These basic financial statements present MTS and its legally separate component units, entities for which MTS is
considered to be financially accountable. Because MTS appoints a majority of the component units' boards of
directors, the boards are substantively the same, and MTS is able to impose its will on the component units, MTS
presents blended component units. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance,

part of MTS' operations.

Included within the reporting entity as blended component units:

San Dìego Transil Corporøtíon'On July l, 1985, MTS purchased the assets used by and acquired sole

ownership of San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) from the City of San Diego for $ l. SDTC has entered

into an operating agreement with MTS to operate a public transportation bus system in the City of San Diego
and certain regional routes within MTS' jurisdictions. The current agreement, which was approved in
December 2006, was renewed on June 23, 2011, as an open-ended agreement terminable upon six months'

notice by either party. SDTC continues to provide local service to a number of adjoining cities under pre-

existing contracts. Purchases or construction of bus capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains,

and are contributed to SDTC upon completion of a project or when individually purchased by MTS. SDTC's
assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses are included in MTS' financial statements as a blended

component unit. This agency has the same goveming board as MTS and provides services directly to the

public.

l5
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Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Reportíng Entity (Continued)

San Diego Trolley,Inc.: San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI) was organized by MTS in August 1980. SDTI was
created to operate and maintain the Light Rail Transit (LRT) system pursuant to an operating agreement with
MTS. The current agreement, which was approved in December 2006, was renewed on June 23,2011, as an
open-ended agreement terminable upon six months' notice by either party. Purchases or construction of LRT
capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains, and are contributed to SDTI upon completion of a
project or when individually purchased by MTS. SDTI's assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and
expenses are included in MTS' financial statements as a blended component unit. This agency has the same
governing board as MTS and provides services directly to the public.

San Diego and Arízona Eastern Røílway Compøny: MTS purchased the San Diego and Arizona Eastern
Railway Company (SD&AE) in 1979. SDTI operates on a portion of the line and private operators provide
freight service on a portion of the line. Purchases of capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains,
and are contributed to SD&AE. SD&AE's assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses are included
in MTS' financial statements as a blended component unit. This agency has a separate governing board, which
is appointed by MTS. Separate financial repofts are not available.

B. FinancialSlalemenls

The Financial Statements (i.e., the statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position, and statement of cash flows) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and
its component units. The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position demonstrates the degree to
which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifrable with a specific function or segment.

C. Messurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financísl Støtemenl Presentation

The Financial Statements are repofted using the "economic resources " measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless

of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as all eligibility
requirements have been met. Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so has been recognized as revenue ofthe current fiscal period.

ln 2013, MTS implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporring of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The Statement of Net Position repofts separate sections for
Defened Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources, when applicable.

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net position) that apply to
future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time.

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net position) that apply to future
periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as a revenue until that time.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30,2013 and2012
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Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C, Meøsuremenl Focus, Bøsis of Accounting, ønd Financíal Stalement Presentøtion (Contínued)

MTS receives funding primarily from the following revenue sources:

Passenger Revenue

Passenger fares comprised approximately 36 percent and 38 percent of MTS' $249.4 million and 5232.9
million operating budget for FY20l3 andFY20l2, respectively.

Other Operating Revenues

MTS receives a variety of operating revenues that are not received directly from passenger fares. The

sources of these revenues are advertising, interest income, rental and land management income, income

related to Taxicab administration, income from the SD&AE, and other miscellaneous income.

Non Operating Revenues

MTS receives subsidies that are derived from federal, state and local tax revenues. MTS does not levy or
collect any tax funds, but receives allocated portions oftax funds through federal, state and local granting

agencies.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

FTA revenues are funded by a federal gas tax and revenues of the federal general fund. Effective
October 1,2012 the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users

(SAFETEA-LU) Legislation was replaced with Moving Ahead for Progress in the 2lst Century (MAP-21)
which reauthorized surface transportation programs through Fiscal Year 2014. Under MAP-21, MTS
receives Section 5307 and Section 5337 grants which are earmarked for capital assistance and preventive

maintenance. In addition, MTS also receives Section 53ll and Section 53llF grants for operations. The

Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) grants which are used for operations have been eliminated. MTS
expects to receive JARC funding for the next 1-2 years from grants previously awarded.

Transit Security Grant Program (TSGP)

The Transit Security Grant Program (TSGP) is administered by the Department of Homeland Security
(DHS). The program provides funds to owners and operators of transit systems to protect critical surface

transportation infrastructure and the traveling public from acts of terrorism, major disasters, and other

emergencies.

Compressed Natural Gas Rebate

Refunds on nontaxable uses of fuel are issued by the IRS. Authorization to continue the refund program

was extended retroactively through December 2013.

Transportation Development Act (TDA)

TDA provides funding for public transit operators. This state fund is one quarter of a percent of the 8.0

percent sales tax assessed in the region. SANDAG is responsible for apportionment of these funds within
the San Diego region. As economic conditions improve, sales tax receipts have increased over the prior
year, and as a result the TDA funds available for disbursement have increased as well.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
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Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounling, und Fínønciøl Statement Presentøtìon (Conlinued)

State Transit Assistance (STA)

STA funding comes from the Public Transpoftation Act (PTA) which derives its revenue from the state

sales tax on gasoline. These funds are designated as discretionary or formula. The former is appropriated
by the legislature. The latter is a formula based upon population and fares generated.

Proposition lB Revenue (Prop lB)

The California Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Act of 2006,
approved by the voters as Proposition lB (Prop lB), in November 2006 authorizes the issuance of $19.9
billion in general obligation bonds for the purpose of improving highway safety, traffic reduction, air
quality, and port security.

Other State Revenue

MediCal provides further funding support specifically tied to several ADA Paratransit routes to aid
patients in their transportation to medical appointments.

TransNel

TransNet funds are derived from the Proposition A one-half cent local transportation sales tax that was

approved by area voters in November 1987. The original ordinance expired in 2008, but has been extended
to 2048 by subsequent voter approval. The ordinance allocated one-third of the sales tax proceeds for
transit purposes, which are fufther divided between MTS and North County Transit District (NCTD) based

on the proportion of the population with the area of each jurisdiction. TransNet funds are also apportioned
by SANDAG.

Other Local Subsidies

The City of San Diego provides Maintenance of Effort funds to aid ADA efforts. In addition, SANDAG
provides funds for the operation of cerlain express bus routes and NCTD provides partial subsidy for the
Sorento Valley Coaster Connection.

D. Use of Restricled/Unrestricted Assels

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is MTS' policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Cash, Cash Equívalents, and Investmenls

Investments of pooled cash consist primarily of bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, pooled investment
funds, liquidity funds, governmental bonds, and commercial paper. Investments are stated at fair value, which is
based on quoted market price. Money market investments and participating interest earning investment contracts
that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30,2013 and2012
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Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Cash, Cash Equivølents, and Investments (Conlinued)

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid temporary investments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

MTS participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities. LAIF's
investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these

investments. In addition, these structured notes and assets-backed securities are subject to market risk and to
change in interest rates. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fairvalue of the pool shares. MTS also
participates in the San Diego County Investment Pool, which is a local government investment pool managed by
the County Treasurer's Office on behalf of the Investment Pool participants.

Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable for deposit and investment risk, are specified for the following areas:

¡ Interest Rate Risk
. Credit Risk

Overall
Custodial Credit Risk
Concentration of Credit Risk

o Foreign Cunency Risk

F, Malerials and Supplies Invenlory

Inventories are valued at the weighted average unit cost.

G, Prepaid ltems and Other Assels

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the hscal year ended are recorded as

prepaid items.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land and right-of-way, buildings and infrastructure assets, vehicles, and equipment. Capital
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000. Such assets are

recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are

recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the

asset's life are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital asset improvements are recorded as assets. SDTC has

recorded assets received from the City of San Diego and the County Transit System at net book value in order to
reflect SDTC's custodial accountability for the assets.

Under the operating agreements between MTS and SDTC and SDTI, SDTC and SDTI are required to pay a license
fee to MTS for the use of certain capital assets. Due to SDTC's and SDTI's continued shortage of operating funds

sufficient to cover recurring expenditures, the payment of these fees is considered remote, and therefore, these

amounts were not recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements. Buildings, vehicles, and equipment of
the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

X'or the years ended June 30,2013 and2012
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Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H, Capital Assets (Contínued)

Assets

San DÍego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and2012

C o n str u clío n-ín- P ro g res s

Costs incurred for construction associated with the bus and LRT systems are capitalized as construction-
in-progress until such time as they are complete and operational. Upon completion, they are contributed to SDTC
and SDTI to reflect their custodial accountability for the assets. Depreciation commences at the time of
contribution. Assets acquired through capital leases are capitalized.

Nel Pension Assel

A pension asset was created when MTS paid into the SDTC retirement plan an amount in excess of its annual
required contribution (ARC). The ARC is an actuarially calculated amount that is sufficient to fund future costs
and extinguish any existing unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL). In October 2004, MTS made a payment
of 576,282,336 to SDTC Retirement Plan from the proceeds of the issuance of pension obligation bonds, of which
$69,050,638 was to reduce SDTC's UAAL as calculated at that time.

Compensated Absences

It is MTS' policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused personal leave time up to a maximum of
400 hours, which includes both vacation and sick pay benefits. All personal leave time is accrued when incurred.

Long-Term Oblígatíons

Debt premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using
the straight-line method. Long-term debt is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Debt
issuance costs are reported as defened charges and amortized over the term ofthe related debt.

Refunding of Debt

Gains or losses occurring from current or advance refunding ofdebt ofthe governmental funds have been deferred
and are being amortized into expense using the straight-line method over the original remaining life of the old debt
or the life of the new debt, whichever is less.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

J.

Building and structures

Vehicles and buses

Equipment and other capital assets

Capital leases

K.

Years

20 to 30

5 to25
3tol0
3to40

L.

M.

N.

20



Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

O. Accounling Changes

GASB has issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Finqncial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements
(SCA). The requirements of this Statement improve financial reporting by establishing recognition, measurement,
and disclosure requirements for SCAs for both transferors and governmental operators, requiring governments to
account for and report SCAs in the same manner, which improves the comparability of financial statements. This
Statement became effective for periods beginning after December 15, 201 I and did not have an impact on MTS'
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013.

GASB has issued Statement No. 61, The Finqncial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 34. The requirements of this Statement result in financial reporting entity financial
statements being more relevant by improving guidance for including, presenting, and disclosing information about
component units and equity interest transactions of a financial repofting entity. This Statement became effective
for periods beginning after June 15,2012 and did not have an impact on MTS' financial statements for the year
ended June 30,2013.

GASB has issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This Statement combines the authoritative
accounting and financial reporting of the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA"). The Statement eliminates the need for fìnancial statement
preparers and auditors to determine which FASB and AICPA pronouncement provisions apply to state and local
governments. This Statement became effective for periods beginning after December 15, 201I and did not have a
significant impact on MTS' financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013.

GASB has issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position. The requirement of this Statement standardizes the presentation of the defened
inflows and outflows of resources and their effects on a government's net position. This Statement became

effective for periods beginning after December 15,2011. The implementation of this Statement to MTS was

limited to renaming "Net Assets" to "Net Position" in the 2013 financial statements.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 
^nd 

2012

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

A summary of cash, cash equivalents, and investments at June 30,2013 and2012:

2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 67,342,108

Cash and certificates ofdeposit restricted for capital support 12,143,571

Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects - Current 1,807,484

Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects - Noncurrent I 16,056,580

Total cash and investments $ 197,349,743

2012

$ 37,090,439

82,396,323

1,678,414

117,681,495

$ 238.846,671
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Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted as follows on June 30,2013 and2012:

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

X'or the years ended June 30, 2013 and2012

Cash and cash equivalents:

Demand Deposits $ 25,229,120 $ 28,077,291

Retention Trust Account 7,487,745 6,435,064

San Diego County Investment Pool 4,655,826 75,961,259

State of California - Local Agency Investment Fund 42,112,988 9,013,148

Total cash and cash equivalents 79,485,679 119,486,762

Investments:

U.S. Treasuries 39,171,173 38,924,428

Bank Investment Contract 78,692,891 80,435,481

Total investments 117,864,064 I 19,359,909

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments S 197,349,743 $ 238,846,671

At year end the carrying amount of demand deposits was 525,299,120 and the bank balance was 526,774,449
compared to 528,077,291 and $29,038,991 in the previous year, of which the total amount was collateralized or
insured with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in MTS' name as discussed below.

All cash accounts in MTS, including SDTC and SDTI, are pooled and swept nightly to a concentration account. Funds
required to be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures are not included in the pooled cash
account.

Investments

Under the provisions of MTS' investment policy and in accordance with California Government Code, MTS is
authorized to invest or deposit in the following:

o Securities of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities
. Obligations of the State of California or any local agency within the state rated "4" or higher by Standard and

Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investor Services, Inc.
o Repurchaseagreements
o Bankers'acceptances
. Commercial paper rated "4" or higher by Standard and Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investor Services, Inc.
o Medium-term corporate notes rated "4" or higher by Standard and Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investor

Services, Inc.
. Negotiable certificates of deposit
. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) established by the State Treasurer
¡ San Diego County Pooled Money Fund
. Passbook savings or money market demand deposits with an FDIC, SIPC, or SAIF insured frnancial institution

Investment type 2013 2012

Fair Value
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Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

San l)ieso Countv Investment Pool

The San Diego County Investment Pool is a local government investment pool managed by the County Treasurer's

Office on behalf of Investment Pool participants. Depositors in the Investment Pool include both mandatory
participants, those agencies required by law to deposit their funds with the County Treasurer's Office, and voluntary
participants, agencies that place their funds in the Investment Pool as an investment option. Voluntary participants,

including cities, fire districts, and various special districts accounted for approximately 8.8% of the Investment Pool as

ofJune 30,2013.

Pursuant to Section 27130-27137 of the California Government Code, the County Board of Supervisors has established

the Treasurer's Oversight Committee ("TOC") that monitors and reviews the Investment Policy. The TOC consists of
members appointed from the districts or offîces that they represent, and up to five members of the public having
expertise in, or an academic background in public finance.

To mitigate credit risk, the Investment Pool's Investment Policy, which is more restrictive than the Government Code,

places a minimum standard on the ratings of investments held in the Investment Pool. Investments in securities other
than those guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury or Government Sponsored Enterprises must have a credit rating of no less

than "4" for long-term or "Al" for short-term. Non-rated securities include sweep accounts, collateralized certificates

of deposit and repurchase agreements. Sweep accounts and collateralized certificates of deposit must be FDIC insured

and collateralized with securities held by a named agent of the depository. Repurchase agreements are collateralized
by securities, authorized by the Califomia Govemment Code Section 53601, having fair market value of l02Yo or
greater than the amount of the repurchase agreement, The investment pool does not hold any investments in structured

notes or asset-backed securities.

As of June 30, 2013, MTS had $4,655,826 invested in the San Diego County Investment Pool, compared to

575,961,259 at June 30,2012.

Local Asencv fnvestment tr'unds

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 andl 20L2

MTS' investments with Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) include a portion of the pool funds invested in
Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These investments include the following:

o Structured Notes - debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow characteristics (coupon

rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more indices and/or that have embedded

forwards or options.
¡ Asset-Backed Securities - the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their purchasers to receive

a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from a pool of
mortgages (such as CMO's) or credit card receivables.

LAIF is overseen by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance

with State statute.

As of June 30,2013, MTS had $42,112,988 invested in LAIF, which had invested 1.96Yo of the pool investment funds

in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities compared to $9,013,148 and3.47%o at June 30,2012.
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Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, MTS' investment policy limits
investments to a maximum of five years unless otherwise approved by the Board. The investment instruments with
maturities beyond five years are held for scheduled repayment of long-term debt. Maturities are scheduled to permit
MTS to meet all projected obligations.

Credit Risk

MTS' investment policy limits investments in commercial paper and negotiable certificates of deposit to instruments
rated "A" or better by Standard and Poor's or Moody's Investor Services, Inc. In the current year, MTS does not hold
investments in commercial papers or certificates of deposit. Other investment instruments, including deposits in LAIF;
San Diego County Investment Pool; U.S. Govemment taxable bonds; and a bank investment contract, are not rated and
do not require ratings.

Concentration of Credit Risk

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

The investment policy limits the amount of the percentage of the portfolio that can be invested by the type of
investment for certain types of investments. MTS is in compliance with investment type percentages of the total
portfolio of the investment policy.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a

govemment will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial
credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the broker or dealer to a transaction, a

govemment will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The Califomia Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure
the MTS' cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner
shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus,
collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in MTS' name.

The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the MTS' cash deposits. California law also allows
institutions to secure MTS deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the MTS'
total cash deposits. MTS may waive collateral requirements for cash deposits which are fully insured up to $250,000
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. MTS, however, has not waived the collateralization requirements.

Summarv of Investments to Maturitv

Investments held by MTS grouped by maturity date at June 30, 2013 and2012, are shown below:

Maturity _ 2013 2012

Cunent t0 one year $ 79,485,679 $ 119,486,762

One to five years 39,171,173 38,924,428

Five to ten years

Ten to twenty years _ 78,692,891 80,435,481

Total S 197.349.743 $ 238.846.671
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Note 3 - Accounts Receivable

A. Accounls and Other Receìvables

At June 30,2013 and20l2,the net realizable accounts and other receivables consisted of the following:

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Passenger revenue - General Public 2,188,076

Pension plan receivable 1,255,716 8,209,465

Miscellaneous trade receivables 687,683 517,068

Advertising receivable 445,835 420,798

Total accounts and other receivables $ 7,487.415 $ 12,124.112

B. Duefrom Olher Governments

At June 30,2013 and2072, amounts due from other governments consisted of the following:

2013

Interest receivable $ 2,910,105

FTA Grant Funds

STA Funds

Passenger revenue

SANDAG - project/route reimbursements

U,S. Treasury Department

County of San Diego - MediCal

City of Chula Vista

Department of Homeland Security

SANDAG - TransNet

State of California

North County Transit District-shared costs

City of San Diego

County of San Diego - TDA

Total due from other governments

$ 2,976,781

2012

Note 4 - Inventory

At June 30,2013 and2012, inventory consists of the following repair and maintenance parts for revenue vehicles:

20t3 2012

$ 47,082,147 S 47,860,775

5,791,324 4,843,032

3,538,468 5,246,831

3,468,099 1,307,296

1,651,284 1,042

1,112,738 1,394,591

7 45,907 188,388

649,937 435,503

404,299 703,790

58,965 234,550

49,692 94,910

San Diego Transit Corp,

San Diego Trolley, Inc.

Total inventory

$ 64.554,910 $ 64.t26.299

2,050 84,464

2013 2012

$ 2,249,585 $ 2,300,244

15,423,667 14,829,488

g t7,673.2s2 g 17,129.732
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Note5-CapitalAssets

MTS converted $l5l million in capital assets from CIP to assets in service compared to $155 million in FY20l2.
Capital asset additions totaling $131.7 million were contributed by SANDAG, including $21.5 million to SDTC, and
$110.2 million to SDTI. lnFY20l2, the contributions from SANDAG totaled $44.0 million,

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows:

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and20L2

Capital assets, not depreciated

Land and right-of-way

Construction-in-progress

Total capital assets, not depreciated

Capital assets, depreciated :

Buildings and structures

Buses and vehicles

Equipment and other

Capital lease properfy

Total capital assets, depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and structures

Buses and vehicles

Equipment and other

Capital lease property

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, depreciated, net

Total capital assets

Balance

Iuly 1,2012

$240,471,287 $ S (17,872) $240,453,415
87,526,399 85,516,636 (150,501,238) 22,541,797

327,997,686 85,516,636 (150,519,1l0) 262,995,212

1,284,786,118 131,358,102 (2,836,934) 1,413,307,286

530,564,522 t38,3t4,777 (7,100,681) 661,778,6t8

88,050,458 9,176,022 (117,074) 97,109,406

12,091,981 12,091,981

1,915,493,079 278,848,901 (10,054,689) 2,184,287,291

(639,960,450) (5t,357,445) 2,836,934 (688,480,961)

(258,t22,313) (32,365,779) 7,099,n6 (283,388,976)

(41,32t,539) (8,687,144) I 14,595 (49,894,088)

(8,880,049) (377,874\ 

- 

(9,257,923\

(948,284,351) (92,788,242\ 10,050,645 (1,031,021,948)

967 ,208,728 186,060,659 (4,044) l,\53,265,343

$t.29s.206.414 S 27r.s77.29s $fl50.s23.1s4) $1.416.260.s5s

Depreciation expense for capital assets for the years ended June 30,2013 and2012 was comprised of the following:

2013 2012

Balance

Additions Deletions June 30, 2013

Note 6 - Net Pension Asset

In August 2004, MTS issued the 2004 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds to fund 85% of the SDTC's unfunded
accrued actuarial liability (UAAL) and the normal cost reimbursement for the fiscal year 2005. As a result, the Pension
Obligation Bonds of 577,490,000 were sold and 576,282,336 was deposited into the pension plan in October 2004. Of
this amount $7,231,698 was funded for the FY2005 contribution and $69,050,638 was funded for prior year unfunded
accrued actuarial liability. As of June 30, 2013, the Net Pension Asset amounted to 521,825,638, compared to
$42,455,638 for FY20 I 2.

General operations

Other contracted services

San Diego Transit Corporation

San Diego Trolley, Inc.

Total

$ 1,361,426 $ 1,246,870

12,305,236 1t,249,023

14,121,961 14,612,267

64,999,619 57,703,433

$ 92.788.242 $ 84.811.593
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Note 7 - Due to Other Governments

At June 30,2013 and2012, amounts due to other governments consisted of the following:

SANDAG - Subsidy revenue for construction projects in process

SANDAG - CIP Reimbursement

North County Transit District

City of Lemon Grove - TDA Funds

City of San Diego - Shared Revenue

City of El Cajon - TDA Funds

State of California

City of Poway - TDA Funds

City oflLa Mesa - TDA Funds

City of Coronado - TDA Funds

County of San Diego

SANDAG - Pæs Sales

City of Santee - TDA Funds

SANDAG - Compass Card Program

Total due to other governments

Note I - Unearned Revenue

At June 30,2013 and2012, unearned revenue consisted of the following:

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013

$ 18,172,628

1,1 82,1 54

295,945

134,122

122,338

90,883

45,638

67,977

51,500

20,600

t:

Fare media payments received in advance $

Lease payments received in advance

Deposit from City of Mendoza for sale of light rail vehicles

County funds - 45 Ranch development

Land management deposits

Note9-CommoditySwap

On April 27,2011, MTS entered into a commodity swap agreement with Deutsche Bank AG in an effort to better
manage costs and remove market volatility related to the acquisition of natural gas for fueling its bus fleet. Under the
terms of the agreement, MTS purchased natural gas at market prices from British Petroleum, and Deutsche Bank
guaranteed that the total price paid by MTS would be equal to $4.698 MMBTU as fixed in the contract.

2012

Advertising revenue received in advance

Total uneared revenue

4,531,369

462,483

64,143

tzt,t70
I 04,359

90,890

6ó6,505

60,027

104,000

18,816

47,091

357,526

I 00,000

¿ 75,095

$ 20.r84.156 $ 6.803.474

Notional

Type Objective Quantity
Hedge natural 

7?? ollo
Fuelcontract gas market price ffi;ñ 71112011 613012012

changes

20t3

2,787,666

898, I 85

428,341

98,570

I 0,308

20t2

$ 1,124,825

595,886

219,049

21,225

253,450

g 4.223.070 S 2,214.43s

Effective Date Matures
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Note 9 - Commodity Swap (Continued)

During the period of the agreement (FY2012) MTS paid $2,688,798 to British Petroleum for natural gas purchases and
paid an additional $978,496 to Deutsche Bank under the terms of the pricing guarantee.

While the commodity swap did not provide a reduction in the total cost of natural gas, it did shield MTS from seasonal
price variances. A commodity swap contract was not in place for FY20l3.

Note l0 - Long-Term Debt

A. Summøry

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2013:

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30,2013 and2012

MTS:
Capital lease obligations

Defened gain on refunding

Finance obligation

Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims

Net other postemployment benefits

Total MTS

San Diego Transit Corporation:

Pension obligation bonds

Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims

Net other postemployment benefits

Total San Diego Transit Corporation

San Diego Trolley, Inc.:

Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims

Net other postemployment benefits

Total San Diego Trolley, Inc

Total

Amounts due

Balance Balance Amounts due in more than

Iuly 1,2012 Additions Reductions June 30,2013 within one year one year

s 4,766,867 $ - $ (s77,049)$ 4,189,818 $ 575,ó69 S 3,614,149

68t,t23 - (9t,837) 589,286 589,286

n6,942p00 - (1,678,414) ts,264,486 I,807,484 1t3,457,002

899,978 823,098 (7s6,47t) 966,605 756,47t 2t0,t34
390,000 215,950 (97,000) 508,950 508,9s0

3,036,541 533,100 (49,167) 3,520,474

r26,7t7,409 1,572,148 (3,249,938) t2s,039,6t9 3,648,574 t21,391,045

40,sr0,000 (14,630,000) 25,880,000 1,915,000 23,965,000

8,572,345 3,984,336 (4,t34,207) 8,422,474 4,134,207 4,288,267

10,293,000 t,525,943 (2,48t,2t3) 9,337,730 2,015,000 7,322,730

3,40s,264 t,442,600 (840,906) 4,006,958 

- 

4,006,958

62,780,609 6,9s2,879 (22,086,326\ 47,647,t62 8,064,207 39,582,955

2,752,302 3,033,316 (3,005,957) 2,779,661 2,s64,824 2t4,837

3,581,000 (52,7t7) (1,126,000) 2,402,283 870,939 t,531,344

s,676,864 644,200 (152,683) 6,168,38r 

- 

6,168,381

t2,0t0,t66 3,624,799 (4,284,640) l 1,350,325 3,43s,763 7,9t4,562

$ 201.s08.184 $ t2.t49,826 $ (29.620.904) $ 184.037.r06 $ 15.148.544 $ 168.888.562

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Due within one year:

Compensated absences payable $ 7,455,502

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 3,394,889

Long-term debt 2,490,669

Long-term debt payable from restricted assets 1,80i,484

$ 15.148.544

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt payable from restricted assets $ I 13,457,002

Compensated absences payable 4,713,238

Accrued damage, injury and employee claims 8,854,074

Net other postemployment benefits I 3,695,8 I 3

Long-termdebt 
-äff#
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Note 10 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

B. Capìtal Lease

The County of San Diego (the County) has a master lease agreement with the MTS Joint Powers Agency (Agency)
for the lease of the MTS Tower building. MTS entered into a sublease agreement with the County for a portion
(27.61%) of the MTS Tower building. The sublease is classified as a capital lease because27.61% of the title
transfers to MTS at the end of the County's master lease. The master lease terminates on November 1,2086;
however, the County has the option to terminate the agreement on November 1,2041 and each tenth anniversary
thereafter. In May 2011, San Diego County refunded the underlying debt obligation in order to secure a more
favorable interest rate, which will result in a $1.3 million reduction in future principal and interest payments under
the terms of the lease agreement. A $788,266 net economic gain from the refunding, which is the difference
between the present value of the minimum payments on the refunded debt and the present value of the minimum
payments on the refunding debt, has been defened. The deferred gain will be amortized as a component of interest
expense over the life of the refunding debt, which is the same life as the refunded debt.

The asset acquired through acapital lease is as follows:

2013 2012

Building-MTSTower $ 12,091,981 $ 12,091,981

Less accumulated depreciation (9,257,923\ (8,880,0491

Total $ 2,834.058 $ 3.21 1,932

The following is a summary of future minimum payments under the capital lease as of June 30,2013:.

Tower Lease

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019-2020

Total minimum lease payments

Less amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments

At June 30, 2013, the future minimum payments were $4, I 89,8 I 8.

Year ending June 30: Payments

s 736,704

750,550

731,665

739,617

743,537

1,116,204

4,8t8,277
(628,4591

$ 4.189.818
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Note 10 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

C. Finance Oblìgalìons

The following is a summary of changes in finance obligations for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Amounts due Amounts due

Balance Balance within one in more than

July 1,2012 Additions Reductions June 30,2013 one year one year

1995 LRV Lease/Leaseback $l 16,942,900 $ $ (1,678,414) $l 15,264,486 $ 1,807,484 $l 13,457,002

PensionObligationBonds 40,510,000 

- 

(14,630,000) 25,880,000 1,915,000 23,965,000

TotalFinance Obligations $157.452.900 $ $ (16.308.414) $141.144.486 $ 3.722,484 5137,422,002

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and2012

1 99 5 LRV Leøse/Leaseback

In fiscal year 1996, MTS entered into a master lease to lease 52 light rail vehicles to an investor and then
simultaneously entered into a sublease agreement to lease them back. MTS received prepayments of the master
lease from the investor of approximately $102.7 million, of which it used approximately $90.7 million to place two
investments that will be used to make the interest and principal payments on the finance obligation, MTS placed

$78.8 million in a fixed rate deposit and invested $11.9 million in government zero-coupon bonds. The interest
earned on the deposit, together with the principal amount of the deposit and the maturities of the zero-coupon
bonds are sufficient to coverthe amounts due underthe finance obligation. As of June 30,2013, the remaining
future obligations total SI | 5,264,486.

2014 $1,807,484 $5,759,506 $7,566,990
2015 21,36t,390 5,689,623 27,051,013

2016 21,495,358 5,560,115 27,055,473

2017 4,923,324 5,240,909 10,164,233

2018 4,642,844 4,873,030 9,515,874

2019-2023 37,342,982 17,303,046 54,646,028

2024-2026 23,691,104 2,015,568 25,706,672

$1 15.264.436 S-OU.OOt.rn $161.706,283

For the above lease transaction, MTS is obligated to insure and maintain the equipment. The lease agreement also
provide for MTS' right to continued use and control of the equipment. The LRVs acquired under the various
finance obligations have been transferred to and are recorded by SDTI. For the 1995 LRV lease/leaseback, as well
as the 1990 sale/leaseback that was retired in 2008, MTS has also agreed to indemnify the lessors for any taxes
imposed by United States taxing authorities.

Year endins June 30: Principal Interest Total
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Note l0 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

C. Fínance Obligations (Continued)

Pensìon Obligation Bonds

In October 2004, MTS issued $77,490,000 of Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) for the benefit of SDTC.
The purpose of the bonds was to make contributions to the San Diego Transit Corporation Retirement Plan and

reduce its unfunded liability. This is in essence a hedge versus the assumed investment rate of 8% used by the
actuary to determine the Actuarial Accrued Liability. The proceeds less fees were invested into the retirement
plan. The bonds consist of the following:

Series A Bonds of $38,690,000 are fixed rate bonds that mature in annual installments between 2006 and 2024 and
bear an interest rate from 2.58%to 5.15o/o increasing progressively over the maturities. Interest is due and payable

semi-annually on June I and December l. Principal is due and payable each year on December l.

The Taxable Pension Obligation Refunding Bonds 2009 Series A of $30,000,000 are variable rate bonds that
mature December 23,2015. Interest is adjusted on a weekly basis indexed to LIBOR and payable on a monthly
basis. The refunding bonds were issued in 2009 to retire the Series B Bonds of $38,800,000 issued in2004, which
were variable rate bonds that matured in annual installments between 2024 and 2034. The Taxable Pension

Obligation Refunding Bonds 2009 Series A were retired in December 2012.

At June 30,2013,the outstanding balance of the Pension Obligation Bonds is $25,880,000.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest

Note 1l - Risk Management

MTS (including SDTI, SDTC, and Other Contracted Services) is self-insured for liability claims to a maximum of
$2,000,000 per occurrence. Amounts in excess of the selÊinsured retention limits for public liability are covered

through commercial insurance caniers up to $75,000,000. MTS, SDTI, and SDTC purchase all-risk (excluding

earthquake) insurance coverage for property damage up to $600,000,000 per occuffence with deductibles ranging from
$25,000 to $250,000, depending on the peril involved. In addition, MTS, SDTC, and SDTI are self-insured for costs

arising from employee workers' compensation act benefit claims including employer's liability to a retained limit of
$ 1,000,000 per occurence. Amounts in excess of $ 1,000,000 are insured up to statutory limits. SDTC and MTS are

self-insured for unemployment claims. SDTC and SDTI have policies for crime coverage through commercial

insurance.

20t4
201 5

2016

20t7
201 8

2019-2023

2024

$ l,gl5,ooo $ 1,238,882 $ 3,153,882

2,005,000 1,149,100 3,154,100

2,100,000 1,052,065 3,152,065

2,205,000 947,884 3,152,884

2,315,000 838,500 3,153,500

13,495,000 2,280,387 15,775,387

1,845,000 47,509 1,892,509

$ 2s.880.000 $ 7,ss4.327 $ 33.434.327

Total
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Note I I - Risk Management (Continued)

Claims expenditures and liabilities in connection with these selÊinsurance programs are reported when it is probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of
claims that have been incurred but not reported based upon past experience, modified for current trends and
information. Claim payments up to $2,000,000 per incident were recorded as general and administrative expenses in
the statements ofrevenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Claim payments did not exceed insurance coverage
in any ofthe past three years.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30,2013 and2012

Following is summary of accrued damage injury, and employee claims for fiscal years 2013 and2012.,

MTS:

2010-20fi$14,643,000$2,808,963
2011-2012 14,428,000 2,313,883

2012-2013 14,264,000 1,689,176

Beginning of
fiscal year

MTS has established a policy to consolidate the minimum balances required in the liability claims reserve accounts of
SDTC and SDTI to be held by MTS. The policy also established eligible uses for the MTS reserve account, which
included the reimbursement to SDTC and SDTI of awards/settlements of individual liability claims for personal injury
andlor property damage in excess of $300,000, but within the self-insurance retention at SDTC and SDTI. In
connection with these self-insurance programs, liabilities for SDTC, SDTI and MTS were $12,248,963 at

June 30, 2013 and$.14,264,000 at June 30,2012.

The Board has designated $2,000,000 for the purposes of funding the future claims liabilities of MTS, SDTI, and

SDTC.

Note 12 - Contingencies

Pending legøl actions. MTS, SDTC and SDTI have been named in certain legal actions pending at June 30,2013.
While the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of management of MTS, SDTC and

SDTI, based in part on the advice of counsel, the resolution of these matters is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the financial position or results of operations of MTS, SDTC, or SDTI, or is adequately covered by insurance.

Pledgerl Revenue. SDTC has pledged future revenues pursuant to the provision of the Pension Obligation Bonds
issued by SDTC in 2004.

Cunent year

claims and

changes

in estimates

Accrued damage, iniury and employee claims

Cunent portion

Non-current portion

Total

Claims End of
payments fiscal year

$ (3,023,963) $ 14,428,000

(2,477,883) 14,264,000

(3,704,213) 12,248,963

2013 2012

$ 3,394,889 $ 3,036,806

8,854,074 11,227,194

$ 12.248.963 $ 14.264.000

32



Note 12 - Contingencies (Continued)

Contìngent Tax Liabílity Relaled to Leaseback Agreemenls. During 1990 and 1995 MTS entered into saleileaseback
and lease/leaseback arrangements related to the acquisition oftrolley cars. These agreements provided tax benefits for
the purchaser/lessor. Certain terms of the agreements call for repayment to the purchaser/lessor if the tax
consequences ofthe agreement are lost or changed due to changes in the Internal Revenue Code. Subsequent changes

in the Internal Revenue Code may cause an amount to be repaid to the purchaser/lessor, which is essentially the poftion
ofthe proceeds relating to the tax benefits lost by the purchaser/lessor. No repayment has been requested to date, and

the amount of any future request is not estimable at this time.

Contingent Tax Líability Related to Component Unít. MTS learned in FY2007 that the freight operator who has

managed SD&AE operations in the past filed federal and state corporate tax returns through calendar year 2005, which
were not required for this not for profit corporation. Under the direction of tax consultants, MTS directed that the
freight operator prepare a final return for calendar year 2007. Because SD&AE has never reported taxable income,
because the federal and state statutes provide exemption from income tax for not for profit corporations, and because

the fiscal tax year 2007 is now closed management does not anticipate future examinations of these retums or any
future tax liability.

Note l3 - Postemployment Health Care Benefits

Plan Description. As of January l,20ll, all employees at MTS, all management employees at SDTI and SDTC, and

all union employees at SDTI participated in HMO and PPO plans offered by Kaiser and Anthem. As in years past,

SDTC has provided payments to operator and maintenance employee unions for provision of postemployment benefits
as determined by each union. Total MTS payments for the year ended June 30,2013 were $49,167 for 9 retirees

currently receiving postemployment health care benehts. Total SDTI payments for the year ended June 30, 2013 were

$152,683 for 25 retirees currently receiving benefits. Total SDTC payments for the year ended June 30, 2013 were

$433,836 for 45 management retirees plus $407,070 for 156 union retirees currently receiving benefits. Because the

three plans are funded as expenses are incurred, there are no accumulated plan assets and no separate benefit plan

reports are available at this time.

The Plan's Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) is the cumulative excess of prior Annual Required Contribution (ARC) over
benefit payments and contributions, with annual adjustments for interest and amorlization. The reconciliation of NOO
over fiscal year 2013 is as follows:

Net OPEB Obligation (NOO)

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30,2013 and2012

NOO at June 30, 2012

Benefit payments paid outside ofa trust

Estimated contributions to a trust

Annual Required Contribution

Accrued interest on June 30, 2012 NOO

Amortization of June 30, 2012 NOO

NOO at June 30, 2013

$ 3,036,541 $ 5,676,864 $ 3,405,264 $ 12,l18,669

(49,t67_) (152,683) (840,906) (1,042,756_)

526,600 63 1,900 1,435,300 2,593,800

136,600 255,500 153,200 545,300

(130,100) (243,200\ (145,900) (519,200)

$ 3.s20.474 $ 6.168.381 $ 4.006.958 $ .1L69s.813

MTS SDTI SDTC Total
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Note 13 - Postemployment Health Care Benefits (Continued)

Eligibility. Employees are eligible after attaining agelservice years of 50/10 for MTS and SDTI management, 50/15 for
SDTI union,53/10 for SDTC management, and 55/5 for SDTC unions.

Participants as ofJune 30.2012 (most cunent available) Total

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and2012

Funding policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and MTS are established by management and may be
amended. The contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2013 MTS
contributions to the plan were $1,042,756 (or 49.29% of total gross health costs), while retirees contributed $1,072,969
(or 50.7lYo of total gross health costs).

Annuøl OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. MTS' annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the
sponsoring employer's Annual Required Contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities (UAAL) as a level
percentage ofprojected payroll on a closed basis over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows
the components of MTS' ARC and Annual OPEB Cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plans, and
the changes in MTS'Net OPEB Obligation to the Plan:

All Groups

Normal Cost $ 1,050,300

Amortization of Unfunded AAL 1,543,500

Cunent retirees and surviving spouses

Other participants fully eligible for benefits

Other participants not yet fully eligible for benefits

Total

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 12,118,669

Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 13.695.813

MTS'Annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of Annual OPEB Cost contributed to the plan and the Net OPEB Obligation
for fiscal years 2011,2012 and20l3 were as follows:

1,53 I

Annual Required Contribution

Interest on beginning of year NOO

Amortization of beginning of yer NOO

Annual OPEB cost

Contributions or Benefit Payments

Implicit subsidy payments

lncrease in net OPEB obligation

237

330

964

o/o of Annual
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB OPEB Cost

ended Cost Contributed

2,593,900

545,300

(5 I 9,200)

2,619,900
(726,656)

(3 1 6,1 00)

I ,57 7 ,144

June 30, 201I $ 2,276,900 40.85o/o

June 30,2012 2,628,300 36.830/o

June 30,2013 2,619,900 39.80%

Net OPEB
Obligation

$ 10,458,280
12,118,669

13,695,813
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Note 13 - Postemployment Health Care Benefits (Continued)

Funded Slutus and Funding Progress. As of June 30,201l, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was not
funded. The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) for benefits was $37,018,400 and the actuarial value of assets was $0

compared to $31,643,500 and $0 as of June 30, 2009. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) as of June 30,2011 was $65,775,100 and the ratio of Unfunded AAL to covered payroll was 56Yo

percent compared to $72,531,100 and44Yo as ofJune 30,2009.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past

expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The most recent funding progress schedules available for
MTS, SDTI and SDTC are presented below:

MTS (in 000s)

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and20l2

Actuarial

Valuation Value of
Date Assets

6130120Í

SDTI (in 000s)
Actuarial

Valuation Value of Entry Age

Date Assets Normal AAL
6130120r $ $ 9,417

SDTC (in 000s)
Actuarial

Valuation Value Entry Age

Date Assets Normal AAL

Annual UAAL as a

Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered o/oof

Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll payroll

S 3,276 $ 3,276 0.00o/o $ 8,023 40.83o/o

6130120lL $ 24,326 $ 24,326 0.00% $ 33,136 73.41o/o

Actuarialreview and analysis of OPEB liability and funding status is required every two years, or annually if there are

significant changes in the plan. The June 201I study was completed during FY20l2. The next study, which we will
based on activity through June 2013, will be completed during FY20l4.

Acluarial MeÍhods ønd Assumptions, Projections of benefits for financial repofting purposes are based on the

substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and

plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in Actuarial Accrued Liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the June 30,2011 actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method was used. The actuary assumed

4.50lo investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) which is the expected long-term investment returns on

the employer's own investments, a compensation increase of 3o/o, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate which varies

depending on the plan and type of health care service involved. Beginning in fiscal year 201212013, medical/drug

trends generally grade down from 7.5o/o andsYoto an ultimate of 45%by 202412025, while dental expense trends
grade down from 5.0% to an ultimate of 4.5Yo by 201812019. A general inflation rate of 3.0% was included in the
investment rate, compensation rate, and the health care cost trend rate. The UAAL is being amortized as a level
percentage ofprojected payroll over a rolling 30 years.
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Unfunded Funded

AAL Status

$ 9,417 0.00%

Annual UAAL as a

Unfunded Funded Covered %of
AAL Status Payroll Payroll

Annual UAAL as a

Covered %of
Payroll Payroll

s 24,617 38.250/o



Note l4 - Employee Retirement Systems

A. MTS and SDTI

Plan Description and Provisions

MTS' and SDTI's defined benefit pension plans (Plan) provide retirement and disability benefrts, annual cost-of-
living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plans are part of the Public Agency
poftion of the Califomia Public Employees Retirement System (CaIPERS), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State of California. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by
State statutes within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. MTS and SDTI have selected optional benefit
provisions in their contracts with CaIPERS and adopt these benefits through local ordinances. Copies of the
CaIPERS annual financial reporl may be obtained from the CaIPERS Executive Office - 400 P Street, Sacramento,

cA 95814.

Funding Policy

All employees working the equivalent of 1,000 hours per fiscal year are eligible to palticipate as members of
CaIPERS. The age at which MTS and SDTI employees are eligible to retire varies based on when they joined the
Agency; all employees must have at least five years of vested service at separation to receive benefits. Annual
retirement benefits are determined based on age at retirement, the length of membership service, and the amount of
earnings based on the highest average pay rate in either a 12 or 36 month period (depending on when the employee
first became a CaIPERS member). CaIPERS also provides death and disability benefits.

The contribution requirements of the Plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution
rate is established based on annual CaIPERS actuarial studies of Plan assets and liabilities and participant
demographics. All MTS and SDTI employees are required to contribute a percentage of their gross pay to fund
their future retirement benefits. Employee contributions vary based on the applicable Collective Bargaining
Agreement, agency policy, and the date the employees' CaIPERS membership began. MTS and SDTI are required
to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the CaIPERS Board of Administration.

The most recent funding progress schedule available for SDTI is presented below:

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30,2013 and2012

SDTI (in 000s)
Actuarial

Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded

Date Assets Normal AAL AAL
6130120ll $ 77 ,582 $ 88, 127 $ 1 0,545

MTS is a member of the CaIPERS risk pool for groups under 100 because the plan had less than 100 active
members for at least one valuation since June 30,2003. As a result individual funding progress is not available for
MTS.

Funded

Status

Annual UAAL as a

Covered %of
Payroll Payroll

88.03% S 24,097 43;76%
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Note l4 - Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)

A. MTS and SDTI (Contìnued)

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2013, MTS' and SDTI's annual required employer contributions were $2,095,466 and $4,029,158,
respectively. Of these totals, employees contributed $66,436 and $1,398,251. The required contribution for fiscal
year 2013 was determined as part of the June 30, 2010, actuarial valuation using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial
Cost Method with the contributions determined as a percent of pay. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.50%
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses); (b) projected salary increases from 3.30o/oto 14.20o/o

depending on age, service, and type of employment; (c) 3.00o/o payroll growth adjustment; (d) 2.75% inflation
adjustment; and (e) a merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an assumed annual inflation
growth of 2.75% and an annual production growth of 0.25Yo. The actuarial value of the assets of both plans was

determined using a technique that smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments
over a fifteen-year period depending on the size of investment gains and/or losses. MTS' and SDTI's initial
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or excess assets) is being amortized as a level percentage ofprojected payroll
on a closed basis depending on the plan's date of entry. Subsequent gains and losses are amortized over variable
periods depending on the events precipitating the gain or loss. The average remaining amortization period at

June 30, 201l, the most recent valuation date, was 20 years for MTS and27 years for SDTI.

Trend information for MTS (in 000s):

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30,2013 and2012

Trend information for SDTI (in 000s):

Fiscal Year

Ended

June 30:

20lL
2012

2013

Annual

Fiscal Year Required

Ended Contribution

June 30: (ARC)

20ll s 1,647

2012 2,021

2013 2,095

Actual

Contribution

Annual

Required

Contribution

(ARC)

$ 3,565

3,908

4,029

$ 1,647

2,021

2,095

Percentage of
ARC

Contributed

100%

t00%
l00o/o

Actual

Conhibution

$ 3,s6s

3,908

4,029

Percentage of
ARC

Contributed

100%

100%

100%
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Note l4 - Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)

B, SDTC

Plan Description

The San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) Employee Retirement Plan (Plan) provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to eligible Plan members and beneficiaries. Full-
time employees and certain part-time noncontract employees who have completed one year of service in which
they have worked at least 1,000 hours of service, and certain part-time contract employees participate in the Plan.
To be eligible for participation in the defined benefit plan, the employee must have been hired before November
25,2012 if they are an Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU), Local 1309 member, or before April 28, 201I if they
are an International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local465 member.

Beginning in FY 201l, SDTC negotiated changes to retirement benefits for ATU Local 1309 members and IBEW
Local 465 members. ATU Local 1309 represented employees hired after November 25,2012 and IBEW local 465
represented employees hired after April 28, 2011 will receive their retirement benefits from a defined contribution
401(a) plan. Based on the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement, SDTC contributes a fixed percentage of
each employee's gross wages to a 401(a) account and matches voluntary employee contributions up to a maximum
of 2Yo of the employees' gross wages.

SDTC issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Plan. The financial report may be obtained by writing to San Diego Transit Corporation, 1255
Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA92l0l.

Funding Status and Progress

The SDTC defined benefit pension plan is funded with both employer and employee contributions. Required
funding levels are determined by annual independent actuarial studies comparing plan assets and liabilities and
participant demographics. Employee contributions vary based on the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement,
agency policy, and the date the employees' membership began. After deducting employee contributions, SDTC
contributes the remaining balance necessary to achieve the actuarially required funding level. The valuation
method used to calculate the contribution for the Plan is the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method which is a
projected benefit cost method.

According to this cost method, the normal cost for an employee is the level amount which would fund the
projected benefit if it were paid annually from date of eligibility until retirement. The significant actuarial
assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirements included (a) 7.50o/o investment
rate of return, (b) projected salary increase of 3.25o/oto l4Yo depending on age, service, and type of employment;
(c) 3% inflation adjustment; and (d) cost of living adjustments up to 2Yo annually for certain Non-Contract
members only. The actuarial value of the assets of the plan was determined using a technique that smoothes the
effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period depending on the size of
investment gains andior losses. SDTC's initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage ofprojected payroll on an open basis. Subsequent gains and losses are amortized over variable periods
depending on the events precipitating the gain or loss. The average remaining amoftization period at July I,2012,
the most recent valuation date, was 25 years.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
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Note 14 - Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)

B. SDTC (Contìnued)

The most recent schedule of funding progress for SDTC is presented below:

SDTC (in 000s)
Actuarial

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded

Date Assets NormalAAL Liability
71u20129147,787$235,401 $87,614

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the annual pension cost of 510,957,255 for the pension plan was equal to
SDTC's required and actual contributions. Of this total, employees contributed 5401,274. The required
contribution was determined as part of the July l,20ll actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method.
Following is the most recent data available.

Trend information for SDTC (in 000s):

2011 $ 7,753 $ 7,753 100%

2012 10,132 10,132 100%

2013 10,957 10,957 100%

Note l5 - Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures

SDTC had unrestricted net deficits of $15,881,180 at June 30,2013 compared to $21,072,108 at June 30,2012. The
deficit is primarily a result of the timing difference between recognition of expenses on an accrual basis and when
those expenses are funded by subsidy transfers. MTS expects that this deficit will be funded with future subsidies.

Note 16 - Subsequent Events

MTS negotiated a sale of a property commonly known as the Pyramid Van Lines Building. The property, 1603 Main
Street, is located at the southwest corner of Main Street and Sigsbee Street in the Barrio Logan neighborhood of the
City of San Diego (APN 538-210-25). The parcel is 3.59 acres and is improved with a 90,000 square-foot warehouse.

The property is contiguous and directly east of the existing trolley yard. The purchase of the property is for the last
remaining viable yard expansion property. The purchase price for the property was $16,610,000 plus closing costs,

engineering studies, and brokers fees.

Funded

Status

Fiscal Year

Ended

June 30:

Annual

Covered

Payroll

$ 33,39362.78%

Annual

Required Percentage of
Contribution Actual ARC

(ARC) Contribution Contributed

UAAL as a

%of
Payroll

262.37o/o
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(Unaudited)
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF DEFINED PENSION PLAN

The following Schedule ofFunding Progress shows the recent history ofthe actuarial value ofassets, actuarial accrued
liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to payroll. (Amounts in
thousands ofdollars).

MTS

Beginning with the 613012003 valuation, CaIPERS established a risk pool for cities and other government entities that
have less than 100 active members. Actuarial valuation was performed with other participants within the same risk
pool. Therefore, standalone information for the Schedule of Funding Progress for MTS is not available.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Required Supplementary Information

For the year ended June 30, 2013

SDTI (in 000s)

Valuation

Date

613012009

6130120t0

6l30l20tl

SDTC (in 000s)

Actuarial

Value of
Assets

Actuarial

Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded

Date Assets Normal AAL AAL

7lll20t0$152,896$226,821 $73,925
7lll20n l5l,ll3 236,875 85,762

7lv20t2 t47,787 235,40t 87,614

65,117

71,032

77,582

Entry Age

NormalAAL

In the valuation as of July 1,1999, the entire Actuarial Accrued Liability had been funded. A new Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability was created as of April l, 2000, primarily as a result of improvements in Plan benefits. Therefore,
beginning with the April l, 2000 actuarial valuation, all sources of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability are

combined and amortized as a level dollar payment over a rolling 30-year period.

74,005

79,497

88,127

Unfunded

AAL

8,888

9,466

10,545

Funded

Status

Annual UAAL as a

Covered o/o of
Payroll Payroll

$ 23,501 37.82%

23,364 36.24%

24,097 43.7 60/o

Annual UAAL as a

Covered o/o of
Payroll Payroll

87.99%

89.350/o

88.03%

Funded

Status

67 .41% $ 3 t,889 231 .820/o

63.79% 32,573 263.29%

62.780/o 33,393 262.370/o
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

The following Schedule of Funding
accrued liability, their relationship,
(Amounts in thousands of dollars),

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Required Supplementary Information (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2013

MTS (in 000s)

Valuation

Date

6t30t2007

6130t2009

6130120n

SDTC (in 000s)

Progress shows the
and the relationship

Actuarial

Value of
Assets

Valuation

Date

613012007

613012009

6130120n

SDTI (in 000s)

Entry Age

Normal AAL

recent history ofthe actuarial value
of the unfunded actuarial accrued

$ 8,292

2,701

3,276

Actuarial

Value of
Assets

Actuarial

Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded

Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status

Unfunded

AAL

613012007 $ $ 15,399 $ 15,399 0.00% $ 17,749 86.76%

613012009 - 7,565 7,565 0.00o/o 26,788 28.24%

6t30t20fi - 9,417 9,4t7 0.00% 24,617 38.250/o

Actuarial review and analysis of OPEB liability and funding status is performed every two years or annually if
there are significant changes in the plan. The next scheduled actuarial review and analysis of OPEB liability and
funding status will be performed in FY20l4 based on the year ending June 30,2013.

Entry Age

NormalAAL

:$

8,292

2,701

3,276

Funded

Status

26,473

21,378

24,326

of assets, actuarial
liability to payroll.

Unfunded

AAL

Annual UAAL as a

Covered %of
Payroll Payroll

$ 9,573 86.62%

8,281 32.620/o

8,023 40.830/o

Annual UAAL as a

Covered o/o of
Payroll Payroll

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

26,473

21,378

24,326

Funded

Status

0.00% $ 35,935 73.67%

0.00% 37,463 57.06%

0.00% 33,136 73.41%

Annual UAAL as a

Covered %of
Payroll Payroll

43



This page intenlionally lelt blank,

44



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining Schedule of Net Position

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual:

Combined Operations

General Fund

Taxicab Administration

San Diego &. Arizona Eastern Railway

Contract Services

San Diego Transit Corporation

San Diego Trolley, Inc.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Combining Schedule of Net Position

June 30,2013

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments restricted for debt service payable within one year

Accounts and other receivables

Due from other governments

Internal balances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other cunent assets

Total cunent assets

Noncurrent assets:

Cash and certificates ofdeposit restricted for capital support
Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects

Unamortized bond issuance cost

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Net pension asset

Total noncur¡ent assets

Total assets

w,06; ,4,n; '\\i',lil "'äi',21" 'i',i1'1:,111,

125,152,912 5,451,116 8,028,967 21,382,928 160,015,923

General Contracted

Ope¡ations Services

$ 68,043,182 $

1,807,484

5,259,186

62,077,048
(12,177,057)

t2,t43,571
I 16,056,580

80,070,149 87.340,937

SDTC SDTI Total

(97,919) $ 67,342,108

- 1,907,494

92,666 7,487,4t5
1,087,898 64,554,910

4.432.943

12,143,57t

I I 6,056,580

329,04s
1,416,260,555

750,559

104,989

4,481,031

$ (603,155) $

1,385,004

1,294,975

3,263,093

À
6

329,04s

154,410,214 1,094,439,255

208,270,300 87,340,937 182,564,897 1,094,439,255 t,572,615,389

333,423,212 92,792,053 190,593,864 l.l15,822.183 1,732,63t,312



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Combining Schedule of Net Position (Continued)

June 30,2013

General

Operations

5,541,694

20,058,022

3,794,729

3,349,992

334,827

756,471

508,950

575,669

1,907,494

36,726,828

7,487 ,74s
113,457,002

210,134

3,520,474

4,203,435

128,878,790

Contracted

Services SDTC

1,522,3t6

27,565

2,867,787

4,134,207

2,0 15,000

1,915,000

SDTI Total
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Due to other govemments

Uneamed revenue

Accrued expenses

Retention payable

Due within one year:

Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims

Long-temr debt

Long-term debt payable from rest¡icted æsets

Total cunent liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Retention payable from restricted assets

Long-term debt payable ûom restricted assets

Due in more than one year:

Cornpensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims

Net other postemployment benefits obligation

Long-term debt, due in mo¡e than one year

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investrnent in capital assets

Restricted

Un¡estricted

Total net position

4,906,959

1,911

960,748 t2,93t,6t7
96,658 20,194,156

428,341 4,223,070

3,906,693 10,123,462
- 334,82'7

7,455,502

3,394,889

2,490,669

1,807,484

4,908,770 12,481,875 8,828,203 62,945,676

- 7,487,745

- l 13.4s7.002

2,564,824

870,939

è{

4,288,267

7,322,730

4,oo6,g5g

23,96s,000

2t4,837

1,531,344

6, 168,381

4,713,238

8,854,074

13,695,813

28,168,435

39,582,955 7,914,562 176,376,307

ló5,605,618 4,908,770 52,064,830 t6,742,765 239,321,983

(39,973,441) 87,340,937 154,410,214 t,094,439,255 1,296,2t6,965

7,255,404 7,255,404
200,535,631 542,346 (15,881,180) 4,640,163 189,836,960

$ 167,817,594 $ 87.883,283 $ 138,529,034 $ 1,099,079,418 $ 1,493.309,329



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended June 30, 2013

8 26,476,421 S 28,621,363

Eliminations Total

- $ 90,651,622

- 972,190

- 900

Contracted

Services SDTC

74,452,424

1,635,096

4,517,591

5,246,7t9
1,479,030

10,351,122

SDTI
Operating revenues:

Passenger revenue

Advertising

Cha¡ter

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy costs

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

17,688,738 569,249

10,430,851 s2,032,538

$ 35,553,838 $

36,128,120

3t,009,942

3,315,047

3,9r4,698

8,869,175

929,108

18,3t2,146

96,559,213

123,720,353

67,413,522

3,570,759

8,468,837

22,572,397

2,902,322

6,492,642

92,788,242

s',t4,282

1 09,1 8 1,503

34,567

216,244

479,284

(23,883,8 l 6)

1,981

8,240,259

15,300

1,7 l3,l 90

(105,610,745)

å
æ

1,361,426 t2,305,236 14,12t,961 64,999,6t9

n5,508,797 74,877,753 111,802,933 131,350,335 (105,610,745) 327,929,073

(110,181,265) (48,401,332) (83,175,793) (95,222,2t5) 105,610,745 (231,369,860)



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2013

General

Operations

57,733,099

71,893,404

9,878,1 89

5,213,539

37,775,380

6,951,227

6,266,933

(s,973,879)

726,382

Contracted

Services SDTC SDTI Eliminations Total
Public support and nonoperating revetrues (expenses):

Federal revenue

Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds

State Transit Assistance (STA) funds

Stiate revenue - other

TransNet funds

Other local subsidies

Investment eamings

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal of æsets

Other expenses

Amortization of bond issuance costs

Total public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers and contributed capital

Transfers

Contributed capital, net

Changes in net position

Net Position:

Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

190,464,274 36,096,096

80,283,009 (12,305,236)

(37,896,097)

5,595,366

26,659,232

1,473,067

992,174

r,376,257

20,265,957

28,826,1 53

3,127,601

18,607,740

278,000

(t,546,452)

27,025

(1,726)

(3 r,58 r )

22,425,986

3,353,833

25,470

5,000,000

51,013

(48,287,309)

(58,839,2 l8)
(3,127,607)

( I ,498,537)

(30,099,9 r 4)

(r,654,251)

57,733,099

7t,893,404

9,878, I 89

5,213,539

32,275,380

6,951,227

6,266,933

(7,520,33 l)
804,420

(1,726)

(3 l,s8 r)

è\o

69,552,723 30,856,302 (143,506,842) 181,462,5s3

(13,623,070) (64,365,913) (37,896,097) (47,907,307)

37,896,097

132,182,034

84,274,727

1,409,034,602

(150,690,868) 13,232,829 40,476,157 229,163,916

( 108,303,956)

276,121,550

927,593

86,955,690

26,853,087 164,798,003

|1,675,947 934,281,415

$ 167,S17,594 $ 87,883,283 $ 138,529,034 $1,099,079,418 $ - $1,493,309,329



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2013

General

Operations

(6s1,776)

(82,8 16,993)

732,145

(82,742,624)

I 93,1 56

Conhacted

Services Tot¿l
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Payments for damage and injury

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Casb flows from noncapital financing activities:
Public support funds received

Net casb provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Casb flows from capital and related financing activities:
Debt service costs

Property acquisition

!. Proceeds from disposal ofæsets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related linancing activities

Cash llows from investing activities:

Interest received on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activitics

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

Cash and casb equivalents:

Cæh and cæh equivalents

Cæh and certificates of deposit restricted for capital support

Total cash and cash equivalents

s 4,228,260 $ 25,983,066 $ 29,093,709 $ 35,454,9t8 S 94,759,953
(2s,8s7,72s) (64,3ts,623) (9,724,104) (22,304,497) (122,201,949)
(16,570,31r) (533,256) (69,744,929) (29,049,235) (ns,897,734)

(23,346)

(38,223.122) (38.8ó5,813) (s2,278,716) (16.533.030) (t45.900,681)

81,248,481 38,865,813 67,956,896 15,910,086 203,981,276

81,248,481 38,865,813 67,956,896 15,910,086 203,981,276

-_ (16,209,759_) - (16,867,535)

- (82,816,993)

1 93,1 56

(39,524,t09)

r 93,156

193,156

(502,990) 26,016 (40,001,083)

119,710,862 - (100,165) (123,935) 1t9,486,762

$ 80.186,753 $ $ (603.1s5)$ (97.919)$ 79,485.679

$ 68,043,182 $ $ (603,155) $

28,589 ó48,960 1,409,694

(16,181,170) 648,960 (98,274,834)

$ 67,342,108

12,143,57112,t43,57t

(97,919)

$ 80,186.753 $ - $ (603,155)$ (97.919)S 79.48s,679



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the year ended June 30,2013

General

Operations

Conhacted

Services SDTC SDTI Total
Reconciliation ofoperating (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating
activities

Operating (loss):

Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to net cash provided (used) by

operating activities

Depreciation

Amortization of net pension asset

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts and other ¡eceivables

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other cunent assets

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable

Acc¡ued expenses

Uneamed revenue

Net othe¡ postemployment benefits obligation

Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury and employee claims

$ (30,786,275) $

1,361,426

(46,993,208) g (73,372,291) $ (80,218,086) $(231,369,860)

(2,100,464)

10,862

(l 6,012,083)

6,166,683

2,705,119

493,933

66,627

(l I 8,950)

12,305,236

(739,062)

15,300

(3,172,149-)

(281,930)

14,121,961 64,999,619 92,799,242

14,630,000 14,630,000

(r,033,960) 6s,591 (3,807,895)

s0,659 (594,179\ (543,520)

167,648 926,13l l,llg,g4l

(4,713,647) 6t5,634 (23,282,245)

(3,155,216) (3,99r,742) (980,275)

(380,963) (33,591) 2,008,635

601,694 491,517 1,577,144

(149,871) 27,359 (55,885)

955,270 t,178,7r7 2,01s,037

(7,436,847\ 8,127,395 21,093,57 5 63,685,056 85,469,179

$ (38.223.122) $ (38,86s.8r3) $ (52.278.716) $ 06.s33.030) $ 04s,900.681)

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Supplemental noncash disclosures:
During the year SANDAG and outside parties contributed $132,182,034 in capital assets.

During the year the fair value of investments increased by $258,247.



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Combined Operations

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts

Operating revenues:

Passenger revenue

Advertising

Cha¡ter

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses3

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations frrnding

Materials and supplies

Energy costs

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

4,6s0,s0; 4,722,70; 4,e34,331 ozstit 4,861,3:l l3s,;f3

95,902,483 96,970,161 trtttr" (72,gt7) 96,486,296 (483,865)

120,962,348

68,755,994

4,029,379

8,382, l40
21,266,420

4,036,364

3.472.174

Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Amounts

s 9r,347,4s7 S 90,65r,622 $

900,000 972,t90

125,023,299 123,720,353

69,198,219 67,413,522

4,248,534 3,570,758

9,444,749 8,468,837

22,470,194 22,572,397

3,823,463 2,902,322

3,717,522 6,492,642

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

s 90,651,622 $ (695,835)

- 972,190 72,190

(25,524) 123,694,829 1,328,470

(42,164) 67,371,358 1,826,861

- 3,570,758 677,776

- 8,468,837 Q4,689)
- 22,572,397 (102,203)

442,154 3,344,476 478,987

(2,662,070) 3,830,572 (113,050)

92,788,242 (92,788,2421

230,903,819 236,925,379 327,929,073 (95,075,846) 232,853,227 4,072,152

(135,001,330 (139,955,2181 (231,369,860) 95,002,929 (136,366,931) 3,588,287



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Combined Operations

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the year ended June 30,2013

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Amounts

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis tr'inal Budget

Public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Federal revenue

Transportation Development Act

State Transit Assistance

State revenue - other

Ir¿nsNel funds

Other local subsidies

Investnent eamings

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal ofassets

Other expenses

Amortization of bond issuance costs

Total public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributed capital

Reserye revenue

Contributed capital, net

Changes in net position

Net Position:

Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

136,741,347 l4t,l19,435 183,462,553 (43,830,56r) 139,631,992 (1,487,443)

Original

41,565,787

65,123,144

5,023,764

1,320,000

23,534,650

2,548,074

7,661,926

(r0,03s,998)

41,738,755

67,740,993

5,023,765

1,320,000

24,853,634

2,539,631

7,661,926

(9,759,269_)

57,733,099

71,893,404

9,878, I 89

5,2t3,539

32,275,380

6,951,227

6,266,933

(7,520,33 I )

804,420

(1,726)

(3 l,s8l)

(t5,724,34t)

(3,74s,834)

(6,750,582)

(3,740,472)

(7,67s,466)

(4,s07,s44)

I,341,980

(2,255,463)

(804,420)

3 1,58 I

42,008,758

68,147,570

3,127,607

1,473,067

24,599,914

2,443,683

7,608,913

(9,775,794)

(1,726)

270,003

406,577

(1,896, r 58)

r 53,067

(2s3,720)

(e5,e48)

(s3,01 3)

( r 6,s2s)

(t,726\

1,740,011

( r,740,01 I ) 3,342,498

3,265,061

3,364,9t2

2,100,844

22,414

t,164,2t7 (47,907,307) 51,172,368

- 3,364,912

132,182,034 (132,r82,034)

$ - $ 4,506,715 84,274,727 S (77,644,754) $ 6,629,973 $ 2,123,258

1,409,034,602

s 1,493,309,329



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
General Operations

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Budeeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Amounts

Operating revenues:

Advertising

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy costs

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

15,323,177

9,998,155

4,028,379

21,725

2l1,318
379,088

Q3,0s4,249_)

16,025,922

I 1,039,888

4,248,534

19,415

218,822

358,112
(24,204,064)

900,000 s 972,190 $ - s 972,190 $ 72,190

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

16,439,585 (413,663)

10,180,479 g5g,40g

3,570,756 677,779
13,454 5,961

208,760 10,062

341,442 16,670

(24,095,842) (108,222)

2,998,826 3,107,704 3,3n,774 (72,9t7\ 3,238,857 l3l,l53

3,538,826 4,007,704 4,283,964 (72,9t7\ 4,2n,047 203,343

t6,990,r45 (550,560)

10,180,479

109,181,503 (105,610,747)

13,454

208,760

460,392 (l I 8,950)

Q4,09s,842)
1,337,228 (t,337,228\

6,907,593 7,706,629 n4,276,n9 (107,617,485) 6,658,634 1,047,995

(3,368,767) (3,698,925) (109,992,155) 107,s44,568 (2,447,587) t,251,338



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
General Operations

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the year ended June 30,2013

Budseted Amounts Actual Amounts
Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Arnounts

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

Public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Federal revenue

Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds

State Transit Assistance (STA) trnds

State revenue - other

TransNet fitnds

Other local subsidies

Investment eamings

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal ofassets

Total public support and nonoperating reveDues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers and contributed capital

Transfers

Reserve revenue

Contributed capital, net

Changes in net position

Net Position:

Beginning ofyear

End ofyeæ

5,168,767 10,005,640 189,822,060 (r80,040,r54) 9,78r,906 (223,734)

1,800,000 6,306,715 79.829,905 (72.495.586) 7,334,319 t,027,604

Original

4,028,379

1,800,000

7,661,926

(8,32r,538)

l 10,000

8,755,252

1,800,000

7,66t,926

(8,32 1,s38)

57,733,099

71,893,404

9,878, r 89

5,213,539

37,775,380

6,951,227

6,266,933

(s,973,879)

84,168

(s7,sts,739)

(61,708,429)

(9,878, l 89)

(5,213,539)

(37,775,380)

(6,9s1,227)

I,34 1,980

(2,255,463)

(84,168)

217J60

10, l 84,975

7,60S,91;

(8,229,342)

107,360

1,429,723

( r,800,000)

(53,0 l 3)

92,196

(r,soo,oo;) tr,eoo,oool

(37,896,097) 37,896,097

- (1,800,000) (1,800,000)

(r50,690,868) r50,690,868

$ 4,506,715 (108,757,060) $ r 14,291,379 $ 5,534,319 $ r,027,604

257,288,902

s 148,s3r,842



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Taxicab Administration

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30r 2013

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts

Original Final

Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Amounts

$ 865,000 $ 865,000 $ 883,985

865,000 865,000 883,985

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

$ 883,985 $ 18,985

883,98s 18,985

Operating revenues:

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personnel costs

Outside services

Materials and supplies

Energy costs

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Reserve revenue

Changes in net position

Net Position:
Beginning ofyeæ

End ofyear

610,285

106,600

5,000

10,100

209,006

595,285

191,600

26,700

8,000

213,415

594,429

157,422

21,n3
7,484

2n,357-

856

34,178

5,587

516

2,058

594,429

157,422

2l,ll3
7,484

211,357

7,1 l8 (7,1 l8l

940,991 1,035,000 998,923 (7,118) 991,805 43,195

(7s,991) (170,000) (l 14,938)

75,991 170,000

$ $ 

- 

(114,938)

7,1 l8 (107,820) 62, I 80

r07.820 107,820 (62,180)

$ 114.938 $ $ -

401,025

$ 286.087



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30,2013

Budeeted Amounts Actual Amounts

Original

Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

AmountsFinal

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

Operating revenues:

Miscellaneous

Total operating revetrues

Operating expenses:

Penonnel costs

Outside services

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Public support and nonoperating revenues:

Gain (loss) on disposal of æsets

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Reserve revenue

Changes in net position

Net Position:

Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

t40,000 $ r65,000 $ 159,583 $ $ 159,583 $ (5,417)

t40,000 165,000

I l,198

20,000

22,300

t:

r 59.583 159,583 (s,4t7)

{
9l, t 98

20,000

22300

4,000

t04,164

92,950

r 8,892

669

17,080 (17,080)

104,tó4

92,950

r 8,892

669

(12,966)

(72,9s0)

3,408

3,33 I

123,998 137,498 233,75s (17,080) 216,67s (79,177)

16,002 27,502 (74,172\ 17,080 (57,092) (84,594)

642,214 (642,214)

642,214 (642,214)

(16,002) (27,s02) 57,092 57,092

$-$-s68,042 $ (568,042) $ $

18,431,623

$ 18,999,665

84,594



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Contracted Services

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30,2013

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts

Original

Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Amounts

$ 26,399,537 $ 26,345,409 $ 26,476,421

26,399,s37 26,345,409 26,476,421

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

$ 26,476,42t $ l3l,0t2

26,476,421 l3t,0l2

Operating revenues:

Passenger revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating €xpenses:

Personnel costs

Outside services

Materials and supplies

Energy costs

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

588,839

52,497,588

4,900

8,092,939

15,300

1.729.864

579,38 I
52,673,577

2,639

8,389,654

I 5,300

1,719,531

569,249

52,032,53E

1,981

8,240,259

15,300

1,713, lg0
t2,305,236 (12,305,2361

569,249

52,032,538

I,981

8,240,259

l 5,300

1,713,190

10,132

641,039

658

149,395

5,341

62,929,330 63,379,082 74,877,753 (12,305,236\ 62,572,5t7 806,565

(36,529,793\ (37,033,673\ (48,401,332) t2,305,236 (36,096,0961 937,577



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Contracted Services

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Budeeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

AmountsOriginal

7,309,531

25,732,614

1,320,000

688,000

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

Public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Federal revenue

Transportation Development Act (TDA) fimds

State revenue - other

TransNet fwds
Other local subsidies

Total public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributed capital

Contributed capital, net

Changes in net position

Net Position:

Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

1,480,648 1,472,20s 1,376,257

36,529,793 37,033,673 36,096,096

r,376,257 (9s,948)

36,096,096 (937,s77\

7 ,337,754
25,904,017

l,320,ooo

999,697

5,595,366

26,659,232

1,473,067

992,174

2,455,482 9,050,949

(2,455,482) 24,203,750

- 1,473,067

- 992,t74

713,094
(1,700,267)

153,067

(7,s23)

(12,305,236) 12,305,236

13,232,829 (t3,232,8291

$ - $ - 927,s93 $ (927,593)$ - $

86,955,690

$ 87.883.283



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego Transit Corporation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Budseted Amounts Actual Amounts

Original Final

Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Amounts

$ 28,403,719 $ 28,707,697 $ 28,621,363 $ - $28,62t,363 $ (86,334)

- 900 900lo,oo; lo,ooo 
^,?li

4,877 (s.123)

28,4t3,719 28,717,697 28,627,t40

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

Operating revenues:

Passenger revenue

Charter

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personnel costs

Outside services

Materials and supplies

Energy costs

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

72,712,205

2,269,214

4,750,476

5,208,716

1,798,810

9,937,02T_

76,160,139

1,774,129

4,616,976

5,165,772

1,604,634

10,340,965

74,452,424

1,635,096

4,517,591

5,246,719

1,478,030

10,357,122

554,263

(42,164)

(s0,816)

75,006,697

1,592,922

4,st7,59r
5,246,719

1,427,214

10,351.122

1,153,452

l8l,206
99,38s

(80,947)

177,420

(10,1 57)
t4,121,96t (14,121,961)

96,676,449 99,662,614 111,802,933 (13,660,678ì 98,142,255 1,520,359

(68,262,730\ (70,944,917) (83,175,793) 13,660,678 (69,515,1l5) t,429,802



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego Transit Corporation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts

Final

Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Amounts

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

Public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Federal revenue

Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds

State Transit Assistance (STA) funds

TrawNet funds

Other local subsidies

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal ofassets

Other expenses

Amortization of bond issuance costs

Total public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributed capital

Reserve revenue

Contributed capital, net

Changes in net position

Net Position:

Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

68,262,130 65,9M,917 69,ss2,723 (5,037,608) 64,515,r rs (1,429,802)

(s,000,000) (13,623,070\

Original

20,820,293

27,0t9,057

3,223,764

17,846,650

t,067,426

(1,714,460\

18,29 r,00 r

25,946,519

3,223,765

l 8,853,937

1,067,426

(t,437,731_)

20,265,957

28,826,153

3,127,607

18,607,740

278,000

(1,s46,452)

21,025

(1,726)

(3 l,s8r)

(7,149,251)

t,3t7,661_

789,426

tzt,ozs_¡

3 I,581

I 3,1 16,706

30,143,8 14

3,121,607

18,607,7()

r,067,426

(1,546,45L_)

(1,726)

(5,t74,295)

4,197,295

(96, l 58)

(246,197)

(r08,721)

(t,726)

5,000,000

8,623,070

5,000,000

(40,476,157)

(5,000,000)

5,000,000

$ -$ -

40,476,t57

26,853,087 $ (26,853,087)$ - S -

nt,675,947

$ 138,529,034



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego Trolley Incorporated

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Actuals per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

Amounts

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

Operating revenues:

Passenger revenue

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personnel costs

Outside services

Mate¡ials and supplies

Energy costs

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

$ 35,878,421 S 36,294,351 $ 35,553,838

666,980 575,000 574,282

$ 35,553,838 $ (740,513)

s74,282 (718)

36,545,401 36,869,351 36,128,120 - _ 36,t28,120 (741,231)

Original

31,646,644

3,964,439

3,6oo,l3g

7,7 43,347

1,820,866

14,650,024

3r,009,942

3,315,047

3,9r4,698

8,969,175

929,708

78,312,146

64,999,619

l 3 1.350.335

(29,227_)

6n,920
(2,662,070)

(64,999,619\

31,571,374

3,499,026

3,779,419

9,697,946

1,923,1r7

1s.644.67s

30,980,71 5

3,315,047

3,914,698
g,g6g, I 75

1,541,628

I 5,650,076

590,659

183,979

(l 36,280)

(181,229)

281,489

(5,401)

63,325,458 6s,004.5s6 (67,078,996) 64,27t,339 733.217

(26,780,057) (28,135,205) (95,222,215\ 67,078,996 (28,143,219\ (8,014)



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

schedure orRevenue,, E*p"o,"ji"oläf;ffi::T:t i"Ë;:tffi11Budget and Actuar (continued)
X'or the year ended June 30, 2013

Budeeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Actuâls per

Statement of
Revenues,

Expenses, and

Changes in Net

Position

AmountsOriginal

13,436,963

8,343,094

5,000,000

I 6,000,000

7,135,205

5,000,000

22,425,986

3,353,933

25,470

5,000,000

(64,365,913)

229,163,916

Budget Basis Actuals on Variance with
Adjustments Budget Basis Final Budget

(1,802,142) 20,623,944 4,623,944

Public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Federal revenue

Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds

State revenue - other

TransNet funds

Gain (loss) on disposal ofassets

Total public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributed capital

Contributed capital, net

Changes in net position

Net Position:
Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

(834,458) 2,519,375

(25,470)
(4,615,830)

- 51,013 (5r,0131

26,780,057 28,t35,205 30,856,302

- 5,000,000

(2,713,083) 28,143,219 E,014

64,365,913

(229,t63,916]'

$ - $ - 164,798,003 $(164,798,003) $ - $ -

934,281,415

$ 1.099.079,418
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Statistical Section

(Unaudited)

Included in this section of the Metropolitan Transit System comprehensive annual financial report is detailed information
to assist in analysis and understanding of the information presented in the financial statements, notes and required

supplementary information.

Contents

Financial trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how MTS's financial position has changed over

time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain detailed information about the fare structures and revenue generated from transit operations
provided by MTS.

Debt Capacity
This schedule presents information to help the reader assess the affordability of MTS's cunent levels of outstanding debt

and MTS's ability to issue debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules provide service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in MTS's
financial report relates to the services MTS provides.

Operating Information
These schedules provide service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in MTS's
financial report relates to the services MTS provides.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Net Position by Component (in 000's)

Last Nine Fiscal Yearc

20t3 2012 20t1 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

$ 1n,960 $ 420,668

35,868 l85,ll5

147,828 605,783

Governmental activities:
Net investment in capital assets

Un¡estricted

Total government activities net position

Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government:

Net investment in capital assets

ô\ Reshictedæ 
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

-$ -$

t,296,217 1,172,8t6 t,073,562 1,078,178 1,075,105 1,079,967 1,097,676 1,134,243 695,486
7.255 78.378 7,007 2,548 2,700

189,837 157,841 173,128 177,158 172,344 185,610 163,244 (33,761) (35,563)

1,493,309 1,409,035 1,253,697 t,257,884 1,250,149 1,265,577 t,260,920 1,100,482 659,923

1,296,217 1,172,816 1,073,562 1,079,179 1,075,105 1,079,967 1,097,676 1,246,203 1,116,154

7,255 78,378 7,007 2,549 2,700
lE9,E37 157,841 173,128 t77,t58 172,344 185,610 163,244 2,107 t49,552

$1.493,309 $1.409,035 $1.253.697 $r.257.884 $1,250,149 5r.265.577 $1,260.920 $1.248.310 $1.265.706

-$

Source: Audited financial statements

In FY 2013, MTS implemented GASB Statement 63. In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement 63, some line descriptions have been modified. There were no
reclassifications resulting from the implementation of GASB Statement 63.

In FY 201l, MTS elected to present additional information regarding restricted net assets and accordingly provides this information.

In FY 2007, MTS determined that all of its activities were truly business-type activities and presented all funds as Enterprise funds in 2007 and all subsequent years.

In FY 2006, MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year of activity to a maximum of ten years as of 2014.



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Changes in Net Position (in 000's)

Last Nine Fiscal Years

Operating revenues:

Passenger revenue

Advertising

Cha¡ter

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy costs

Risk management

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

2013 2012 2010

$ 90,652 $ 88,094 g 84,764 $ 84,167 $ 85,192 $ 75,939 $ 68,635

784 621 783 925 I,l l9 1,00 t

$ 67,580 $ 63,803

839 1,340

I 186 129 128 69 63 4s 31 895

4,934 4,445 4,688 4,264 4,874 3,67t 3,703 1,734 l8

96,559 93,509 90,202 89,342 91,060 80,792 73,384 70,184 66,056

123,720 112,537 104,329 109,512 101,913 102,847 91,206 90,490 91,486

67,414 66,050

3,571 3,721

64,037 63,57 4 65,140 64,940 62,630 57,709 70,260

6,758 6,245
8,469 7,977 7,190 7,590 8,158 8,756

22,572 22,689 21,932 22,892 25,283 27,2n 22,767 24,305 14,140

2,902 4,030 3,924 4,859 4,07 4 3,898 5,615 5,078 5,212
6,493 5,116 4,899 3,s71 2,052 1,975 944 2,336 2,564

92,788 84,811 81,041 98,238 75,499 85,543 74,473 66,799 49,139

327,929 306,931 291,893 313,084 284,155 297,857 270,339 261,633 247,802

(231,370\ (213,422]' (201,6911 (223,742\ (193,095) (2t7,06s) (196,9s5) (191,449) (181,746)

4,053 3,758

7,678 6,680

3,004 3,853 5,438

7,266



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Changes in Net Position (in 000's) (Continued)

Last Nine Fiscal Years

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 20052006
Public support and nonoperating revenues

(expenses):

Grants and contributions

Investment earnings

Indirect cost recovery

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal ofassets

Other expenses

Amortization of bond issuance costs

Total public support and nonoperating
revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributed capital

è Contributed capital, net

Changes in net position

I 83,945

6,267

(7,s20)

804

(2)

325,658

7,622

(8,014)

(620)
(4)

200,879

13,394

(10,666)

88

(t42)

184,332

13,349

(14,230)

(1,260)

(3 ss)

170,850 224,506 t76,979

10,5847,695 9,708

(s,420; (tz,7oz; (u.rs3;
712 (6e) 294

t55,746 209,483

7,095 n,707
1,685 2,927

(1 1,499) (10,313)

(1,800) 291

(188) (185)(28e) (642\
(31) (l) (l3s) (78fl (631 (323)

183,463 324,641 170,698 220J68 175,999 203,230 181,836 151,039 213,810

(47,907) n1,219 (30,993) (3,374) (17,096) (13,835) (ls,1l9) (40,410) 32,064

132,182 44,118 26,806 ll,ll0 1,668 t8,492 27,729 23,013 30,008

s 84.27s $155,337 $ (4.187)S 7.736 $ (1s.428)$ 4,6s7 $ 12.610 $ (17,397)$ 62,072

(4)

Source: Audited financial statements.

In FY20l3, MTS implemented GASB Statement 63. In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement 63, some line descriptions have been modified. There were no
reclassifications resulting from the implementation of GASB Statement 63.

In FY2006, MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year of activity to a maximum of ten years as of 2014.

In FY2007, MTS determined that all of its activities were truly business-type activities and presented all funds as Enterprise funds in 2007 and all subsequent years.
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Fiscal Year

Ended

San Diego Transit

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

201 l

20t2

2013

San Diego Trolley

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

201 I

2012

2013

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Operating Revenue by Source (in 000's)

Last Nine Fiscal Years

Federal

Passenger Fares Operating Funds

21,383

22,264

22,298

23,680

27,882

26,708

26,056

27,498

28,62t

State Operating Local Operating

Funds Funds Interest

14,200

15,000

15,000

13,934

17,177

18,267

19,894

20,709

20,266

10,651

12,788

15,325

13,881

16,616

16,449

14,912

14,989

22,426

25,862

23,415

29,360

21,863

24,496

16,249

29,435

20,497

3 1,954

25,855

27,934

27,402

31,120

33,454

33,050

34,673

35,216

35,554

MTS - Contract Services

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

201 I

20t2

20t3

7,278

13,383

9,901

10,507

14,416

21,456

18,307

17,549

I 8,886

Other

68$
t29

1,741

7,415

6,279

4,479

787

5,637

5,497

7,208

3,379

t6,564 711

17,382

18,935 200

21,138 92t

23,857 4,681

24,410 10,420

24,036 4,641

25,380 7,t55

26,476 5,595

Source: Audited Financial Statements.

In FY2006 MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year of activity
to a maximum of ten years as of 2014.

800

(s26)

1,1 l5

868

271

3l

166

214

JJ

8,279

ó,000

6,000

6,000

7,043

5,000

5,000

5,492

5,000

31,703

137

36,300

38,020

29,581

21,524

28,857

26,635

28,132

880

695

469

664

997

462

t,220

361

625

2,136

455

1,778

1,285

1,456

1,636

2,002

1,984

2,368

(345)

(e7 4)

75

64

47

72



Bus Cash Fares 2013 2012 20ll 2010 2009 2008 2001

One-wayfare, local routes $ 2.25 $ 2.25 S 2.25 $ 2,25 S 2'25 $ 2'00 $ 1.75

Senior/disabled, local routes LlO t.l0 l.l0 l.l0 I'10 0.75 0.75

Urban - 2.25 2.25

Express 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2'50 2.50'4.00

Senior/disabled Express 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 0.75 0.75

Premium 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

Senior/disabled Premium 2.50 2.50 2.50 250 2.50 0.75 0.75

Rural bus 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00

Senior/disabled Rural bus 2.50-5.00 2.50-5.00 2.50-5.00 2.50-5.00 2.50-5.00

Sonento Valley Coaster Connection 1.00

Senior/disabled CoasterConnection 0.50

Shuttles 1.00 1.00

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Fare Structure

Last Seven Fiscal Years

Trolley Cash Fares

One-way fare, all stations 250
Senior/disabled one-way fare all stations 1.25

Downtown

Senior/disabled Downtown

I station-2O+ stations

Bus and Trolley Day Passes

Regional day pass 5.00

Region plus day pass 12.00

Bus and Trolley Monthly Passes

Regional monthly pass 72.00

Senior/disabled Regional 18.00

Youth Regional 36.00

Half-month/14-Day 43.00

Premium monthly pass 100.00

Senior/disabled Premium 25.00

Youth Premium 50.00

Half-month/14-Day 60.00

Local/Urban BusÆxpress/Trolley

Express Bus (multi-zones)

Source: SANDAG Comprehensive Fare Ordinance, amendments effective July l, 2009.

MTS has continued to convert all passengers to Compass Cards issued at a cost of $2.00, As of November 2012, MTS requires day

and monthly passes to be on Compass Cards. Passengers who purchase a day pass without a compass card on the bus are charged a

$2.00 fee.

In FY2007 MTS elected to present fare structure statistical data prospectively from 2007 forward, and will present one additional
year ofactivity to a maximum often years as of2016. There were no changes to the fare structure for several years prior to 2008.

2.50

1.25

250
125

5.00

12.00

72.00

18.00

36.00

43.00

r00.00

25.00

50.00

'i*

5.00

14.00

72.00

r8.00

36.00

43.00

100.00

25.00

50.00

60.00

2.50

t:-"

s.00

14.00

72.00

18.00

36.00

43.00

100.00

25.00

50.00

'i*

2.50

t.25

t.25

o:uo

r.oo I .oo

1.25 1.25

r.50-3.00 t.50-3.00

68.00

17.00

34.00

41.00

90.00

22.50

45.00

t*.'

64.00

16.00 14.50

"t* ".*

. rrìo
- 64.00-84.00
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
F arebox Recovery Percentages

Last Nine Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

Ended

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

20t0

20n

20t2

2013

San Diego San Diego MTS-Contracl

Transit Trolley Services

26.67

30.38

30.44

29.59

34.31

28.46

3t.22

30.50

29.01

Source: Audited financial statements; calculated as passenger revenue divided by operating expenses (less depreciation and OPEB),
interest expense, and miscellaneous expenses.

In FY2006 MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 fonryard, and will present one additional year of activity to
a maximum of ten years as of 2014.

54.25

50.78

48.97

55.62

57.15

54.26

57.41

55.63

53.98

31.97

31.96

33.0s

34.40

40.00

42.06

40.37

41.50

42.31
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Eight Fiscal Years

Yeæ ended Capital Lease-

June 30 Tower

Capital Lease -

Equipment

1990 LRV

Sale/Leaseback

1995 LRV
Lease/Leaseback

Certificates of
Participation

2002

Certificates of
Participation

2003

Pension

Obligation

Bonds

Percentage of
Personal

Income

Debt per

Capita

87

78

67

65

60

54

5l

45

2006 $

2007

2008

2009

20r0

20n

20t2

2013

8,516,304 $ 319,719 $ 13,174,798 $ 124,775,518 $ 7,430,000 $26,065,000

8,075,925 255,1t3 3,823,388 t23,699,432 3,770,000 19,155,000

7,6t7 ,599 187 ,737 - 122,540,596

7,t4r,326 lt7,471 - 12r,292,644

6,647,108 44,190 - n9,948,726

76,075,000

74,620,000

73, I 20,000

7 1,565,000

6 1,1 5o,ooo

47,265,000

40,5 l 0,000

25,880,000

256,356,339

233,398,858

203,465,932

200,t16,441

187,790,024

171,084,146

162,219,767

145,334,304

0.20%

0.17%

0.t4%

0.t4%

0.t3%

0.1%

0.10%

0.08%

\¡
o\ 5,3r7,686

4,766,867

4,l E9,818

- I18,501,460

- n6,942,900

- n5,264,486

Details regarding MTS' outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
¡ MTS retired three financial obligations in FY 2008
o MTS made a $8.8 million principal payment on the va¡iable rate Pension Obligation Bonds and refunded the remaining $30 million balance in FY 2010
¡ MTS made a $12.2 million principal payment on the variable rate Pension Obligation Bonds in FY20l I
o MTS retired the capital equipment lease and refunded the Tower capital lease in FY20l I
o MTS made a $5 million principal payment on the va¡iable rate Pension Obligation Bonds in FY20l2
e MTS retired the va¡iable rate Pension Obligation Bonds in FY20l3

ln FY20l2, MTS changed the presentation of income statistics and has restated this schedule with data for all of San Diego County rather than the MTS service a¡ea. In addition,
MTS presents this schedule from 2006 through the current year and will present one additional year of activity to a maximum of ten years as of 20 I 5. MTS has made these
changes because comparable data for San Diego County Data is available from 2006 forward, and because it has proven difücult to obtain reliable data for the MTS service area
from published sources.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Regional Population and Personal Income Statistics

Last Eight Fiscal Years

County ofSan County ofSan San Diego

County ofSan Diego Personal Diego Per County Average

Diego Income Capita Personal Unemployment

Population (l) (thousands) (l) Income (l) Rate (2)

2,956,077 $ 129,600,000 $ 47,055 4.t0%2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

201 I

20t2

2013

Source:
(l) Califomia Department of Transportation - Actuals 2006-2010, Estimates 20ll-2013
(2) Califomia Employment Development Department, June 2013

ln FY20l2, MTS changed the presentation of income statistics and has restated this schedule with data for all of San Diego County
rather than the MTS service area. In addition, MTS presents this schedule from 2006 through the current year and will present one
additional year of activity to a maximum of ten years as of 2015. MTS has made these changes because comparable data for San
Diego County Data is available from 2006 forward, and because it has proven difficult to obtain reliable data for the MTS service area

from published sources.

2,gg6,og5

3,03 1,360

3,067,544

3,1 04,1 60

3,140,025

3,172,600

3,206,992

I 36,200,000

142,000,000

I 39,600,000

142,700,000

150,200,000

160,200,000

l7l,200,000

47,405

47,019

46,047

45,974

46,767

48,265

49,778

4.80o/o

4.80o/o

10.20%

10,50%

t0.40%

9.30%

7.40%
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Full-Time and Part-Time Employees by Function

Last Nine Fiscal Years

Full-time and Part-time Emnlovees at June 30

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

201 I

2012

2013

San Diego San Diego

MTS Transit Trolley Total

73 927 528 1,528

90 880 539 1,509

l2t 866 527 1,514

Source: MTS payroll records.

In FY2006 MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year of activity to
a maximum of ten years as of 2014.

t17

ll4

ll0

ll6

122

136

844

824

782

758

761

786

533

530

528

543

568

599

1,494

1,468

1,420

1,417

I,451

1,521
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Ten Largest Employers in San Diego County

Company Name

U.S. Department of Defense

Federal Government

State of Califomia

University of Califomia, San Diego

County of San Diego

San Diego Unified School District

Sharp Healthcare

Scripps Health

Qualcomm Inc.

City of San Diego

Source:
(l) The Daily Transcript - 2013 Data updated June28,2013
(2) Employment Development Department, State of California

Note: County of San Diego employment information is presented. Employer information is not cunently available for the area served
by the Metropolitan Transit System within San Diego County. MTS presents only current employment data for the county of San

Diego.

Number of
Employees (l)

136,664

46,100

44,700

26,000

16,01I

14,438

14,390

13,000

11,77 5

10,296

Percent of
1,492,300

County Total (2)

9.160/o

3.090/o

3.00%

1.7 4o/o

1.070/o

0.94o/o

0.960/

0.87o/o

0.79%
0.69%

80



OPERATING INFORMATION

8l



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Operating Indicators by Function

Last Nine Fiscal Years

2013 2012 20ll 2010 20052008 2007 2006

Operating Cost (in 000's)

San Diego Transit

San Diego Trolley

MTS-Contract Services

X'arebox Revenue (in 000's)

San Diego Transit

San Diego Trolley

MTS-Contract Services

Total Passengers (in 000's)

San Diego Transit

San Diego Trolley

MTS-Contract Services

Revenue Miles (in 000's)

San Diego Transit

San Diego Trolley

MTS-Contract Services

Subsidy / Total Passenger

San Diego Transit

San Diego Trolley

MTS-Contract Services

$ 98,666 $ 90,153

65,859 63,309

62,573 61,154

g 73,257 $

55,952

57,287

g 22,298 $

27,402

18,93 5

26,076

35,114

21,143

9,622

7,940

12,454

1.95

0.81

I .81

73,284 $ 80,187

55,01 5 47 ,662

54,387 5l,g 15

22,264 $ 21,393

27,934 25,855

t7,382 16,564

24,890 24,427

33,830 29,334

18,907 18.449

9,958

8,1 80

12,242

2.05

0.80

1.96

10,087

7,060

12,70r

27,498

35,216

25,380

28,802

32,655

23,780

8,221

7,544

n,214

2.t8

0.86

1.50

26,056

34,673

24,036

)1 )\'.)

31,613

22,664

8,1 78

7,5r9

ll,196

2.t1

0.81

1.57

26,708

33,050

24,4r0

26,921

30,469

2l,ggg

8,624

7,743

I1,450

2.50

0.92

1.53

$ 81,271

59,537

59,639

27,882

33,454

23,857

29,762

36,928

21,645

9,221

7,895

12,179

1.79

0.68

1.66

$ 80,031

55,949

61,451

$ 23,680

31,120

21,l3g

28,094

37,621

21,460

9,522

9,003

12,501

2.01

0.66

1.88

$ 83,457

60,395

59,536

$ 93,931

60,913

58,037

æ
¡,J

28,621

35,554

26,476

28,927

29,699

23,479

8,557

7,758

11,607

2.42

1.02

L54

2.41

0.74

l.9l

Source: NTD Report, and audited financial statements.

In FY2006 MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year to a maximum of ten years as of 2014.



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Service Performance l)ata

Last Nine Fiscal Years

Service Provided 2013 2012 2011 2010 200520082009
San Diego Transit

Vehicle Revenue Miles (in 000's)

Vehicle Revenue Hours (in 000's)

Passengers (in 000's)

Passenger Miles (in 000's)

Number of Vehicles

San Diego Trolley

Vehicle Revenue Miles (in 000's)

Vehicle Revenue Hours (in 000's)

Passenger Ca¡ Hours (in 000's)

Passengers (in 000's)

Passenger Miles (in 000's)

æ Number ofVehicles

MTS-Contract Services

Vehicle Revenue Miles (in 000's)

Vehicle Revenue Hours (in 000's)

Passengers (in 000's)

Passenger Miles (in 000's)

Number ofVehicles

Total

Passengers (in 000's)

Passenger Miles (in000's)

8,557

787

28,927

t08,222

260

7,758

472

476

29,699

173,151

l7E

n,607
961

23,479

80,434

427

82,105

36 1,807

8,221

t)t
28,802

106,804

236

7,544

428

433

32,655

194,822

l5l

n,214
933

23,780

79,789

404

8,178

754

27,252

100,500

236

7,519

423

429

3 1,61 3

193,063

128

n,196
927

22,664

82,125

407

8,624

789

26,921

98,163

238

7,743

442

448

30,469

186,509

134

I 1,450

946

21.988

79,237

369

9,221

843

29,762

l 07,408

247

7,895

410

4t6
36,928

220,639

133

12,179

986

21,645

80,104

388

9,522

870

28,094

100,256

267

8,003

439

44s

37,62t
206,924

134

12,501

1,019

2r,460
77,173

358

9,622

853

26,076

98,203

267

7,940

432

439

35,1 l4
207,727

134

t2,454
996

21,143

78,304

348

9,958

840

24,890

93,580

274

8,1 80

469

480

33,83 0

208,875

134

12,242

928

I 8,907

73,343

337

10,090

830

24,425

93,746

280

7,060

368

379

29,334

187,988

123

12,701

946

r8,449

69,958

351

85,237 8t,529 79,378 88,335 87,175 82,333 77,627 72,208

381,414 375,688 363,909 408,151 384,353 384,234 375,798 351,692

Source: NTD Report and MTS internal capital asset system

In FY2006 MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forwa¡d, and will present one additional year of activity to a maximum of ten years as of 2014.



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Nine Fiscal Years

2013 20t2 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

General Operations

Buildings and structures

Nonrevenue vehicles

San Diego Transit

Land þarcels)
B uildings and structures

Buses

Non¡evenue vehicles

San Diego Trolley
Trolley stations

Track miles

f Light rail vehicles (total inventory)

Non¡evenue vehicles

MTS - Contacted Services

Land þarcels)
Buildings and structures

Buses

Non¡evenue vehicles

Ta¡ricab Administration

Buildings and structures

Non¡evenue vehicles

I
7

2

2

247

39

54

54

133

68

I
J

388

7

I
l0

2

2

274

45

54

54

t34
58

I
l2

I
l0

2

2

280

49

2

2

260

l4

I

I
35t

2

2

4

393

8

2

2

236

l9

54

54

l5l
3l

2

2

236

22

54

54

128

43

2

2

267

47

54

54

134

69

I
I

348

4

I
2

54

54

134

72

I
J

358

9

I
J

I
J

2

2

238

32

54

54

134

5l

I
3

369

7

2

2

267

53

54

54

178

l5

50

49

t23
7E

I
I

357

2

2

4

427

8

I
J

407

l0

I
J

1

2

I
4

I
J

Source: MTS intemal capital asset system.

In FY2006, MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year of activity to a ma¡<imum of ten years as of 2014.



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Ridership

Last Fiscal Nine Years

2013 2012 20ll 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Ridership (in 000's)

San Diego Transit 2E,927 28,802 27,252 26,921 29,762 28,094 26,076 24,890 24,427
%Change 0.43% 5.690/o 1.23% -9.55o/o 5.94% 7.74% 4.77o/o 1.90o/o

SanDiego Trolley 29,699 32,655 31,613 30,469 36,928 37,621 35,114 33,830 29,334
%Chlange -9.05% 3.30% 3.75% -17.49% -1.84% 7.14o/o 3.80% 15.32o/o

MTS - Conhact Services 23,479 23,780 22,664 21,988 21,645 21,460 21,143 18,907 18,449
% Change -1.27% 4.92% 3.07o/o 1.58% 0.860/o 1.50% ll.83o/o 2.49%

Source: NTD report.

In FY2006, MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forwa¡d, and will present one additional year of activþ to a mar<imum of ten years as of 2014.
æ



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Operating Subsidy

Last Nine Fiscal Years

2013 2012 20lt 2010 20052006200720082009

Average Fare per Rider

San Diego Transit

San Diego Trolley
MTS - Confact Services

Operating Expense per Rider

San Diego Transit

San Diego Trolley
MTS - Contact Services

Subsidy per Rider

San Diego Transit

San Diego Trolley

E MTS - Contact Services

0.99

1.20

Ll3

0.95

L08
1.07

3.13

t.94
2.57

2.tE

0.86

1.50

0.96

l.l0
1.06

2.n
0.81

1.57

0.99

1.08

l.ll

2.50

0.92

1.53

0.94

0.91

1.10

2.73

1.59

2.76

r.79

0.68

1.66

0.84

0.83

0.98

2.85

1.49

2.86

2.01

0.66

1.88

3.06

l.9l
2.63

3.49

2.00

2.64

0.88

0.88

0.90

3.20

1.62

2.81

0.90

0.83

0.92

2.74

1.63

2.88

0.86

0.78

0.90

2.81

L59

2.71

3.41

2.22

2.6'l

2.42

1.02

t.54

1.95

0.81

l.8 t

2.05

0.80

1.96

2.41

0.74

l.9l

Source: NTD report and Audited Financial Statements.

In FY2006, MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forwa¡d, and will present one additional year of activity to a maximum of ten years as of 2014.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

I ndeo en dent Audito rs' Rep o rt

To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

San Diego, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

(MTS), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related

statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the

related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 17,2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered MTS' internal control over

financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances

for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of MTS' intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness of MTS' intemal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealcness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's frnancial statements

will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant de/ìciency is a defrciency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough

to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the frrst paragraph of this section

and was not designed to identif, all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,

significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identifo any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been

identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether MTS' financial statements are free from material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and

grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an

objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no

instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Stqndards.

6265 Greenwich Drive
Suite 220

San Diego, California 92122

Phone: (858) 242-5100
Fa* (858) 242-5tso

www.pm-llp.com



To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

San Diego, California
Page2

Purpose of this Report

The purpose ofthis report is solely to describe the scope ofourtesting ofinternal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

ñ¿ I /l/c-6ø41 Lt-P

San Diego, California
October 17,2013
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Review of
2013
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Kenneth H. Pun, CPA, CGMA
Engagement Partner

Prolcs¡lonal Expcrl.ncc
Kenneth H. Pun is the Foundlng Parlner and the Dlrector of the Assurancê Seryices of
Pun & Mcceady LLP, Prior lo foundlng h¡s own practlc€, Mr Pun was emPloyed by
Caporlccl & Larson, a speclalty CPA firm recognlzsd as one of Calilornla's foremost
€xp€rls ln gov€mmental and nollorproflt account¡ng, audltlng, and advisory sorulce,

s¡nca 2001 and was promoled as a partner s¡nce 2008 He has Performed numeroug
audils for cities, æunt¡es, kansportatlon ag€nc¡es, community @ll€ge d¡sklcts, other
special dlslricls, and non-proflt healthcare ent¡t¡es of various slzes.

gy leveraging more than 15 years ol public accounling experlence wlth a hlgh l€vel of
expert¡s€, Mr. Pun is olten engaged by cllents as a result of premler level of serylco ho
prov¡des, h¡s commitment, and hls innovat¡ve melhods of increaslng operational

efflclencles and reducing æsts. Mr. Pun ls a trusted advisor and a l€ader ol acæuntlng
sEryices to govemmgnlal ånd not-lor-proflt organìzalions,

ln Eddit¡on to work¡ng with cllents, Mr. Pun provides the audlt teams w¡lh direcllon and

technlcal guldancE to ensure adherenca to the Flm s quality conlrols and aslsts w¡th the
dgvelopment of lhe Assurance Seryiceg practico.

A recogn¡zed industry leader, Mr, Pun speaks on topics relatod to audils and quallty

control and ghares h¡s expertise with cllenls through annual êducatlonal seminars.

Eduoatlon
r BS Degree ìn Accounting from tho univ6rsity of California, R¡verside

Protcælonql & clvlc Afllllâtlong

A No.45

Member, American lnslitule ol Cartlfled Publlc Accounlants (AICPA)

Member, Callfornla Society of Certìfied Publ¡c Accountanls (CalCPA)

Member, CaICPA GovernmentAccounling and Auditlng commìttee

M€mber, Government Finance OfflceÉ Association (GFOA)

Member, California Soclety of Municipal Finance Oficors (cSMFo)

,11114113

Gary M. Caporicci, CPA, CGFM, CFF
Concurring Partner

Prof s..lon¡l Exp.rlonoo
Gâry l\¡l Cspor¡cc¡ has mor€ than 3o yoars ol diversil¡ed business experience, ¡ncluding a
sp€cializal¡on in audit and manag€menl consulting lor govoÍnmont organ¡zatjong. Mr Capor¡cci's
cl¡ents includs publ¡c and private un¡vors¡tios and colleg9g, cìty and county govelnmênts, slat€
agsncieg, jo¡nt pow€r aulhorit¡oe, healthcare ãgoncio8, transportalion agencies and speciel
d¡gtrictg. Known lor h¡9 oxporl¡so ¡n tho areas ot conslruclion and governmenl, Mr Capor¡cci wrote
tho AICPA audit gu¡dss on thôge topiæ, and autho.ed many aud¡l and accounting coursos lor
prolêssional groupe, as well qs aÉdemic inst¡tutions He lrequently spoaks and l€ctur€g at many
protesgionsl organiat¡ong, govornmênlal seminarg 6nd conferenc€s includ¡ng induslry
ass@ial¡ons, other accounting firms and univ€rs¡li€g. ln add¡l¡on. ho aulhors white pâpors for lhe
Cal¡forn¡a Cmmittoê on Munic¡pal Account¡ng, Prior to work¡ng with thê F¡rm, Mr Caporicci
foundÊd his own accounl¡ng pråct¡cs Hs algo spent 11 years with a'B¡g Eighf prolessional
s€ryicos lkm whore he wss an Audit Managêr and ga¡ned br@d êxper¡once in a wide rengo of
¡nduslries such as governm€nt, conslÍuction, manufacturing, mulual funds and ¡nsurancê. Mr
Capor¡cc¡'g earlie¡ expglience ¡ncludos a consultant pogit¡on with a'Big Four' practico ând V¡ce
Presidenl of a nal¡onsl ¡ngurance and finåncial sêryicss company

Educatlon
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PRESENTATION

Management's Responsibilities

r Present the Financial Statements in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

> Adopt sound accounting policies
r Establish and maintain lnternal Controls over Financial

Reporting and Compliance
> Provide evidence supporting to the financial statements and

disclosures
> Fair presentation of Financial Statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Al No. 45 11114113

SAN DIEGO METROPOL¡TAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PRESENTATION

Auditor's Responsibilities

r Assess Audit Risk of lnternal Controls Over Financial
Reporting and Compliance

> Determine compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in the United States of America

> Determine the fairness and accuracy of Financial Statements
presentation

> lssue Audit Opinion on the Financial Statements
> lssue Recommendations to Management, if any

4



SAN DIEGO METROPOL¡TAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PRESENTATION

Approach To The Audit

. P&M's Audit Approach for MTS
. Phase I - Detailed Planning
. Phase ll - Risk Based Review of lnternal

Control Over Systems and Compliance
. Phase lll - Validation of Account

Balances
. Phase lV - Review Financial Statements

and lssue Audit Opinions

Ar No. 45,tl11411s

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Summary Statement of Net Position

June 30,

^ssols
(lurrcnt âssols

Non-cuffcnt assols

I'rqErty and cqùiprunt, ret

'lb(dl rss0ts

Ushlllllcs¡

Currcnt lù¡biliLics

lrngrcrm lirbilitics

'lblal ll¡bilillcs

Nc( I'osilir)nl

Nct lnvostcmnt in (l{p¡lal^ssols

lìcstrictcd

Unrcslrhlcd

'l'ot¡l llahililics und ncf posilir)n
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Summary Statements of Revenues, Expenses

and Ghanges in Net Position
For the years ended June 30,

2013 2012

Rerrnues

Opemt¡ngrevenues$9ó,559,000$93,509,000
Nonoperatingrevenues 191,017,0m 332,6ó1,ü10

Total Revenucs 2A7,576,w 42ß,l7O,0tO

Bæuses

Open¡ingery€nses 3n,929,m 306,931,m0

Nonoperflt¡nge)pensss 7,554,000 8,019,m0

Total Eryenses 335,483,000 314,950,üì0

Chanç in net position befo e

Capilal Cortribution (47,907,(m) lll,2m,Offi

Copltrl Contdbudotr 132,182,m ,l4,118,m0

ChançinNetPosition $ 84,275,000 S155,338,ü10

Al No. 45,rt14t1s

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Summary Statement of Cash Flows

June 30,

2013

Cash flows from Operating

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing

Cash Flows from lnvesting

Chançs in cash and cash equivalents

6



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Schedule of Funding Progress

of Defined Benefits Plans
For the year ended June 30, 2013

^ctuårial 
Valuc of 

^sscts
L¡try 

^gc 
Noml Actuårial 

^ccruod 
I jahilitics

Unfundcd 
^ctuarial ^ccrucd 

Iiahil¡tics

l:undcd Stalus

^ctu 
arial Våluätion Dalo

Al No. 45 11114113

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Schedule of Funding Progress

of Other Post Employment Healthcare Plan
For the year ended June 30, 2013

^ctuarial 
Valuo of Asscts

lhtry 
^gc 

Noml^ctuarial 
^ccrucd 

I jahili(¡os

Untundcd 
^cluôrial ^ccrucd 

U¿hülics

I:undcd status

^cluarial 
Valua(ion Dalc

MTS Tiarolt Trolley

$$$
3,n6JfiJ U,\2ß,t[XJ 9,417,(X¡()

-{-g4gtt i-(ryt ¿J:4ltsf¿
0.lVo 0,Wo l:t,tWo

Junc 30, 20ll Junc -10, Z)l I Junc 30, 2Ol I
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANS¡T SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENTATION

Audit Results

. Unmodified Opinion
. Financial Statements are fairly presented in all

material respects
. Significant accounting policies have been consistently

applied
. Estimates are reasonable
. Disclosures are properly reflected in the financial

statements

Al No. 45 ,111't4113

SAN DIEGO METROPOL¡TAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PRESENTATION

Other Results

. No disagreements with Management

. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in
internal controls were noted

. No accounting issues

I



Update of
GASB Standards

Al No. 45 , 11114113

2013 - Statement 63 - Financial Reporting of
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred lnflows of
Resources, and Net Position
2014 - Statement 65 - ltems Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities
2014 - Statement 67 - Financial Reporting for
Pension Plans
2015 - Statement 68 - Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions

GASB Update

9



GASB STATEMENT NO. 63 -
Financial Reporting of Deferred

Outflows of Reso urces, Deferred lnflows
of Reso urces, and lVef Pos ition

Al No. 45, t1t14t1s

* Now five elements make up a statement of financial
position:
. Assets

' Deferred Outflows of Resources
. Liabilities
. Deferred lnflows of Resources
. Net Position

* New titles:
. Nef Assets Now Net Position
. lnvestment in CapitalAssefs, Net of Related Debt Now

Net lnvestment in CapitalAssets

Highlights

10



GASB STATEMENT NO. 65.
Items Previously Reported as Assefs

and Liabilities

Ar No.45,t1lt4l1s

Highlights

> Deferred Outflow of Resources:
. Grants paid in advance of meeting timing

requirements.
. Deferred amounts from the refunding of debt.
. Costs to acquire rights to future revenues.

t{M
PUN & McGE/\DY

22
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Highlights

> Outflow of Resources:
. Debt issuance costs (other than insurance).
. Initial direct costs incurred by the lessor for operating

leases.
. Acquisition costs for risk pools,

' Loan origination costs.

Al No. 45 11114113

Highlights

> Deferred lnflow of Resources:
. Grant received in advance of meeting timing

requirements.
. Taxes received in advance.
. Deferred amounts from the refunding of debt.
. Proceeds from sales of future revenues.

12



Highlights

> lnflow of Resources:
. Loan origination fees (excluding points)
. Commitment fees (after exercise or expiration)

Al No.45, 111't4113

GASB STATEMENT NO. 67.
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans

13



Highlights
Pension Plans must present two financial statements:
. A Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
. A Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Pension Plan disclosures in the financial statements:
. Total Pension Liability
. The Plan's Fiduciary Net Position
. Net Pension Liability
. The Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the

Total Pension Liability
. Significant Assumptions to Calculate Total Pension

Liability
. Ten Years of Disclosures

Al No. 45 ,11114113

Highlights
Actuarial Valuation
. At least biennially
. Disclose all Major Actuarial Assumptions

PU

14



GASB STATEMENT NO. 68.
Accounting and Financial Reporting

Pensions

Al No. 45 11114113

Accounting-based versus funding-based
The ditference between Total Pension Obligation and
Plan Assets would be reported as a Net Pension
Liability in the financial statements.
Actuarial Requirements:
. Valuation at least biennially
. Within 12 months of fiscal year-end (OK to "roll foruvard"

from date within 30 months)
. All assumptions should conform to Actuarial Standards of

Practice

Highlights

15



(Debit)

r. Employercontributions.

2. Earnings on Plan
lnvestments.

Difference between actual and
projected earnings to be
recognized over a 5-year
period.*

PENSION EXPENSE
T.ACCOUNT

Al No.

(Credit)

45

2. Earnings on Plan
lnvestments.

Difference between actual and
projected earnings to be
recognized over a S-year
period. *

r Report as deferred outflows or inflows of resources

11114113

(Debit)

lnterest on the beginning Total
Pension Liability.

Change in plan terms,
a) Changes for past service

of inactive/retired
employees to be
recognized im mediately.

b) Changes for past service
of active employees to be
recognized over the
average expected
remaining service lives of
the employees. *

PENSION EXPENSE
T-ACCOUNT (Continued)

* Report as deferred outflows or inflows of resources

16



Highlights
> Note Disclosures
> Required Supplementary lnformation

Al No. 45 ,11114113

Summary of
"Pro Forma lllustrations"

Financial Statements

17
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Thank You
For Allowing Pun & McGeady LLP

to provide services to

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Al No. 45 ,11114113
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Purpose of "Pro Forma lllustration" Financial Statements

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
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PURPOSE OF "PRO F'ORMA ILLUSTRATION" FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These "Pro Forma Illustration" financial statements for MTS were prepared to provide aid and guidance on the future

implementation of accounting and financial reporting standards for Pensions.

As you are aware, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has published two new pronouncements on

Pensions as follows:
. GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting þr Pension Plans, which is effective for pension plans in 2014

¡ GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting þr Pensions, which is effective for pension

plan employers in 2015

These "Pro Forma Illustration" financial statements represent the best estimates and interpretations from the latest

actuarial valuations as displayed in the 2013 CAFR of MTS.

ASSUMPTIONS USED TO PREPARE THE "PRO FORMA ILLUSTRATION'' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o Financial Statements were prepared at and for the year ended June 30, 2013.

o These "Pro Forma Illustration" financial statements were prepared from the San Diego Metropolitan Transit

System (MTS) 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). Following GASB No. 68, Accounting

and Financial Reportingþr Pensior¿s, estimates and interpretations were made to adjust the 2013 Financial

Statements to include the new Pension provisions. These adjustments to the Pension Accounts are displayed in

bold font.

o Calculations and details are shown on attached schedules,

o Certain provisions of GASB No. 68 were not included in the "Pro Forma Illustration" Financial Statements as

follows: For example,
- Deferred Outflows and Inflows for the difference in expected investments earnings as compared to actual

investments earnings.

o Financial Statements accounts have been condensed and displayed "in thousands ofdollars (ooo's)"

o Latest Actuarial Valuations were used as follows:

SDTI 2011 CaIPERS

SDTC 2012 SDTC Plan

¡ This "Pro Forma Illustration" Financial Statements is only for pensions, not for Other Post Employment

Benefits (OPEB). (At this time, GASB is preparing an exposure draft for OPEB.)

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

At and for the year ended June 30' 2013



Assets

Current Assets

Non-Cunent Assets

Net Pension Asset

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Contributions Made

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Non-cunent Liabilities

Accrued Interest on Total Pension Liability
Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

San Diego Metropolitian Transit System
Actual and Pro Forma lllustration Financial Statements

Statements of Net Position

Actual

$ 160,016,000

7,544,789,000

2',7,826,000

1,732,631,000

Pro Forma

lllustration

$ 160,016,000

1,544,-189,000

1,704,805,000

62,946,000

176,376,000

239,322,000

17,081,000

See Accompanying Adjustments to Selected Accounts and Balances

62,946,000

176,376,000

I 6,176,000

1,296,217,000

7,255,000

98, I 59.000

189,837,000

$ 1.493,309,000

353,657,000

1,296,217,000

7,255,000

64,758,000

$ 1.368.230,000



San Diego Metropolitian Transit System
Actual and Pro Forma lllustration Financial Statements

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Revenues

Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Operating Expenses

Pension Expense

Total Operating Expenses

Operating (loss)

For the

Public Support

(Loss) before Contributed Capital

Contributed Capital, Net

Change in Net Position

Net Position:

Beginning of year

Prior Period Adjustments

Beginning ofYear, as restated

End ofyear

r ended June 30,2013

Actual

2013

96,559,000

Pro Forma

Illustration

296,218,000 296,218,000

31,71 1,000 75,713,000

$ (231,370,000) s (27 5,372,000)

327,929,000

96,559,000

183,463,000

371 ,93 I ,000

(47,907,000)

132,182,000

84,275,000

183,463,000

(91,909,000)

132,182,000

40,273,000

I,409,035,000

1,409,035,000

$ l,4g3,3o9,ooo

See Accompanying Adjustments to Selected Accounts and Balances

1,409,035,000

(8l,o78,ooo)

1,327 ,957,000

$ I.368,230,000



I. Statement of Net Position

Net Pension Asset

Balance June 30,2013

Write-off
Revised Balance

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Assumptions and Adjustments to Selected Accounts and Balances

At and for the year ended June 30' 2013

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Balance 6/30113

C.ontributions Made

Revised Balance

s 27,826,000

Q7,826,000)
s

Accrued Interest on Total Pension Liabitity

Balance June 30,2013 SDTI

SDTC

MTS Bonowing rate

Accrued Interest on Total Pension Liability

$-
17,081,000

$ 17,081,000

Net Pension Liability

Balance June 30,2013

SDTI

SDTC

Net Pension Liability
Per CAFR

Revised Balance

Unrestricted Net Position

Balance June 30,2013

ADJ -Net Pension Asset
ADJ -Net Pension Liability
ADJ - Interest on Total

Pension Liability

ADJ Defened Outflows

ofResources
Revised Balance

$ 88,127,000

235,401,000

$ 323,528,000

5o/o

$-
$ lo,545,ooo

87,614,000

98,159,000

$ 98,159,000

$ t0,176,000

$ 189,837,000

Q7,826,000)
(98,159,000)

(16,176,000)

17,081,000

$ 64,758,000



II. Statement of Revenues, Expenses, changes in Net Position

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Assumptions and Àd¡ustments to Selected Accounts and Balances

At and for the year ended June 30' 2013

Operating ExPenses

Balance June 30,2013

ADJ - Net Pension

Reclass to Pension Erçense

Revised Balance

Pension Expense

Balance June 30,2013

ADJ - Net Pension Asset

ADJ - Net Pension Cost

ADJ - Anrortization ofNPA

Reclass to Pension Bçense

ADJ - Interest on Total
Pension Liabilþ

Revised Balance

(59,537,000)

$ 296,218,000

327,929,000

27,826,000

$-
27,826,000

17,081,000

l4,63o,ooo

31,711,000

59,537,000

16,176,000

$ 75,713,000



III. Prior Period Adjustments

Balance June 30,2013

ADJ - Net Pension Liability

ADJ - Defened Outflows
ofResources -

Contribution Made

Revised Balance

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Assumptions and Adjustments to Selected Accounts and Balances

At and for the year ended June 30' 2013



1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(61 9) 231 -1 466 . FAX (619') 234-3407

Agenda ltem No. 46
MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

SEMIANNUAL SECURITY REPORT (JANUARY THROUGH JUNE 2013)
(BILL BURKE)

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors receive a report for information.

Budqet lmpact

None.

DISCUSSION:

Statistics related to security incidents concerning the transit system are compiled by staff
based on reports generated by security personnel and Code Compliance lnspectors.
This information is augmented by reports from local police authorities and is then
compiled, summarized, and submitted to the Board of Directors on a midyear and
year-end basis. The semiannual report covers the period from January 1,2013, through
June 30, 2013.

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY - TRANSPORTATION SECURITY
GRANT PROGRAM (TSGP)

MTS has been the recipient of several Homeland Security grants on an annual basis.
Approved funding through current open grants is approximately $12,419,732.

STATUS OF ONGOING AND OPEN GRANTS

Federal Grants

TSGP FY 2O1O

Metropolitan Transit System

'1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 I (619) 231-1466 o www.sdmts.com

Metropolltan Translt System (MTS) is a Californla public agency comprisod of San Diôgo Trans¡t Corp , San Dlego Trolley, lnc., San Dlogo and Arlzona Eastern Railway Company

ffiffiffiffi



Award: $3,981,000
Projects: $2.6 million for Fiber-Optic Green Line Project

$750,000 Fiber-Optic Orange Line Project
$500,000 Onboard bus video (Phase lV)
$1 00,000 Vulnerability Assessment/Cyber Security Plan

This funding will enable MTS to continue various fiber-optic projects that will
greatly enhance the transmission of video data to the Operations Control Center.
The fiber-optic projects are almost complete. Additionally, another phase of
onboard closed-circuit television (CCTV) allows for installation of CCTV
equipment on newly purchased buses. The Vulnerability Assessment/Cyber
Security Plan has been completed.

Status: Open - $2,662,000 expended to date
Expiration date: November 2013

. TSGP FY 2012

Award: $100,000
Projects: $100,000 for Drills and Exercises

This funding will enable MTS to continue to organize training drills and exercises
in order to increase preparedness for emergency situations that would require an

emergency response from MTS and/or other agencies. $33,000 was expended
for the Rock 'n' Roll Marathon Drill.

Status: Open - $33,000 expended to date
Expiration date: August 2014

California Fundino

o Proposition 18 FY 2008-09

Award: $2.78 million
Projects: $2.TSmillionforfiber-infrastructureenhancements

This investment is a two-phase project to create a high-speed quality network
connection for all Mission Valley East stations terminating at the Operations
Control Center,

Status: Project completed - 92.7 million expended
Expiration date: March 2013

. Proposition 1 B FY 2009-10

Award: $2.78 million
Projects: 9278 million for wireless infrastructure to capture real-time video

from Onboard LRV Video Surveillance System

This investment funds the continuing phases of onboard CCTV on light rail
vehicles (LRVs) and will enable viewing of onboard CCTV at the Operations
Control Center on trains and buses via wireless uplinks strategically located
along train lines and select transit centers.

-2-



Status: Project completed - $2J million expended
Expiration date: April 2013

Proposition 1B FY 2010-1 1

Award: $2.78 million
Projects: $457,526 for CCI Handheld lnspection Units and Software

$100,000 for Transit Store Security
$1.764 million for CCTV System Upgrades
$300,000 for IAD/KMD uPgrades

This investment is for automated handheld citation issuance devices including
eForce software, improved security measures at The Transit Store, and

additional closed-circuit television upgrades throughout the system. CCTV
system upgrades are to include upgrade to the Avigilon camera system, which
offers a superior video signal. The Transit Store security upgrades have been
completed. Some of the funds are being used for fencing repairs at the lmperial
Avenue Division (lAD) and the Kearny Mesa Division (KMD) bus yards, as well
as a camera system replacement for the revenue department.

Status: Open - $871,000 expended to date
Expiration date: March2014

Proposition 1B FY 201 1-12

Award: $2.78 million
Projects: $500,000 for CCTV system upgrade

$700,000 for SDSU monitoring system
$165,000 for SDTC security improvement
$178,000 for Back-up generator for Building C

$500,000 for CCTV installation on ADA/Paratransit vehicles
$730,000 for CCTV installation on new buses

This investment funds CCTV system upgrades for the CCTV system and
enhanced monitoring capabilities at the San Diego State University Trolley
Station (fire alarm enhancements and automated notifications), and the
installation of a back-up generator at the C-Building. These funds will also fund
security improvements at IAD and KMD and the installation of CCTV cameras on

Americans with Disabilities AcUParatransit vehicles and new buses.

Status: Open - $700,000 expended to date
Expiration date: March 2015

Proposition 1B FY 2012-13

Award: $2.78 million
Projects: $1.06 million for fiber optic cable expansion

$75,000 for the Cyber Security project

$125,000 for Security handheld software upgrade
$40,000 for SDTC security improvement project

$200,000 for Operations Control Center back-up generator

$645,000 for CCTV installation on ADA/Paratransit vehicles

-3-



$100,000 for Emergency Operations Center (EOC)

This investment is expansion of the fiber optic cable system, continued
improvements to Cyber Security, and a software upgrade for the security
department's compass card handheld inspection units (HHU). This investment
will also fund the back-up generator at the Operations Control Center, and
continue funding of CCW cameras on new buses. Funding will also be used to
repurpose existing space at the Security Department's area in the C-Building to
be used as an Emergency Operations Center.

Status: Open - $16,000 expended to date
Expiration date: March 2016

Homeland Securitv

ln June, the City of Los Angeles hosted the 2013 National Homeland Security
Conference for grantees from all of the Homeland Security Grant lnitiative Programs.
Chief Burke was invited to present during the conference where the topic was
"Homeland Security begins with Hometown Security". Chief Burke introduced the MTS

System and the Transit Enforcement team and how they work with interoperability, joint
operations, drills and exercises, and prevention of terrorist acts.

"lf You See Somethinq. Sav Somethinq"

ln 2010 the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) introduced the "lf You See
Something, Say Something" Campaign, a slogan borrowed from New York's
Metropolitan Transportation Authority. The campaign is to raise public awareness of
indicators of terrorism and terrorism-related crime, and to emphasize the importance of
reporting suspicious activity to the proper local law enforcement authorities. This familiar
slogan is found in airports across the nation.

The DHS partnered with many agencies in this effort. Participants include major and
minor league sports teams, including the San Diego Chargers, transportation agencies
such as Amtrak, and many colleges and universities.

During this period, MTS launched a media etfort to assist DHS with its goal. Staff
introduced a new text number so patrons could covertly relay information regarding
suspicious activity or packages to our dispatch center. The new text number was
published on bus and LRV header posters, small handout cards and in a video created
by staff. The video is posted on the MTS web site under the "Contact Us" and "Security

and Code Com pliance" tabs at http://www,sd mts. com/Securitv/contactsecuritv. asp.

While the program was launched late in this reporting period, dispatch has received and

responded to several text messages. Nothing believed to be related to terrorist activity
has been received to date but MTS regards any message received as a success.
Patrons are keeping the number in their cell phones and will be prepared in the case of a
true emergency.

ln February, four personnel participated in a three day Surveillance Detection for Law
Enforcement and Security Professionals training class in Los Angeles. The DHS and
Office of Bombing Prevention conducted this hands-on training course covering
surveillance detection and counter surveillance tactics through the use of clandestine
operations and the recognition of surveillance indicator techniques.

-4-



Staff was exposed to two days of classroom training covering familiarization with
terrorisflcriminal surveillance indicators. Also covered were the basic concepts of Threat
and Risk Assessment. On the third day, students participated in an undercover
operation where they were sent out to a major metropolitan business complex and had

to identify actors who were acting as terrorist.

The exercise was to simulate terrorist organization agents conducting surveillance to
carry out a terrorist attack. All MTS personnel passed the final exercise and testing and

were certified in counter surveillance operations.

MTS collaborates with TSA by participating in the planning, coordination and

implementation of Visible lntermodal Prevention and Response (VIPR) team patrols. A
VIPR team consists of uniformed federal police officers that provide a customer-friendly,
high visibility presence during peak hours on select areas of the MTS network. TSA was
present during events at Qualcomm such as a Monster Truck event and a soccer game.

They were also at the 12th & lmperial Transfer Station for a Padres baseball game,

Whenever there are suspicious circumstances on the system, TSA is notified by MTS
staff. There were no security issues reported this period.

Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV)

During this reporting period, CCTV on an additional four light rail vehicles was installed
and accepted, bringing the total to 107 LRVs equipped with onboard CCTV. This
enhances our ability to document incidents and provide evidentiary matter to law
enforcement agencies. The new equipment and configuration in the Operations Control
Center is more efficient and continues to be user friendly for operators.

New Technoloqv Testino

During the reporting period, personnel tested body cameras, worn on the officers'
uniforms. The purpose of the cameras is to record contacts in the field to more readily
investigate allegations of officer misconduct and to afford some protection when officers
become involved in litigation stemming from allegations of misconduct. After a test
period using cameras from two vendors, one with a high quality and compatible system
was selected. Funding for purchasing these cameras has been approved and
procurement will take place before the end of this year.

Records Manaqement Svstem

Staff currently uses a data base software program called Transit Watch to capture and

summarize crime statistics and produce reports such as the Board FTA 405
(Attachments A-D). This program was custom built by staff and an outside contractor in

1997. The software supporting this program is obsolete and in need of replacement.
Staff received California Proposition 1B funds in order to replace this aging program and

began researching replacement software in late 2012. This software will work in

conjunction with the new handheld devices which will be used by the Code Compliance
lnspectors for electronic citation issuance beginning in early 2014.

After narrowing down the alternatives, staff visited the Denver Regional Transportation
District (RTD), where a software program named eForce is in use. This program

captures and reports crime data, accommodates automated and wireless citation writing
and utilizes a Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) module. Denver RTD recommended the
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system and MTS moved forward with this option. The Board approved the procurement
at the April 2013 Board Meeting.

MTS and eForce signed the contract in June. ln the second half of 2013, staff will move
fonryard with the customization, testing and training phases of the project. lt is expected
that the automated citation writing module will go live in early 2014 and that the
reporting/records management and CAD modules will follow shortly thereafter.
Complete implementation is planned before the end of March, 2014.

Copper Wire Thefts
Two adults were arrested near Murray Drive attempting to steal copper wire from the
tracks; they were charged and prosecuted for attempted grand theft. MTS is seeking

91,015.84 in damages. In 2008, one of these two men was arrested by MTS officers
and charged for stealing copper wire in the Baltimore Junction area.

Plainclothes Unit

Between January and June, the plain clothes unit worked 96 days and made 41

vandalism arrests. These arrests have led to further charges being filed by the Chula
Vista and San Diego police agencies using the Graffiti Tracker database program.

For example, staff arrested the person associated with the moniker 'TAPE' and, after
forwarding his information to Chula Vista Police; they prosecuted and convicted him for
20 tagging incidents, gathered from the Graffiti Tracker database, and are now seeking

$20,000 in restitution.

Another arrest was the person associated with the moniker "POE' and, after MTS
arrested him and forward his information to Chula Vista Police, he admitted to, and was
charged with, 46 incidents of tagging resulting in $5,000 in damage.

While the original arrests related to these cases included minimal damage and repair
costs to MTS ($437.81), through the use of the Graffiti Tracker database, law
enforcement was able to utilize the program to its potential in charging these two
individuals with a wide web of damage caused throughout the county.

Transient Camp Details and Homeless Outreach

During this reporting period, there was a dramatic increase in transient activity in Mission
Valley, the San Diego River Preserve and Cactus Park - twenty details were performed.

Most of these camps were larger than usual and consisted of three to ten tents/bedding
areas each having one or more occupants. Approximately 85% of the occupants in

these camps were involved in narcotics activity (dealers/users) with the drugs of choice
being methamphetamine and heroin.

We have also seen an increase in the occupants of the camps acquiring dogs,
particularly pit bulls, for the purposes of protecting themselves and their property. The
dogs will guard the belongings in an occupants camp site, act as an alarm when security
or law enforcement is approaching the area and, in some cases, aggressively protect the
occupants from MTS enforcement. After several close calls with these dogs
aggressively charging at officers, Transit Systems Security implemented new training
techniques to deal with the increasing number of dogs found at these locations. Officers
also carry larger and more potent pepper spray in the hopes of avoiding the use of
firearms.
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ln May, staff met with representatives from the San Diego Homeless Outreach Team
(H.O.T.) in order to address removal of violators during enforcement details in the
homeless encampments on MTS property. They provided referral information for
counseling on available social services and provided staff with a resource guide of
Downtown Social Services. These guides can help direct homeless people to the
appropriate social services to assist them in getting off the street. The San Diego
County Probation Program assists in finding housing for homeless persons that are
currently on probation. Since approximately 50 percent of individuals found in homeless
encampments on MTS property are on probation, this program may be beneficial in
getting these persons into housing and off the streets and MTS property.

When teams work the early morning hours (approximately 2:00 a.m.), they also
concentrate on homeless activities at the downtown trolley stations and bus stops. At
times, the Point Loma and Hillcrest areas are also included. This is mainly due to
complaints of homeless persons either taking over a bus stop or creating problems in a
bus stop.

Downtown Partnership

The Downtown Partnership is a public and private partnership dedicated to addressing
issues of social disorder and criminal activity within downtown San Diego. Downtown
Partnership meetings are held twice a month. Topics discussed at the Downtown
Partnership meetings include special event preparation for events held in downtown, the
homeless count, hot spots for criminal activity, problem individuals and updates from
several different agencies involved in the Downtown Partnership'

Staff attended three meetings of the Downtown Partnership Community Forum this
period. MTS Statf were asked questions and given feedback by the residents of the
East Village. lssues brought up involving MTS were primarily regarding the City College,
Park & Market and 5th Avenue Trolley Stations as well as downtown bus stops. Crimes
such as illegal lodging, drug sales, illegal cigarette sales, loitering and thefts were the
most commonly discussed. One of the primary issues brought up during this reporting
period was the residents' request for more security coverage at the City College Trolley
Station. Since MTS provides between 10 and 20 hours in security staffing per day at the
City College Station, MTS will try to hold more special details around City College and
Park & Market for more visibility and to deter crime.

Border Transportation Council (BTC)

The Border Transportation Council (BTC) focuses on issues regarding the United States
and Mexican border transportation services. The Border Transportation Council
meetings are held the second Tuesday of every month. The following agencies and

community groups attend these meetings on a regular basis: MTS, the California
Department of Transportation (CALTRANS), DHS, San Diego Police, SANDAG,
California Highway Patrol, San Ysidro Chamber of Commerce, California Public Utilities
Commission, U.S. Customs and Border Protection and several privately owned
transportation companies.

The Border Transportation Council discusses several different issues that impact the
border and transportation such as wait time for transportation vehicles to cross the
lnternational Border, United States Department of Transportation inspections,
construction at the San Ysidro Border, parking lots for private transportation owners and

illegal activities at the border.
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ln previous years the primary issues that were brought up at the BTC meetings involved
the illegal activities in the MTS-owned bus parking facility behind the McDonalds
Restaurant on Rail Court. Since Brice House has been managing the parking lot and

MTS has assigned an officer dedicated to that location, there have been substantial
improvements in compliance with regulations. This new arrangement, along with a
number of special enforcement details, has helped to lower illegal activities on Rail Court
and at the San Ysidro Station, which has minimized MTS-related complaints at the BTC
meetings.

These enforcement details have also helped to improve traffic safety in the area. This
year MTS was praised at the BTC meetings for our efforts on keeping the area safe
and free of illegal activity.

Canine Teams and Counter Terrorism Activities

Three explosive-detection canine teams have been funded through a Cooperative
Agreement with the Transportation Security Administration (TSA) since the beginning of
2006. Primary duties include ongoing training, patrol of trains, buses and facilities, fare
enforcement, and response to check suspicious packages.

ln March, a new member of the K9 team, Molli, was brought on board, replacing K9 Bino
who retired and was adopted by his handler after seven years working at MTS. Molli
was assigned to the Rock and Roll Marathon where she screened trucks filled with
runners' bags both pre - and post-event. She screened nearly 600 bags as well as the
areas near the start and finish line,

A number of canine searches on MTS property were conducted during this period,

Searches included items such as dutfle bags and boxes left unattended. One search
included a local University campus library, where the MTS K9 units assisted the police

agency who responded to the bomb threat. Harbor Police also assisted in this search
due to the size of the areas needing screening. The search was completed in

approximately two hours. Sports venues have also requested searches of locker rooms
and other areas.

MTS Staff continued to seek training opportunities in counter-terrorism. ln January, staff
attended the Anti-Defamation League's (ADL) Counter Terrorism Conference in San
Diego. Over 500 law enforcement professionals were in attendance including police,

sheriffs, district attorneys and many speakers. Staff also attended the annual
lnternational Association of Bomb Technicians and lnvestigator's (lABTl) conference,
this year in Dallas, Texas. This conference offered an educational and networking
experience which included presentations on case histories and recent bombing events,
tactics, and emerging weapons. ln April, staff attended the Federal Emergency
Management Agencies (FEMA) week-long training in Alabama that addressed
Response to Suicide Bomb Attacks, Response Action for Chemical, Biological,
Radiological, Nuclear and Explosives (CBRNE) incidents, hands on training and
protective measures.

Joint training, both on and off property, continues with agencies such as The Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF), Amtrak Police, United States
Marshalls, TSA, Harbor Police and local and non-local police and sheritf agencies.

During this reporting period, the following activity was generated by the teams:

Patrons contacted 89,107 Training scenarios conducted 200
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Citations issued 671 Calls for service 16

Rock'n' Roll Marathon

On June 2, 2013, the annual San Diego Rock 'n' Roll Marathon was held, drawing an
estimated 90,000 participants and onlookers. Because of the bombing during the
Boston Marathon in April this year perceived heightened risk demanded increased
security while transporting an estimated 25 percent of the attendees.

ln order to enhance public safety at this high profile event, the Rock 'n' Roll Marathon
was designated as a Drill in order to perfect our procedures and skills alongside other
agencies. MTS was the lead public transportation agency during this event. We
partnered with North County Transit District, San Diego Police Department, San Diego
Fire Department, Harbor Police Department, San Diego Sheriff's Office, Amtrak, and
other state and federal partners. ln doing so, a comprehensive security plan was
created to ensure safe and enjoyable public transportation services into, among, and out
of the event venues. This plan included heavy usage of the MTS K9 explosives
detection dogs. Our K9 units swept Petco Park, the MTS parking structure and the 12'n

& lmperial Transfer Station in addition to many areas in the immediate vicinity of the
event. MTS Kg units also participated in sweeping vehicles belonging to vendors
accessing the secured area.

Eaqle Team

The Eagle Team was created in December, 2012 as a result of numerous complaints
from late night riders on the Orange and Blue Line trolleys. After funding was approved
by the Budget Committee (annual cost of $435,000), the unit was deployed to forestall
crimes such as thefts, robberies, fights, drinking and fare evasion on late night trains.
Eight TSS officers and two CCls are assigned to the Eagle Team detail. Each team
consists of four TSS officers and one CCI on the Orange Line and four TSS officers and
one CCI on the Blue Line. After 9:00 p.m., an armed TSS officer is assigned to each
Blue Line train and each Orange Line train until the assigned train goes out of service.

The TSS officers assigned to the trains enforce all quality of life issues and fare
evasion. The Code Compliance lnspector assigned to the line will make their own
arrests as well as respond to all TSS arrests and issue the appropriate citation.
Occasionally, the Eagle Team conducts plain clothes details to deal with specific
complaints or operational issues. The Eagle Team operations have been highly
successful in deterring crime, improving ride quality, and deterring vandalism on the late
night Orange and Blue Line trains.

Special Enforcement Units (SEUs)

SEU operations are conducted at random transit centers at irregular intervals as an
enhancement to regular code enforcement fare checks. The purpose is to check all
patrons for proper fare media who are either already on board or boarding and
deboarding trains. ln the first six months of 2013, 24 SEUs were conducted and
following are the statistics from those details:

. Patrons lnspected 97,676

. Citations lssued 2,405

. Written Warnings 39
o Fare Evasion 2.5o/o
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During the months of May and June, there was a concentrated effort to remind patrons
to tap while in a fare paid zone and before boarding a train, Fare Enforcement Warning
handouts, explaining the requirement to tap, were distributed during SEUs and regular
patrol. Compass Cards that have been properly validated, or tapped, save inspectors
valuable time while conducting fare enforcement duties. ln these two months 4,157
verbal warnings were given and the patrons were informed on how to activate and tap
Compass Cards.

Juvenile Diversion Prooram

ln April of 2012, in collaboration with the Juvenile Court system, MTS launched a

Juvenile Diversion Program to address citations issued to juveniles. The program was
introduced as an effort to relieve parents from taking time off of work - and their children
out of school - to attend court, as well as to eliminate some of the burden on the court
system. Many parents appealed to the court asking if they could simply pay a fine rather
than attend court.

Staff worked with the Juvenile Court to develop a diversion program for select juvenile
violations. When offered participation in the program, juveniles have the option to make
a payment directly to MTS or attend court for adjudication.

ln late April 2012, MTS began offering the diversion program to juveniles for minor
ordinance violations, such as fare evasion, feet on seats, littering, etc.

While some juveniles took advantage of the offer, staff worked with the Court system to
improve the number of participants, which would help alleviate more of the burden from
the Court system. The only violations that do not qualify for the program at this time are
those involving drugs, alcohol, vandalism orVehicle Code violations.

During this period alone, nearly $7,000 in payments were received; a substantial
improvement over last period when payments received totaled approximately $2,000.
To date, MTS has collected over $11,000 in payments.

Buses and Bus Stops

During the reporting period, MTS Code Compliance lnspectors and Transit System
Security Officers conducted numerous sweeps and checks of buses and bus facilities.

Three plainclothes/undercover details were conducted in response to cell phone "snatch
and grabs" from on board the buses. Those victims, sitting with their backs to the rear
doors, were more susceptible to the thefts. Video stills captured the faces of the
suspects which were disseminated to field officers as BOL's (be on the lookout for these
suspects). MTS continues to assist the local police agencies with pertinent video
evidence for a variety of alleged crimes, from thefts to an attempted homicide.

San Dieoo Trollev

San Diego Trolley experienced 923 Part ll arrests and 96 reports of Part I incidents
during the first half of 2013. ln the first 6 months of 2012, there were 1,186 Part ll
arrests and 66 reports of Part I lncidents.
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Bus Operations - San Dieqo Transit Corporation

San Diego Transit Corporation experienced 113 Part ll arrests and 11 reports of Part I

incidents in the first 6 months of 2013. ln the first half oÍ 2012, there were 94 Part ll
arrests and 21 reports of Part I incidents.

Bus Operations - Contract Transportation Services

MTS's Contract Services experienced 37 Part ll arrests and 7 reports of Part I incidents
forthis period in 2013. ln the same period in2012, therewere 53 Part ll arrests and 6
reports of Part I incidents.

Key Staff Contact:

Attachments:

Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Coonev@sdmts.com

Board FTA 405 Reports (January - June 2013 SDTI)
Board FTA 405 Reports (January - June 2012 SDTI)
Board FTA 405 Reports (January - June 2013 SDTC)
Board FTA 405 Reports (January - June 2012 SDTC)

A.
B.
c.
D.
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Semi-annual Security Report
(Chief Wllllam Burke)

January - June 2013

Al No. 46 ,11114113

November 14,2013

Partllncidents-Rail

Rldershlp

Aoainst Persons
Homlcid6
Rape
Robbery
Agg. Assault

Subtotal
13 Patrons, 3 TSS
frl Patron, 3 Tss

Against Prooêrtv
Burglary
Theft
MV Theft
Arson

Subtotal

January through June

2012 2013
15,866,245 14,358,530
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Partllncidents-Rail

Non-Patron Related

SDTI Thefts were non-patron r€lated

1 Slgnal Wlre
3 Coke machines
I Goodwlll box
2 Other (fare medla/fence)
1 Contractor
I (of 39 Thefts)

January through June

Adjust€d Part I lncldents (related to property of
patrons) if removlng these 8 thefts = .20 Part I

Crime lncidents per 100,000 patrons

Part I Theft lncidents

2013
37olo of SOTI Thefts were non-patron related

12 Copper wlre/Metal
10 Coke machines
2 Fârê machines

24 (of 65 Thefts)

Adjusted Part I lncidents (releted to property of
patrons) if removing these 24 thefts = .49 Part I

Crime lncidents per .l00,000 patrons

Al No. 46 ,11114113

Cell Phone and Electronics
Thefts and Robberies (nctudes atrempts)

20 Cell phones and electronic devices thefts

. Account for 25o/o of all thefts and robberies

Partllncidents-Rail
January through June 201 3

oeoo

tF t 
'a"oraon 

Ftqlcisço shooter nrp4

TAIÍT OIIT
5afety and Security Tips

Cell Phone anci Electronic
THEFT WARNING
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Copper theft'like an epidemic'sweeping US - cNec

Copper theft seen as source of UC Berkeley outage - As@rated pr€ss

Copper Theft -An lncreasing Problem Nationwide - Fâmrr¡,Homês@rlv

Thieves somehow steal 6 miles of copper wire from Utah highway - As@râtodPross

Copping the copper thieves becomes big business - o'rsc

Part I lncidents
Copper Wire Thefts - Nationwide

Al No, 46 ,11114113

Copper Wire Thefts

Local Copper /Metal Thefts Too Numerous to Compare to National Thefts

Prcþlgll: Stolen metals are easily cashed in at local recycling facilities

Price per pound 1999 = .600 Price per pound 2013 = $3.30+

MTS Solutions:

. Members of the San Diego County Metal Theft Task Force

Part I lncidents

o@oo

. Joint details with law enforcement officers - visit recycling centers

. Target all recyclable metals

. Shut down unscrupulous recycling centers
. Deployment of Crlme Suppression Unit
. Late n¡ght patrol conducted on Rights-of-Way and Homeless Camps
. Patrols conducted in uniform and plainclothes
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Part I lncident Comparison - Rail
MTS and Los Angeles

Janu8ry through Juno 2013

MTS LA MEtrO
Ridership 1 4,358,530 56,172,51 1

lncidents per 100,000 .66 1.04

Agelnst P€rsons
Homlcide
Rape
Robbery
Agg. Assault

Subtotal

Agelnst Prooerty
Burglary
Theft
MV Theft
Arson

Subtotal

Total Part I lncldents

Al No. 46 ,11114113

Part ll Arrests - Rail
January through June

2012
Other Assaults 32

Vandalismr 60

Sex Offenses 1

Drug Abuse 104

oeoo

Sublotal

Totaln

rGratllt TÞcksr lncldent. not lnclud€d,

204 169

101 43

1,186 923

ñDo€s not lncludo cllatlone lor fale wâslon.
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Part I lncidents - SDTC Bus

Ridership

Homicide
Rape
Robbery
Agg. Assault
Burglary
Theft
MV Theft
Arson

Tolal

Per 100,000

January through June

2012 2013
14,449,067 14,334,565

0
0
5
4
0

't'l

1

0

21

'1448

Al No. 46 ,11114113

Part I Incident Compar¡son - Bus
MTS and Los Angeles

Januâry through June 2013

MTS LA Metro
Ridership 14,334,565 173,584,814

lncidents per 100,000 .14 .14

Aoainst Persons
Hom¡c¡de
Rape
Robbery
Agg. Assault

Subtotal

Aoainst Prooertv
Burglary
Theft
MV Theft
Arson

Sublotal

Total Part I lncidents

@@oo

0
0

38
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Part ll Arrests - SDTC Bus
January through June

2012 2013
14,499,067 14,334,565

Al No.

2
5
0
3
1

'16

44
1

22

94

46 ,11114113

5
1

0
9
1

3
14

3
77

't't3
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Say Something
Texts received:

. Passsnger needing paramedlcs onboard trein aft€r fall¡ng off s€at. Tho reportlng party te)ted the
location to th€ Operations Contfol Centêr. Paramedics dispatched and pass€nger transported to
ths hospital.

. Requesting help because of a passenger âcting êrratically onboard a train. An ofücer was
dispatched and locat€d the passonger. She was removed from the premises. R€porting person

telited, "Thank you. I feel much better.'

. Report ofan unknown emergency onboard bus #616. Central Control replied to the message but
did not receive a response. San Diego Transit was immediately notified of the s¡tuation and was
able to contact the driver of bus #61 6. Bus Operator reported there was no emergency onboard
th€ bus.

Te)ds may also bs received from inlernational têl6phone numbers, suoh as Tijuana, thus demonstrating thê fl6xib¡lity of the system.

lf You See Something

Al No. 46 ,11114113

K9 Searches

@eoo

Bomb Threat - SDSU's Library

@@oo
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Homeland Security Training Drill

Participating Regional Agencies

Rock and Roll Marathon

Heightened Security/Post-Boston Marathon Bombing

North County Transit D¡strict
San Diego Police Department
Harbor Police Department
Orange County Sheriffs
Orange County Bomb Squad
Homeland Security
US Marshals Service
Secret Service
FBI
Transit Security Administration
Visible lntermodal Prevention and
Response (VIPR) and K9 teams
Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco Firearms
& Explosives (AFT)

Al No. 46 , 11114113

Homeland Security Training Drill
Rock and Roll Marathon

Heightened Security/Post-Boston Marathon Bombing

@@oo

2 MTS K9 teams

18 K9 teams from regional agencies

UPS trucks containing runners' bags

Tailgate Park

PETCO Park (pre-swept)

Media trucks
Vendors

Stages

Start/Finish line

Crowds

Trolleys and Buses

Bus and Rail Yards

MTS Parking Structure

eeoo

8



Special Enforcement Unit (SEU)

tare Enforcern*try

Zero Tolerance Fare lnspection - Rail
January - June 201 3

24 SEUs conducted at random stations

97,67 6 Patrons I nspected

2,405 Citations lssued

39 Written Warnings lssued

2.5% Evasion Rate

Al No. 46 ,11114113

Graffiti Tracker
lncidents Submitted by MTS

January through June 201 3

@@oo

Officers witnessed tagging and called police (non-MTS property)

@eoo
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Becoming more dangerous .

Transient Camps

"Guard" or'warning" dogs such as pit bulls and other large dogs

Al No. 46 , 11114113

Becoming more dangerous ...

Transient Camps

e@oo

Copper wire thefts to support
weapons and narcotics
activlty

Over 85% of occupants are
dealers or users of
methamphetamine and heroin

Camps are larger than usual -
up to ten tents or bedding
areas containing multiple
occupants

10



Transient Camps

Twenty camp details conducted throughout San Diego River/Mission
Valley Preserve and Cactus Park

Al No. 46 , 11114113

Transient Gamps
Routinely Patrolled

San Dieqo River/Mission Vallev Preserve
Cactus Park - Lakeside

Mission San Diego (Right-oÊWay)

Fenton Parkway (Right-of Way)

Rio Vista (Right-of-way)

Mission Valley Center (Right-of-Way)

Hazard Center (Right-of-Way)

Morena Linda Vista (Right-of-Way)

Old Town (Right-of-Way)

@@oo

Sweetwater Preserve (South Bay)
. Sweetwater Flats
. Gunpowder Point

oeoo
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Al No. 46 , 11114113
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1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466. FAX(619) 234-3407

MEETING OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 14,2013

SUBJECT:

opERATtONS BUDGET STATUS REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2013 (MIKE
THOMPSON)

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors receive the MTS operetions budget status report for
September 2013.

Budget lmpact

None at this time.

DISCUSSION:

This report summarizes MTS's operating results for September 2013 compared
to the fiscal year 2014 budget. Attachment A-1 combines the operations,
administration, and other activities results for September 2013. Attachment A-2
details the September 2013 combined operations results and Attachments A-3 to
A-8 present budget comparisons for each MTS operation. Attachment A-9
details budget comparisons for MTS Administration, and A-10 provides

September 2013 results for MTS's other activities (Taxicab/San Diego and
Arizona Eastern Railway Company).

MTS NET-OPERATING SUBSIDY RESULTS

As indicated within Attachment A-1, for the year-to-date period ending
September 2013, the MTS net-operating income favorable variance totaled
$1,171,000 (3.4%). Operations produced a $108,000 (0.3%) favorable variance
and the administrative/other activities areas were favorable by $1,063,000.

MTS COMBINED RESULTS

Revenues

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No, 47

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1 000, San Diego, CA 92101 -7490 ' (619) 231-1466 ' www,sdmts.com

Motropolltan Transit System (MTS) ls a Callfornla publlc agency comprised of San Dlego Translt Corp., San Dlego Trollef lnc., San Diego and Adzona East€rn Rallway Company
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Year{o-date combined revenues through September 2013 were 927,444,000
compared to the year{o-date budget of $26,184,000 representing a $1,260,000
(4.8%o) favorable variance.

Expenses

Year-to-date combined expenses through September 2013 were $60,710,000
compared to the budget of $60,621,000, resulting in an $89,000 (-0.1o/o)

unfavorable variance.

Personnel Costs. Year-to-date personnel-related costs totaled $29,776,000
compared to a budgetary figure of $29,805,000, producing a favorable variance
of $29,000 (0.1o/o).

Outside Services and Purchased Transportation. Total outside services for the
first three months of the fiscal year totaled $19,301,000 compared to a budget of
$20,190,000, resulting in a favorable variance of $889,000 (4.4o/o). This is
primarily due to a favorable experience with repairs/maintenance costs within
Operations and a favorable variance for other outside services within
Administration.

Materials and Supplies, Total year-to-date materials and supplies expenses
were $2,531,000 compared to a budgetary figure of $2,223,000, resulting in an
unfavorable expense variance of $308,000 (-13.9%). This unfavorable variance
is primarily due to revenue parts costs within Rail Operations.

Enerov. Total year-to-date energy costs were $6,638,000 compared to the
budget of $6,561 ,000 resulting in an unfavorable variance of $77,000 (-1.2%).

Risk Manaqement. Total year-to-date expenses for risk management were
$1,668,000, compared to the budget of $1,075,000, resulting in an unfavorable
variance totaling $593,000 (-55.2o/o). This unfavorable variance is due to the
timing of an expected $825,000 liability settlement.

General and Administrative. The year-to-date general and administrative costs,
including vehicle and facilities leases, were $27,000 (-3.5%) unfavorable to
budget, totaling $795,000 through September 2013, compared to a budget of
$767,000.

YEAR-TO-DATE SUMMARY

The September 2013 year-to-date net-operating income totaled a favorable
variance of $1,171,000 (3.4%). These factors include favorable variances in
passenger revenue, other operating revenue, outside services, and personnel
costs, partially offset by unfavorable variances in materials costs, risk
management costs, energy and general and administrative expenses.

Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 61 9.557.451 3, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Comparison to Budget
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

MTS
CONSOLIDATED

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 201.4

SEPTEMBER 30,2013
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & administrative

Vehicle/ f acility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Administrative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

Att. A, Al47, 11114113

ACTUAL

g 24,985

2,459

s 27,444

BUDGET VARIANCE

24,325

1.,859

29,776

19,301.

2,531.

6,638

'1,,668

565

230

(0)

$ ooo

600

26,184

29,805

20,790

2,223

6,56L

1.,075

532

235

VAR. %

a nol

32.370

L,260

29

889

(308)

VN
(5e3)

(33)

6

0

4.8o/o

0.1.%

4.4%

-13.9y,

-1.2%

-55.2%

-6.2%

2.4%

0.07o

60,770

$ (33,266)

(41)

60,627

$ (33,307) g (34,467) $ 1,160

$ (34,438) $

(30)

(8e)

'1,177

(11)

-0.1o/o

3.40/o

36.7o/o

-3.4o/o

A-1



SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 201.4

SEPTEMBER 30,201.3
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & administrative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Adminishative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

Att. A, Ai!47, 11114113

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

24,985924,325$000
150 1,46 3

25,134

25,11.6

1,6,379

2,529

6,447

1,580

76

L65

7,417

fi ztAzt $ oes

25,186

1,6,752

2,215

6,387

959

69

1.69

7,417

2.7%

2.2%

70 0.3%

373 2.2yo

(314) -14.2%

(60) -0.e%

(620) -64.7yo

(7) -e.8%

3 1,.9To

0 0.0%

2.7o/o

59,710 fi 59,754 $

$ (34,57s) $ (34,683) $

$ (33,879) fi (33,9761

(sss)

L08

(11)

-0,90/o

0.3o/o

-7.5o/o

A-2



SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
TRANSIT SERVICES (SAN DIEGO TRANSIT CORPORATION)

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

SEPTEMBER 30,2013
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & administrative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Adminishative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

Att. A, Al 47, 11114113

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

7,045 $
'1.

7,046 $

1.6,594 $

286

1,180

1,,453

'1.,215

17

73

7,284 $ (238)

2 (1)

7,286 $

'1.6,713 $

465

1,,195

1,,419

484

38

75

-3.3%

-55.8To

(240) -3.3o/o

2,830

118 0.77'

179 38.5%

15 1*370

(34) -2.4%

(731) -150.e%

21, 54.9y"

2 2.5%

- 0.070

23,&8 $

$ (L6,602) $

2,830

23,219 $

(1s,933) $

$ (16,9231 g (16,242' $ (680) 4.2o/o

(32t1 (310)

(430)

(66e)

(11) 3.5o/o

-1.9o/o

-4.2%

A-3



SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
RAIL OPERATIONS (SAN DIEGO TROLLEY, INCORPORATED)

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

SEPTEMBER 30,201.3

(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations f unding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & administrative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Adminisbative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

Att. A, Al47, 11114113

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

10,708 g 9,625

148 1.44

10,857 $

8,136

859

1,,349

2,793

361.

57

90

4,084

9,769 $

1,083

5

8,051

869

1,,017

2,669

471.

26

89

4,084

1,088 l1..lo/o

11..3%

3.270

(84) -L.07,

10 1,.2Yo

(332) -32.6"/"

(124) -4.7%

110 23.41o

(32) -122.3%

_ 

(1) _r.:r"

- 0.07o

L7,728 $

(6,8721 $

17,276 $

(7,5071 $

g (6,8721 6 (7,son $ eso -8.5o/o

(4s21

636 8.s%

A-4



SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
MULTIMODAL OPERATIONS (FIXED ROUTE)

COMPARISON TO BUDGET. FISCAL YEAR 2014

SEPTEMBER 30,201.3
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & administrative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Administrative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

Att. A, A147, 11114113

ACTUAL

6,086 $

6,086 $

124 $

10,579

1,,523

6,203 $

113 $
'1.0,764

(117) -1..9%

(777)

(11)

185

7

97

2

J

357

't

L,620

1.

5

357

-1.9o/o

-9.7%

'l,.7lo

6.0%

-42.1.%

45.7%

0.07o

12,587 $

(6,s01) $

(0)

2

12,860 $

(6,658) $

$ (6,s01) $ (6,6s8) $ 1s6

273

\56

2.1o/o

2.3Yo

-2.3o/o

A-5



SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
MULTIMODAL OPERATIONS (PARATRANSIT)

COMPARISON TO BUDGET. FISCAL YEAR 201.4

SEPTEMBER 30,2013
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations f unding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & adminisbative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Adminishative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating tevenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

Att. A, Al47,11114113

ACTUAL

$szz$

BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

s22 $

31. $

3,034

627

4

518 $

s18 $

3/

3,021.

615

4

3

104

$s
(14)

(12)

J

0.7%

104

0.7o/o

1.4.5%

-0.5%

-1.9%

0.0%

0.0%

3,801 $

(3,279) $

g (3,27e) $ (3,26s) $ (14)

3,783 $

(3,26s) $

(17)

(14)

-0.5o/o

-0.4o/o

0.4o/o

A-6



SAN DIEGO METROPOTITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
CONSOLIDATED CHULA VISTA TRANSIT OPERATIONS

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

SEPTEMBER 30,201.3
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations f unding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & administrative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Administrative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital conkibutions

Att. A, Al 47, 11114113

ACTUAL

$ ezs $ oss g (72)

BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

624 $

43$
1.,420

69s $

84$
'1,,433

0

50

-103%

(72)

4'1.

13

2

63

-10.3o/o

49.27o

0.97,

97.8%

20.2%

0.0%41

1,555 $

(e32]' $

957

2

13

41

$zs

'l..,626 $

(e3o) $

957

(0)

(1)

4.3o/o

-0.1o/o

0.00/o

$ (1) 4.60/o

A-7



SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
CORONADO FERRY

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

SEPTEMBER 30,2013
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & administrative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Adminishative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

Att. A, Al 47, 11114113

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

0.0%

46$

(461 $

60

$r¿

46$

(461 $

60

14$

0.0%

0.0%

0.0o/o

0.0%

A-8



SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

ADMINISTRATION
CONSOLIDATED

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

SEPTEMBER 30,201,3
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel cosb

Outside services

Transit operations f unding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & adminislative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Administrative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

Att. A, Ail47, 11114113

ACTUAL

-$
2,21.4

2,274 $ L,6L5 $

-$
1,,615

4,482

2,912

2

189

85

465

64

(7,44n

599

4,444 $ (38)

479

4

$n
23

(2e)

2

37.1%

6

172

109

436

67

(7,44n

37.7o/o

-0.9%

1,4.1,7o

68.37'

-9.9%

21,.61o

-6.7%

3.7%

0.070

7s2 $

tA62 $

(737)

9 ZZe $ (2e8) S 1,024

'f76 $

439 $

(737ì

1,024

36.1o/o

-233.4o/o

0.0%

A-9



SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OTHER ACTIVITIES
CONSOLIDATED

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

SEPTEMBER 30,2013
(in $000's)

Passenger Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Personnel costs

Outside services

Transit operations funding

Materials and supplies

Energy

Risk management

General & administrative

Vehicle/ facility leases

Amortization of net pension asset

Adminiskative Allocation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Att. A, Al 47, 11114113

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

$

95

$9s

$-$
98

Operating income (loss)

9178$rZS$
947

Total public support and nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before capital contributions

e8$

0

3

3

24

(3) -2.77o

(3)

(3)

38

1.

(0)

J

3

2

J

7

27

30

-2.7o/o

-1..9%

79.9%o

78.77o

-123%

51..1.%

11.0%

0.07o30

248 $

(1s4) $

$ (1s4) $ (1e3) $ ss

290 $

(1e3) $

42 L4.5o/o

20.4o/o

A-10



Metropolitan Transit System
FY 2014 - September 2013

Financial Review

MTS Board of Directors Meeting

November 14,2013

Ar No. 47 , fifi4fis
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COMBINED MTS TRANSIT OPERATORS

CO¡I,IPAR|SON TO BUDGET - SEPTEI,iBER 30, 2013 - FY 2014
(in Soo0's)

ACTUAL
Personnel Costs S 25,1 16

Purchased Transportation 14,761
Other Outside Seryices 1,618
Energy 6,447
Other Expenses 11,767

Total Expenses 559,710

Other Expenses:
. Risk Management: S620K favorable variance
. Materiats & Suppties: 5314K unfavorabte variance

Other Outside Services:
. Repairs & Maintenance Costs: 5f22K favorabte variance. Engines & Transmissions Costs: 5169K favorabte variance

BUDGET VARIANCE VAR %

s zs,lao s7o 03%

Al No. 47

14,830 69 0.5%

1 ,922 304 15.8%

6,387 (ó0) -0.9%

10,829 (938) -8.7To

,11114113

s59,1 54 (s5ss) -O.e%

METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - SEPTEMBER 30, 201 3 - FY 2014

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE LESS EXPENSES (5000's)

Combined Net Operating Variance

MTS Operating Revenue

MTS Operating Expenses

Combined MTS Operators

MTS Administration / Other Activities

Total Combined Net Operating Variance
Variance Percentage

oeoo

't#.rt

2
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METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI3 - FY 2014

ON.GOING CONCERNS

Gol.a lâv Crrhalr{r, ÞÂrrÂñrr.

Stalâ 
^l 

lìrlll^rñl¡ Rrrr{¡al

Þrs¡endar I âvâls

Energy Prlces
CNG

Dlesel

Gas

Electrlcltv

FYl4
YTD

Budoet Actuål Prolectlon stetue

Al No.

s39oM $96.7M $390r e

47

s21 .1 M $4.3 M $21 .1 ¡¡ o
87.7M 24.0M 95.0M o

,11114113

$ 0.83 $ 0.76 $ 0.80

$ 3.42 $ 3.37 $ 3.42 (D
$ 3.40 $ 3.39 $ 3.40
$0.171 $0.177 $ 0.171

oeoo
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'1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466. FAX (619)234-s407

Chief Executive Otficer's Report

November 14,2013

ln accordance with Board Policy No. 52, Procurement of Goods and Services, attached are listings of
contracts, purchase orders, and work orders that have been approved within the CEO's authority (up to
and including $100,000) for the period October 18, 2013 through November 7 , 2013.

Metropolitan Transit System

Agenda ltem No. 62

1255 lmperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 r (619) 231-1466 . www.sdmts.com

Motropolitan Translt System (MTS) ls e Callfornia publlc agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Díego Trolley, lnc., San Diego and Arizona Easlern Railway Company

ffiffi{3ffi



EXPENSE CONTRACTS

80563.5-11 E SOFTWARE GROUP iANNUAL MAINTENANCE RENEWAL 10t22t2013

Lo8s6.1-09 icnruoru BUSTNESS soLUTroNS lnoo ruruos $27,000.00l 10129t2013

c16s1.o-14 innrucHo vrsrA SKTLLED NURSTNG lrctr onwsott $16,000.00l 11t6t2013
REVENUE CONTRACTS

G1661.0-14 L OPERATIONS

,M6703.1-13 PEDITE TOWING

:M6707.Q-14 I GROUP CONSTRUCTION

.80596.0-13 ICLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR

MHZ FREQUENCY RECONFIG AGMT
AMENDMENT MONTH TO MONTH

US SHELTER ADVERTISING

lYouTH MONTHLY PASS PrLOT

($182,897.28)ì 10t2112013

($1,533.00)l 10t28t2013
($2,200.00) l 10t29t2013,

10t30t2013
($288,000.00), 1013012013:G1647.0-14 iSO UrurrrrD SCHOOL DISTRICT

L0971.2-13 lSnruOnC llensr AMENDMENT JoLLY TRoLLEY (s2,164.24)i 11t1t2013

G1664.0-14 PT OF TRANSPORTATION

L1177.0-14 OPPER ELECTRIC, INC.

T CALTRANS STANDARD AGMT
RABLE ROE ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCE

($1o,oo0.oo)i 111412013',

($1,000.00) | 11t4t2013

16692.0-13 lsxnrusrn usA crvrL wEST l¡noe BRTDGE wrDENrNcs {$t ,soo.oo¡ l 11t5t2013

SMITH & UNION, LLC lnoe eHoro sHoor AT sDSU
PURCHASE ORDERS

($750.00) 
I 11t7 t2013

DATE Organization Subiect AMOUNT

10t22t2013 K REFRESHMENT SERVIcES ìcoFFEE BREWERS $8,800.00lnnnrunn
1 Ot25t2O13 ISU NSTATE EQU r PMENT iTEMP LIGHTING FOR VERNON PARKING LOT i $5,710.98

10t29t2013 ISDA SECURTTY SYSTEMS lNC. innnu MoNrroRrNG 1 YR

1 1 I4I2O13 ICDW GOVERNMENT, INC. Ine rrnenNET ADAPTER
$1,199.00

$948.24

11t4t2o1alrruv PAPER IHAMMERMILL PAPER $7,206.25

@ECrRrcwoRKS iç rcc_r5¡ cAL wo R K LABo R/MArE Bl-A!9

WORK ORDERS

$6,660.00

Doc # Orqanization Subject Amount I Day

G0930. 1 7 -04.16.1 ISANDAG iI-15 & MID-CITY VEHICLE PROCUREMENT 10t29t2013

c0930.17-04.28 lSnruOnC ISOUTH BAY BRT MAINTENANCE FAC 10t29t2013

($3,662,390.95) |

i ($¿s,ooo.oo);

G1496.0-13.03 lRnllpnOS IROE AND REAL ESTATE GENERAL $50,000.00 1012912013

PWLl 35.0-1 2.09.1 IABC CONSTRUCTION

PWL135.0-12.15 1 iABC CONSTRUCTION, lNC. ;20 ADDITIONAL FEET

G1246.0-09.10.2 IDAVID EVANS ADDITIONAL DESIGN SERVICES

PWLI34.0-12.20 1 .HERZOG CONSTRUCTION, INC 1ORANGE LINE TRACK WELDING

iUPGRADE 2 SERVERS $2,639.20, 1012912013

$4,662.52 111412013

$16,985.29 11t6t2013

$42,036.52 111712013



REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM

PLEASE SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED FORM (AND YOUR WRITTEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISCUSSION OF YOUR ITEM

INSTRUCTIONS
This Request to Speak form
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not
on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yielding of time is
allowed.
General Public Comments.

Metropolítan Trans¡t System

PLEASE PRINT

DATE

AGENDA IÏEM NO.

ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED

Name

Address

Telephone

Orga nization Represented

Subject of Your Remarks

UI

Regarding Agenda ltem No.

Qr\< r^

Your Comments Present a
Position of:

n '\/t,r)/ Ì l(t 1fi,,tí¡,, ,l,rll

TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Hearing.

DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to
a particular agenda item.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes
each, under the Public Comment Agenda ltem. Additional speakers will be heard at the end of the
Board's Agenda.

il /,, ,o

hto (nr)r

./)'/
ll /' ( I ;i,ì r /tÇ ,...

Public Comments.

H:\Board Member Listings, Labels, Envelopes & Other\Request to Speak Form.doc
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